

OFFICIAL JOURNAL
OF THE
HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATIVES
OF THE
STATE OF LOUISIANA

FOURTEENTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS

**Forty-seventh Regular Session of the Legislature
Under the Adoption of the
Constitution of 1974**

House of Representatives
State Capitol
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Tuesday, May 4, 2021

The House of Representatives was called to order at 2:17 P.M., by the Honorable Clay Schexnayder, Speaker of the House of Representatives.

Morning Hour

ROLL CALL

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

PRESENT

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahan
Amedee	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Bagley	Geymann	Miller, G.
Beaullieu	Glover	Mincey
Bishop	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriague	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Harris	Nelson
Brown	Hilferty	Newell
Bryant	Hodges	Orgeron
Butler	Hollis	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, R.
Carrier	Hughes	Phelps
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, R.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, W.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	Wheat
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Wright

Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue
Freiberg	McFarland	
Total - 104		

The Speaker announced that there were 104 members present and a quorum.

Prayer

Prayer was offered by Rep. Freeman.

Pledge of Allegiance

Rep. LaCombe led the House in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

Mia Kylie Ditta sang "*The National Anthem*".

Reading of the Journal

On motion of Rep. Thompson, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with.

On motion of Rep. Thompson, the Journal of May 3, 2021, was adopted.

**Petitions, Memorials, and
Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

Message from the Senate

**ASKING CONCURRENCE IN
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

May 4, 2021

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has adopted and asks your concurrence in the following Senate Concurrent Resolutions:

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 22

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Concurrent Resolutions
Lying Over**

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions contained in the message were taken up and acted upon as follows:

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 22—

BY SENATOR CATHEY

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the LSU Board of Supervisors to solely name the basketball court at the Pete Maravich Assembly Center after legendary men's head basketball coach, Dale Brown.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Magee, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications

Petitions, Memorials, and Communications

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read: at this time.

Message from the Senate

SENATE BILLS

May 4, 2021

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 97, 103, 112, 167, 180 and 224

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on First Reading

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

SENATE BILL NO. 97—
BY SENATOR LAMBERT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:2153(2) through (5) and to enact R.S. 30:2153(1)(b)(v), (8) through (15), 2154(B)(1)(b)(iii), and 2157, relative to solid waste; to provide for advanced recycling processes, facilities, and products; to provide for definitions; to provide for exceptions; to provide for the power and duties of the secretary of the Department of Environmental Quality; to provide for certain materials; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 103—
BY SENATOR HENSGENS

AN ACT

To enact Chapter 15-A of Title 3 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 3:2071 through 2077, and R.S. 36:629(T), relative to the creation of the Louisiana Equine Promotion and Research Program; to create the Louisiana Equine Promotion and Research Advisory Board; to provide for the composition, powers, duties, and functions of the board; to authorize the commissioner of agriculture and forestry to adopt rules and accept certain funds; to provide for the use of funds; to provide for definitions; to provide for transfer of the board to the Department of Agriculture and Forestry; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 112—
BY SENATOR HENRY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:1720(A) and (B)(4) and (8), 1728(A) and (D)(3), 1728.2(G), 1728.3(A), (B), and (C), the introductory paragraph of (D)(1), (D)(2), the introductory paragraph of (F)(1), (F)(1)(f) and (g), and (G), relative to the Louisiana Towing and Storage Act; to require certain notices be sent by certified mail, return signature electronic; to require the retention of certain records by the owner of a towing, storage, or parking facility; to provide certain terms and procedures; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 167—
BY SENATOR ALLAIN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:86(A), (C), and the introductory paragraph of (E), and to enact R.S. 30:86(D)(9) and (10) and (E)(7), relative to the Louisiana Oilfield Site Restoration Fund; to provide for the deposit of monies from the state's allocation from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021; to provide for the sources and uses of the Oilfield Site Restoration Fund; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 180—
BY SENATOR FRED MILLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 38:2271(A)(1) and (2)(b) and the introductory paragraph of 2271(C) and R.S. 39:1556(10)(a) and (50), 1600(D)(1) and (3), 1621(B), and 1648(C), and to enact R.S. 39:1600.1, R.S. 42:802(B)(12), and R.S. 46:450.7(C), relative to state procurement through the reverse auction process; to provide for the use of reverse auction technology in the procurement of consulting services by state and local governments; to provide for the definition of consulting service; to provide for the procurement of pharmacy benefit manager services through reverse auction; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 244 (Substitute of Senate Bill No. 92 by Senator Luneau)—
BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 23:1711(G)(1) and to enact R.S. 23:1472(15.1) and Part XIII of Chapter 1 to be comprised of R.S. 23:1771 through 1778, relative to employee misclassification; to provide with respect to administrative penalties; to provide relative to the failure to pay contributions; to provide for definitions; to provide factors to be used to identify an independent contractor; to facilitate voluntary resolution of worker classification issues; to enact the Fresh Start Proper Worker Classification Initiative and the Louisiana Voluntary Disclosure Program; to require the Louisiana Workforce Commission to promulgate rules; to provide for the disposition of penalties; to provide a safe harbor; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Duplessis, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 57—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS

A RESOLUTION

To direct the office of behavioral health of the Louisiana Department of Health to collect data to show the total cost associated with individuals with chronic untreated and under-treated serious mental illnesses and substance use disorders moving through various systems of crisis care and to report such data to certain legislative committees.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 58—

BY REPRESENTATIVES CARPENTER AND SCHEXNAYDER

A RESOLUTION

To express the condolences of the House of Representatives upon the death of Baton Rouge police officer, Lieutenant Glenn Hutto, Jr.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Carpenter, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 59—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS

A RESOLUTION

To designate May 2021 as Maternal Mental Health Month in Louisiana.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Duplessis, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

House and House Concurrent Resolutions Lying Over

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions lying over were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 50—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the legislative auditor to conduct an audit on the use of all forms of solitary confinement, room confinement, or room isolation in facilities housing juveniles arrested or adjudicated for a delinquent or status offense in the state of Louisiana, including any facility operated or contracted by the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, office of juvenile justice, and all locally operated juvenile detention centers licensed by the Department of Children and Family Services, and to report its findings to the Juvenile Justice Reform Act Implementation Commission.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 51—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DUPLESSIS

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, the Louisiana Department of Health, physicians at private and state medical facilities who treat incarcerated patients, and other community members and stakeholders to study the current eligibility, recommendation, and approval processes for the medical parole program and the medical treatment furlough program as well as for compassionate release as provided by the policy of the Department of Public Safety and Corrections.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 54—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MINCEY

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the state superintendent of education to request Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) waivers regarding school and district accountability and reporting requirements for the 2020-2021 school year.

Read by title.

Rep. Garofalo moved to suspend the rules to engross the resolution and order it passed to its third reading, which motion was agree to.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 56—

BY REPRESENTATIVE FREEMAN

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education, in consultation with the office of public health of the Louisiana Department of Health, to study best practices for the use of digital devices in school classrooms and to report findings of the study to the legislative committees on education and the legislative committees on health and welfare.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Education.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 57—

BY REPRESENTATIVE IVEY

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To request and direct the division of administration to provide the legislative auditor with electronic access to a synchronized copy of the datapoints in the LaGov Enterprise Resource Planning system pursuant to R.S. 24:513(P).

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 59—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MAGEE, BROWN, BRYANT, GARY CARTER, ROBBY CARTER, COUSSAN, DAVIS, DUPLESSIS, FRIEMAN, GREEN, JAMES, JEFFERSON, JENKINS, MIKE JOHNSON, JORDAN, LACOMBE, LANDRY, LARVADAIN, MACK, MARINO, MIGUEZ, GREGORY MILLER, MUSCARELLO, NELSON, NEWELL, PRESSLY, SEABAUGH, STEFANSKI AND VILLIO AND SENATORS CONNICK, FOIL, JACKSON, LAMBERT, MORRIS, PETERSON, AND SMITH

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Supreme Court of Louisiana to take appropriate action to allow full-time legislative staff who are

attorneys to also receive the eight hours of continuing legal education (CLE) credit each year given to representatives, senators, and chief clerical officers of the Senate and the House of Representatives for service in the Louisiana Legislature as provided by Regulation 3.15 of Rule XXX of Part H of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Louisiana.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 60—

BY REPRESENTATIVE CREWS

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the secretary of state to study the implementation of a notification system to alert a voter regarding the status of his vote.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 61—

BY REPRESENTATIVE KERNER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To authorize and direct the Firefighters' Retirement System to form a committee to study the effects of allowing employees of private nonprofit or quasi governmental entities to become members of the system.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Retirement.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 62—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BRASS

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Louisiana Community and Technical College System to create a commercial driver training and apprenticeship program to advance interstate commerce freight based economic development along the Louisiana Highway 10 corridor.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Education.

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading to be Referred

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

SENATE BILL NO. 4—

BY SENATOR PRICE

AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 18:1505.2(H)(7), relative to limits on campaign contributions received from political committees; to eliminate certain restrictions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 34—

BY SENATORS FIELDS AND CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:2404.2(C) and to enact Chapter 25-A of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 40:2551 through 2553, and Code of Criminal Procedure Article 162.3, relative to law enforcement; to provide for the duty to intervene; to provide for body worn cameras; to provide for motor vehicle dash cameras; to restrict use of neck restraints; to restrict the use of no-knock warrants; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SENATE BILL NO. 50—

BY SENATORS CARTER, BOUIE AND TARVER AND REPRESENTATIVE GARY CARTER

AN ACT

To enact Civil Code Article 3419.1, relative to ownership of domestic animals; to provide for determination of ownership; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

SENATE BILL NO. 61—

BY SENATORS CARTER, BARROW AND LUNEAU

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 23:332(I), relative to discrimination; to provide relative to discrimination in employment; to provide certain prohibitions relative to discrimination based upon hair texture or protective hairstyles; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Labor and Industrial Relations.

SENATE BILL NO. 67—

BY SENATOR WARD

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 6:969.18(A)(2)(a), relative to the Louisiana Motor Vehicle Sales Finance Act; to increase the maximum allowable documentation and compliance fee authorized to be collected by a motor vehicle seller; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Commerce.

SENATE BILL NO. 76—

BY SENATOR TALBOT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 26:794.1, relative to the Office of Alcohol and Tobacco Control; to provide relative to permits; to provide for exception permits for certain establishments; to provide for qualifications and limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SENATE BILL NO. 77—

BY SENATOR MIZELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:301(10)(i) and to enact R.S. 47:302(BB)(114), 321(P)(115), 321.1(I)(115), and 331(V)(115), relative to sales and use tax exemptions; to exempt purchases of certain school buses to be used by elementary and secondary schools from sales and use tax; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

SENATE BILL NO. 124—

BY SENATOR HEWITT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 4:3, relative to the playing or singing of the national anthem prior to certain athletic contests; to provide for requirements; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SENATE BILL NO. 126—

BY SENATORS MIZELL AND PEACOCK

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Civil Code Arts. 941, 944, and 946 and R.S. 22:901(D)(2), and to enact Code of Evidence Art. 412.6 and R.S. 22:902.1, relative to the devolution of assets of certain crime victims; to provide for public policy; to provide relative to actions to declare a successor unworthy; to provide relative to testimony and evidence in succession proceedings; to provide for devolution of the succession rights; to provide relative to life insurance policies and certain victims of domestic violence resulting in death; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

SENATE BILL NO. 139—

BY SENATOR HARRIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Art. 893.2, relative to the sentence imposed when a firearm is discharged, used, or actually possessed during the commission of certain offenses; to provide relative to the procedure for such determinations; to provide relative to the court's authority to consider certain evidence and hold a contradictory hearing in this regard; to provide that the determination of whether a firearm was discharged, used, or actually possessed during the commission of an offense is a specific finding of fact to be submitted to the jury; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

SENATE BILL NO. 186—

BY SENATOR SMITH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 930.3 and 930.8(A)(1) and to enact Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 926.2, 926.3, 930.4(G), 930.8(A)(5) and (6) and (D), and 930.10, relative to post conviction relief; to provide for a petitioner's claim of factual innocence; to provide for exceptions; to provide for evidence; to provide for appointment

of judges; to provide for motions of testing evidence; to provide for grounds for relief; to provide for burden of proof; to provide for joint motions; to provide for waiver; to provide for time limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

House and House Concurrent Resolutions Reported by Committee

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions reported by committee were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 2—

BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To provide for a hospital stabilization formula pursuant to Article VII, Section 10.13 of the Constitution of Louisiana; to establish the level and basis of hospital assessments; to establish certain reimbursement enhancements for inpatient and outpatient hospital services; to establish certain criteria for the implementation of the formula; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Appropriations.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the resolution was ordered reengrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Concurrent Resolution No. 2 was made Special Order of the Day No. 9 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 40—

BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To direct the Department of Economic Development and the State Board of Commerce and Industry to suspend the Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program under LAC 13:1 et seq. and any other tax incentives, subsidies, and other public financial support as it relates to utility scale solar projects that are not subject to review and approval by the Louisiana Public Service Commission and the council of the city of New Orleans.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Commerce to Original House Concurrent Resolution No. 40 by Representative Schexnayder

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "Development" and before "to" insert "and the State Board of Commerce and Industry"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 16, after "Development" and before "to" insert "and the State Board of Commerce and Industry"

Page 6 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 19, after "council" and before "the" change "fo" to "of"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, at the end of line 20, insert "secretary of the"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 21, after "Development" and before the period "." insert "and the chairman of the State Board of Commerce and Industry"

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Davis, the resolution, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading Reported by Committee

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading reported by committee were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE
AN ACT

Making annual appropriations for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for the ordinary expenses of the executive branch of state government, pensions, public schools, public roads, public charities, and state institutions and providing with respect to the expenditure of said appropriations.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 1 by Representative Zeringue

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, at the end of line 11, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration shall notify the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget of the initial allocation of expenditures and means of financing for the personal services expenditure category at the same time he reports initial expenditure allocations as required by R.S. 39:57.1. Any subsequent change to the allocation of expenditures or means of financing for the personal services expenditure category shall require prior approval of the commissioner of administration and the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 12, between lines 24 and 25, insert the following:

"Section 20.A. Notwithstanding any provision of law or this Act to the contrary, the commissioner of administration shall submit a monthly status report of all federal funds related to COVID-19 to the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget. The form and content of the report shall be determined by the Division of

Administration and approved by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget.

B. Notwithstanding any provision of law or this Act to the contrary, the Division of Administration shall submit a monthly report to the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget detailing each agency's prior calendar month expenditures, by category. The report shall note if an expense is a regular monthly expense, a quarterly expense, an annual expense, or a one-time expense."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 13, between lines 35 and 36, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Children's Trust Fund for reimbursement grants for child abuse and neglect programs \$ 255,414"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 15, at the end of line 13, change "5,748,707" to "5,633,707"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 15, at the end of line 19, change "5,748,707" to "5,633,707"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 15, at the end of line 21, change "5,089,152" to "4,974,152"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 15, at the end of line 25, change "5,748,707" to "5,633,707"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 16, at the end of line 36, change "101,342,722" to "85,842,722"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 17, at the end of line 13, change "772,336,740" to "756,836,740"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 17, at the end of line 26, change "59,481,287" to "58,981,287"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 17, at the end of line 32, change "613,734,336" to "598,734,336"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 17, at the end of line 34, change "752,973,888" to "737,473,888"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 18, between lines 5 and 6, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance in the Executive Administration Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$500,000.

EXPENDITURES:
Executive Administration Program
for seven (7) authorized positions

	\$ <u>684,556</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$ <u>684,556</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:
State General Fund by:

Interagency Transfers	\$ 571,336
Fees & Self-generated Revenues	\$ <u>113,220</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	\$ <u>684,556</u> "

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Executive Administration Program for school board information on the Louisiana Checkbook, in the event House Bill No. 38 of the 2021 Regular Session of the Legislature is enacted into law

\$ 317,560

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:
Executive Administration Program

	\$ <u>15,500,000</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$ <u>15,500,000</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:
State General Fund by:

Interagency Transfers	\$ 500,000
Federal Funds	\$ <u>15,000,000</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	\$ <u>15,500,000</u>

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Granting Unserved Municipalities Broadband Opportunities Fund to the Executive Administration Program for the Granting Unserved Municipalities Broadband Opportunities Program in the event that House Bill No. 642 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law

\$ 90,000,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 19, at the end of line 14, change "809,162,302" to "708,162,302"

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 19, at the end of line 21, change "815,263,449" to "714,263,449"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 19, at the end of line 39, change "793,663,402" to "692,663,402"

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 19, at the end of line 41, change "809,162,302" to "708,162,302"

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 20, between lines 7 and 8, insert the following:

"Provided, however, that of the funds appropriated for the Emergency Rental Assistance Program, the administrative costs shall not exceed 7.2% of the appropriated amount.

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the State Emergency Response Fund for emergency response

\$ 15,000,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administrative Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$696,667.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:
Administrative Program

	\$ <u>101,000,000</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$ <u>101,000,000</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:
Federal Funds

	\$ <u>101,000,000</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	\$ <u>101,000,000</u>

Payable out of Federal Funds from the Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 for the Clearing Account of the Unemployment Compensation Fund pursuant to R.S. 23:1491

\$ 400,000,000

Payable out of Federal Funds from the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 for eligible local expenditures

\$ 612,021,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 21, between lines 18 and 19, insert the following:

"Payable out of Federal Funds and one (1) authorized position to the Military Affairs Program for environmental management

\$ 140,807

Payable out of Federal Funds and one (1) authorized position to the Military Affairs Program for communications and cyber support

\$ 72,612

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Military Affairs Program for cybersecurity emergency response

\$ 500,000

Page 8 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Military Affairs Program for COVID-19 response \$ 4,045,467"

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 23, at the end of line 14, change "50,942,354" to "46,942,354"

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 23, at the end of line 30, change "67,292,608" to "63,292,608"

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 24, at the end of line 7, change "50,518,082" to "46,518,082"

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 24, at the end of line 9, change "57,363,311" to "53,363,311"

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 24, between lines 16 and 17, insert the following:

"ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES: Federal Program \$ 4,000,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 4,000,000

MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds \$ 4,000,000

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 4,000,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 24, at the end of line 29, change "33,717,853" to "31,478,436"

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 24, at the end of line 45, change "55,885,625" to "53,646,208"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 25, at the end of line 10, change "25,451,587" to "23,212,170"

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 25, at the end of line 12, change "53,935,765" to "51,696,348"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 25, between lines 19 and 20, insert the following:

"Provided, however, notwithstanding the provisions of R.S. 46:1608, of the funds appropriated herein from State General Fund (Direct) to

the Senior Centers Program, the funding amount distributed to each parish council on aging for senior centers shall be equal to the amount distributed in Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES: Title III, Title V, Title VII, and NSIP Program \$ 2,239,417

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 2,239,417

MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds \$ 2,239,417

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 2,239,417

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Title III, Title V, Title VII and NSIP Program from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act for long-term care ombudsman programs \$ 53,319

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Title III, Title V, Title VII and NSIP Program from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 for elderly protective services \$ 1,211,268

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Title III, Title V, Title VII and NSIP Program from the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021 for expanding access to COVID-19 vaccines \$ 666,493

Payable out of Federal Funds from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 to the Title III, Title V, Title VII and NSIP Program for COVID-19 vaccine outreach \$ 392,836"

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 28, after line 44, insert the following:

"EXPENDITURES: Administrative Program for three Veterans Navigators at Loyola University, Tulane University, and Dillard University \$ 48,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 48,000

MEANS OF FINANCE: State General Fund by: Interagency Transfers \$ 40,320 Fees & Self-generated Revenues \$ 7,680

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 48,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 34, between lines 15 and 16, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Elections Program for operating expenses	\$ 2,057,899
--	--------------

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Archives Program for operating expenses	\$ 170,320
--	------------

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Museum and Other Operations Program for operating expenses	\$ 1,401,998
---	--------------

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Commercial Program for a central electronic repository per HR 44 of the 2020 Second Extraordinary Session	\$ 500,000
--	------------

Provided, however, an amount not to exceed \$4,130,217 in prior year Fees and Self-generated Revenue collections shall be carried forward and shall be available for expenditure.

Provided, however, that prior to executing any contract for election equipment, hardware or software, to be paid in whole or in part with funds appropriated herein, the Secretary of State shall submit the proposed contract to the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget for review and approval."

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 35, line 24, after "Interagency Transfers" insert "from Prior and Current Year Collections"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 35, line 25, after "Fees & Self-generated Revenues" insert "from Prior and Current Year Collections"

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 35, line 45, after "Interagency Transfers" insert "from Prior and Current Year Collections"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 35, line 46, after "Fees & Self-generated Revenues" insert "from Prior and Current Year Collections"

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 40, at the end of line 29, change "(106)" to "(109)"

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 40, at the end of line 31, change "11,799,152" to "12,610,564"

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 41, at the end of line 11, change "(77)" to "(74)"

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 41, at the end of line 13, change "6,700,085" to "5,888,673"

AMENDMENT NO. 40

On page 42, between lines 38 and 39, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Wildfire Suppression Subfund to the Forestry Program for operating expenses, including 14 authorized positions	\$ 817,925"
---	-------------

AMENDMENT NO. 41

On page 46, between lines 13 and 14, insert the following:

"Provided, however, that from the monies appropriated herein from State General Fund (Direct), the amount of \$1,760,000 shall be allocated for the Economic Development Regional Awards and Matching Grant Program to support regional economic development activities across the state. Provided, further, these funds shall be distributed in the same manner as in Fiscal Year 2020-2021."

AMENDMENT NO. 42

On page 50, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

"ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19"

EXPENDITURES:

Parks and Recreation Program for permanent sewage connections at nine state parks	\$ 3,475,000
---	--------------

TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 3,475,000</u>
--------------------	---------------------

MEANS OF FINANCE:

State General Fund by:	
Statutory Dedication:	
Louisiana State Parks Improvement and Repair Fund	\$ 695,000
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 2,780,000</u>

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 3,475,000"</u>
--------------------------	----------------------

AMENDMENT NO. 43

On page 51, at the end of line 42, change "20,737,154" to "20,447,154"

AMENDMENT NO. 44

On page 52, at the end of line 9, change "26,647,975" to "26,357,975"

AMENDMENT NO. 45

On page 52, delete lines 19 and 20 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Fees & Self-generated Revenues	<u>\$26,878,090</u>	<u>\$ 25,082,459"</u>
---------------------------------	---------------------	-----------------------

Page 10 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 46

On page 52, at the end of line 22, change "25,415,675" to "25,125,675"

AMENDMENT NO. 47

On page 52, between lines 29 and 30, insert the following:

"ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

Table with 2 columns: Description and Amount. Rows include EXPENDITURES: Marketing Program (\$ 290,000), TOTAL EXPENDITURES (\$ 290,000), MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds (\$ 290,000), and TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING (\$ 290,000).

AMENDMENT NO. 48

On page 53, at the end of line 47, change "63,543,080" to "48,563,710"

AMENDMENT NO. 49

On page 54, at the end of line 31, change "602,617,656" to "587,638,286"

AMENDMENT NO. 50

On page 55, at the end of line 18, change "36,394,773" to "21,415,403"

AMENDMENT NO. 51

On page 55, at the end of line 20, change "499,168,583" to "484,189,213"

AMENDMENT NO. 52

On page 55, between lines 27 and 28, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Operations Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by \$973,023 in the event that House Bill No. 347 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law.

Table with 2 columns: Description and Amount. Row: Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operations Program for infrastructure improvements \$ 1,800,000

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

Table with 2 columns: Description and Amount. Rows include EXPENDITURES: Office of Planning (\$ 14,979,370), TOTAL EXPENDITURES (\$ 14,979,370), MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds (\$ 14,979,370), and TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING (\$ 14,979,370).

AMENDMENT NO. 53

On page 55, delete lines 39 through 45 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof:

"Provided, however, that the department shall submit a monthly status report to the commissioner of administration and the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget, which format shall be determined by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget. Provided, further, that this report shall be submitted via letter and shall include, but is not limited to, actual and projected expenditures by agency by object code and projections of offender population and expenditures for Corrections Services and Local Housing of State Adult Offenders."

AMENDMENT NO. 54

On page 58, between lines 26 and 27, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Incarceration Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$105,266."

AMENDMENT NO. 55

On page 63, between lines 35 and 36, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Incarceration Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$50,121."

AMENDMENT NO. 56

On page 67, between lines 7 and 8, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administration and Support Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$100,655."

AMENDMENT NO. 57

On page 71, between lines 10 and 11, insert the following:

Table with 2 columns: Description and Amount. Row: Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operational Support Program for sexual assault tracking system needs in the event that House Bill No. 433 of the 2021 Regular Session of the Legislature is enacted into law \$ 162,834"

AMENDMENT NO. 58

On page 72, at the end of line 13, change "(156)" to "(163)"

AMENDMENT NO. 59

On page 73, between lines 12 and 13, insert the following:

Table with 2 columns: Description and Amount. Row: Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Louisiana Fire Marshal Fund to the Fire Prevention Program for operating expenses \$ 2,000,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 60

On page 78, between lines 22 and 23, insert the following:

"Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no hospital supplemental payment methodology plan other than those in effect July 1, 2020 shall be submitted to the Centers for Medicare and

Medicaid Services without prior review and approval by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget. The department shall additionally include a list of all hospitals with the dollar amount each is projected to receive under the proposed methodology and the percentage of the average commercial rate each hospital is projected to receive in total, summarized by hospital system. Also, the department shall include a certification that all intergovernmental transfers utilized to fund the proposed plan meet all federal requirements. Also, the department shall include a list of all hospitals that will receive no enhancements in this methodology. Also, the department shall include comparisons of the current proposal with payments under the payment methodology utilized by Medicare for each hospital. Also, the department shall include a comparison of the proposed methodology with the amounts paid in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to each hospital."

AMENDMENT NO. 61

On page 80, between lines 31 and 32, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Capital Area Human Services District for lease payments	\$ 363,936"
---	-------------

AMENDMENT NO. 62

On page 82, at the end of line 11, change "(1,017)" to "(1,015)"

AMENDMENT NO. 63

On page 82, at the end of line 13, change "215,597,354" to "215,467,004"

AMENDMENT NO. 64

On page 82, at the end of line 18, change "443,926,631" to "443,796,281"

AMENDMENT NO. 65

On page 82, at the end of line 31, change "48,274,687" to "48,144,337"

AMENDMENT NO. 66

On page 82, at the end of line 40, change "215,597,354" to "215,467,004"

AMENDMENT NO. 67

On page 82, after line 47, insert the following:

"EXPENDITURES:	
Medical Vendor Administration Program for implementation costs of dental coverage for individuals with developmental disabilities, including one (1) authorized position, in the event House Bill No. 172 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law	\$ 584,704
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 584,704</u>
MEANS OF FINANCE:	
State General Fund (Direct)	\$ 292,352
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 292,352</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 584,704"</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 68

On page 83, at the end of line 6, change "7,726,096,925" to "7,411,987,558"

AMENDMENT NO. 69

On page 83, at the end of line 33, change "15,699,826,772" to "15,385,717,405"

AMENDMENT NO. 70

On page 84, at the end of line 12, change "7,434,947,486" to "7,120,838,119"

AMENDMENT NO. 71

On page 84, at the end of line 14, change "8,992,186,758" to "8,678,077,391"

AMENDMENT NO. 72

On page 84, between lines 37 and 38, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$23,837,258.

EXPENDITURES:	
Payments to Private Providers Program for five hundred additional Community Choice Waiver slots	\$ 5,819,966
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 5,819,966</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:	
State General Fund (Direct)	\$ 1,883,923
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 3,936,043</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 5,819,966</u>

**ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO
COVID-19**

EXPENDITURES:	
Payments to Private Providers Program	\$314,109,367
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$314,109,367</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:	
Federal Funds	\$314,109,367
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$314,109,367"</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 73

On page 84, at the end of line 43, change "68,187,307" to "67,613,389"

AMENDMENT NO. 74

On page 84, at the end of line 48, change "90,873,645" to "90,299,727"

AMENDMENT NO. 75

On page 85, at the end of line 21, change "19,268,125" to "18,694,207"

AMENDMENT NO. 76

On page 85, at the end of line 23, change "68,187,307" to "67,613,389"

Page 12 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 77

On page 85, between lines 30 and 31, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Management and Finance Program for the Mary Bird Perkins Cancer Center to provide cancer screenings with mobile screening units \$ 250,000

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES: Management and Finance Program \$ 573,918 TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 573,918

MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds \$ 573,918 TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 573,918

AMENDMENT NO. 78

On page 87, at the end of line 27, change "18,938,530" to "18,190,886"

AMENDMENT NO. 79

On page 87, at the end of line 38, change "59,390,226" to "58,642,582"

AMENDMENT NO. 80

On page 88, at the end of line 14, change "23,795,479" to "23,047,835"

AMENDMENT NO. 81

On page 88, at the end of line 22, change "30,085,066" to "29,337,422"

AMENDMENT NO. 82

On page 88, between lines 29 and 30, insert the following:

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

Payable out of Federal Funds from the CARES Act to the Villa Feliciana Medical Complex Program for construction of a visitors pavilion \$ 440,500"

AMENDMENT NO. 83

On page 90, at the end of line 13, change "500,502,769" to "326,810,650"

AMENDMENT NO. 84

On page 90, at the end of line 30, change "564,064,483" to "390,372,364"

AMENDMENT NO. 85

On page 91, at the end of line 6, change "422,963,375" to "249,271,256"

AMENDMENT NO. 86

On page 91, at the end of line 8, change "500,502,769" to "326,810,650"

AMENDMENT NO. 87

On page 91, between lines 15 and 16, insert the following:

"EXPENDITURES: Public Health Services Program for newborn screening of mucopolysaccharidosis type I and glycogen storage disorder type II, in the event House Bill No. 316 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law \$ 440,250

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 440,250

MEANS OF FINANCE: State General Fund (Direct) \$ 187,717 Federal Funds \$ 252,533

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 440,250

EXPENDITURES: Public Health Services Program for reimbursements from Medicaid and Medicare plans for COVID-19 testing in OPH labs \$ 4,213,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 4,213,000

MEANS OF FINANCE: State General Fund by: Interagency Transfers \$ 513,000 Fees & Self-generated Revenues \$ 3,700,000

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 4,213,000

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES: Public Health Services Program \$173,692,119

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$173,692,119

MEANS OF FINANCE: Federal Funds \$173,692,119

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$173,692,119

Payable out of Federal Funds from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 to the Public Health Services Program to enhance and expand lab capacity for developing, purchasing, administering, processing, and analyzing COVID-19 tests \$125,761,103

Payable out of Federal Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to the Public Health Services Program for enhancing access and distribution activities for the COVID-19 vaccine \$ 43,232,059

Payable out of Federal Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to the Public Health Services Program for COVID-19 screening and testing of teachers, staff, and students \$105,014,547

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Fund to the Public Health Services Program for the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Program in the event that House Bill No. 642 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law \$300,000,000

Provided, however, that no funding appropriated herein for the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Program shall be expended without prior review and approval by the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget."

AMENDMENT NO. 88

On page 91, at the end of line 23, change "85,398,809" to "74,848,447"

AMENDMENT NO. 89

On page 91, at the end of line 43, change "283,145,371" to "272,595,009"

AMENDMENT NO. 90

On page 92, at the end of line 17, change "68,142,448" to "57,592,086"

AMENDMENT NO. 91

On page 92, at the end of line 19, change "128,977,232" to "118,426,870"

AMENDMENT NO. 92

On page 92, between lines 26 and 27, insert the following:

"Payable out of Federal Funds to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for the Crisis Counseling Program Hurricane Laura Grant to address disaster-related behavioral health needs associated with Hurricane Laura \$ 2,000,000

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for COVID emergency relief funding for the Community Mental Health Services Block Grant to provide community mental health services to adults with serious mental illness or children with serious emotional disturbance \$ 6,667,891

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community

Oversight Program for COVID-19 emergency relief funding for the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant for prevention, intervention, treatment, recovery support, and infrastructure activities \$ 12,403,739

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline 9-8-8 State Planning Grant Initiative \$ 116,345

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for the Transformation Transfer Initiative Grant to research and develop a model of triage, dispatch, and data collection and reporting for mobile crisis services \$ 157,500

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Hospital Based Treatment Program for the Zero Suicide Initiative to implement suicide prevention and intervention programs for individuals who are 25 years of age or older \$ 150,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Hospital Based Treatment Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$1,800,000.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:
Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program \$ 10,550,362

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 10,550,362

MEANS OF FINANCE:
Federal Funds \$ 10,550,362

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 10,550,362

Payable out of State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the State Coronavirus Relief Fund from federal CARES Act funds to the Hospital Based Treatment Program for eligible expenses \$ 1,800,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 93

On page 94, between lines 15 and 16, insert the following:
"EXPENDITURES:

Page 14 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Administration and General Support Program for two (2) additional authorized positions for the implementation of Act 421 of the 2019 Regular Session	\$ 260,700
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 260,700</u>
MEANS OF FINANCE:	
State General Fund (Direct)	\$ 130,350
State General Fund by:	
Interagency Transfers	<u>\$ 130,350</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 260,700</u>
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 94</u>	
On page 97, at the end of line 17, change "48,554,706" to "42,215,631"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 95</u>	
On page 97, at the end of line 28, change "251,497,265" to "236,303,481"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 96</u>	
On page 97, at the end of line 43, change "789,405,267" to "767,872,408"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 97</u>	
On page 98, at the end of line 21, change "279,472,464" to "257,939,605"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 98</u>	
On page 98, at the end of line 23, change "428,872,403" to "407,339,544"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 99</u>	
On page 98, between lines 30 and 31, insert the following:	
"Payable out of Federal Funds to the Division of Family Support, including seven (7) additional authorized positions, for the Noncustodial Parents Workforce Development Program	\$ 854,657
Payable out of Federal Funds to the Division of Family Support and an additional fourteen (14) authorized positions for the Child Support Enforcement Arrears Unit	\$ 1,452,085
EXPENDITURES:	
Division of Child Welfare Program for increases to foster care board rates, adoption subsidies, and guardianship subsidies	<u>\$ 11,946,139</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 11,946,139</u>
MEANS OF FINANCE:	
State General Fund (Direct)	\$ 6,349,595
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 5,596,544</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 11,946,139</u>

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Division of Child Welfare Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$466,569.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:	
Division of Child Welfare	\$ 6,339,075
Division of Family Support	<u>\$ 15,193,784</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 21,532,859</u>
MEANS OF FINANCE:	
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 21,532,859</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 21,532,859</u>
Payable out of Federal Funds from the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 and the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to the Division of Management and Finance for COVID-19 relief assistance initiatives administration	
	\$ 374,595"
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 100</u>	
On page 102, between lines 29 and 30, insert the following:	
"Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Coastal Resources Trust Fund to the Coastal Management Program to complete eligible beneficial use projects	\$ 5,000,000"
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 101</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 19, change "(20)" to "(0)"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 102</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 20, change "389,453" to "0"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 103</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 21, change "1,961,593" to "0"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 104</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 26, change "112,578,767" to "110,227,721"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 105</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 31, change "21,143,020" to "20,753,567"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 106</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 37, change "21,209,083" to "20,819,630"	
<u>AMENDMENT NO. 107</u>	
On page 103, at the end of line 42, change "90,455,803" to "88,494,210"	

AMENDMENT NO. 108

On page 103, at the end of line 48, change "91,369,684" to "89,408,091"

AMENDMENT NO. 109

On page 107, at the end of line 45, change "36,661,151" to "29,161,151"

AMENDMENT NO. 110

On page 108, at the end of line 24, change "297,266,847" to "289,766,847"

AMENDMENT NO. 111

On page 109, at the end of line 4, change "147,989,916" to "140,489,916"

AMENDMENT NO. 112

On page 109, at the end of line 6, change "272,110,996" to "264,610,996"

AMENDMENT NO. 113

On page 109, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19"

EXPENDITURES:	
Office of Unemployment Insurance Administration	\$ 7,500,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 7,500,000</u>
MEANS OF FINANCE:	
Federal Funds	\$ 7,500,000
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 7,500,000</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 114

On page 112, at the end of line 46, change "43,610,180" to "43,271,552"

AMENDMENT NO. 115

On page 112, at the end of line 50, change "50,195,558" to "49,856,930"

AMENDMENT NO. 116

On page 113, at the end of line 28, change "8,237,483" to "7,898,855"

AMENDMENT NO. 117

On page 113, at the end of line 30, change "43,610,180" to "43,271,552"

AMENDMENT NO. 118

On page 113, between lines 37 and 38, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority to the Fisheries

Program for the implementation of the Oyster Management and Rehabilitation Strategic Plan	\$ 3,850,000
---	--------------

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority to the Fisheries Program for the implementation of the Louisiana Trustee Implementation Group Restoration Plan/Environmental Assessment #5 Oyster Projects	\$ 2,500,000
---	--------------

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:	
Fisheries Program	\$ 338,628
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 338,628</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:	
Federal Funds	\$ 338,628
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 338,628</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 119

On page 118, delete lines 5 through 30 in their entirety and insert the following in lieu thereof:

"In accordance with Article VIII, Section 12 of the Constitution, and in acknowledgment of the responsibilities which are vested in the management boards of postsecondary education, all appropriations for postsecondary education institutions which are part of a university or college system are made to their respective management boards and shall be administered by the same management boards and used solely as provided by law.

Considering the recommendations provided by the formula and plan adopted by the Board of Regents, monies shall be allocated to each postsecondary education institution within each postsecondary education system as provided herein. In order to effectively utilize the appropriation authority provided herein, allocations to institutions within each system may be adjusted by each management board as authorized for program transfers in accordance with R.S. 17:3351 and 39:73 as long as the total system appropriation remains unchanged.

The distribution shall be implemented by the Division of Administration. All key and supporting performance objectives and indicators for the higher education agencies shall be adjusted to reflect the funds received pursuant to this Act."

AMENDMENT NO. 120

On page 118, at the end of line 40, change "308,528,370" to "2,232,496"

AMENDMENT NO. 121

On page 118, at the end of line 41, change "877,013,364" to "61,263,739"

AMENDMENT NO. 122

On page 118, at the end of line 48, change "0" to "2,393,842"

AMENDMENT NO. 123

On page 118, at the end of line 49, change "94,608,748" to "421,035,456"

Page 16 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 124

On page 119, at the end of line 14, change "0" to "814,082"

AMENDMENT NO. 125

On page 119, at the end of line 15, change "9,411,654" to "12,671,197"

AMENDMENT NO. 126

On page 119, at the end of line 26, change "1,293,692,136" to "504,540,812"

AMENDMENT NO. 127

On page 119, at the end of line 28, change "308,528,370" to "5,440,420"

AMENDMENT NO. 128

On page 119, at the end of line 30, change "308,528,370" to "5,440,420"

AMENDMENT NO. 129

On page 119, at the end of line 32, change "830,384,047" to "344,320,673"

AMENDMENT NO. 130

On page 119, at the end of line 52, change "985,163,766" to "499,100,392"

AMENDMENT NO. 131

On page 120, delete lines 46 through 50 in their entirety and on page 121, delete lines 1 through 13 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 132

On page 121, between lines 18 and 19, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Board of Regents for distribution as determined by the Louisiana Health Works Commission to higher education institutions for the limited and specific purpose of increasing the number of students admitted to and graduating from CNA, LPN, ASN, BSN, MSN, and DNP programs of study

\$ 1,000,000

Provided, however, where applicable private industry may provide a dollar-for-dollar match for the State General Fund (Direct) appropriated herein for the limited and specific purpose of increasing the number of students admitted to and graduating from CNA, LPN, ASN, BSN, MSN, and DNP programs of study."

AMENDMENT NO. 133

On page 121, delete lines 20 through 22 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 134

On page 121, at the end of line 26, change "0" to "136,784,209"

AMENDMENT NO. 135

On page 121, at the end of line 27, change "734,197,137" to "974,181,182"

AMENDMENT NO. 136

On page 121, at the end of line 28, change "734,197,137" to "1,110,965,391"

AMENDMENT NO. 137

On page 121, at the end of line 30, change "0" to "136,784,209"

AMENDMENT NO. 138

On page 121, at the end of line 32, change "0" to "136,784,209"

AMENDMENT NO. 139

On page 121, at the end of line 34, change "0" to "239,984,045"

AMENDMENT NO. 140

On page 121, at the end of line 50, change "734,197,137" to "974,181,182"

AMENDMENT NO. 141

On page 122, between lines 5 and 6, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University A&M College Laboratory School

\$ 150,847

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University - Agricultural Center

\$ 3,600,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 142

On page 122, at the end of line 10, change "0" to "71,622,446"

AMENDMENT NO. 143

On page 122, at the end of line 11, change "517,704,095" to "564,100,978"

AMENDMENT NO. 144

On page 122, at the end of line 26, change "0" to "3,321,098"

AMENDMENT NO. 145

On page 122, at the end of line 27, change "22,006,409" to "24,523,708"

AMENDMENT NO. 146

On page 122, at the end of line 36, change "0" to "19,971,838"

AMENDMENT NO. 147

On page 122, at the end of line 37, change "71,144,283" to "131,794,297"

AMENDMENT NO. 148

On page 123, at the end of line 4, change "0" to "12,864,629"

AMENDMENT NO. 149

On page 123, at the end of line 5, change "31,614,893" to "78,578,864"

AMENDMENT NO. 150

On page 123, at the end of line 22, change "0" to "1,584,670"

AMENDMENT NO. 151

On page 123, at the end of line 23, change "10,834,438" to "14,203,258"

AMENDMENT NO. 152

On page 123, at the end of line 36, change "0" to "3,884,837"

AMENDMENT NO. 153

On page 123, at the end of line 37, change "56,515,466" to "62,858,336"

AMENDMENT NO. 154

On page 123, at the end of line 50, change "0" to "17,040,009"

AMENDMENT NO. 155

On page 123, at the end of line 51, change "23,454,282" to "80,071,280"

AMENDMENT NO. 156

On page 124, at the end of line 9, change "0" to "6,494,682"

AMENDMENT NO. 157

On page 124, at the end of line 10, change "923,271" to "18,050,461"

AMENDMENT NO. 158

On page 124, delete lines 22 through 24 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 159

On page 124, at the end of line 28, change "0" to "21,769,658"

AMENDMENT NO. 160

On page 124, at the end of line 29, change "115,795,914" to "139,085,731"

AMENDMENT NO. 161

On page 124, at the end of line 30, change "115,795,914" to "160,855,389"

AMENDMENT NO. 162

On page 124, at the end of line 32, change "0" to "21,769,658"

AMENDMENT NO. 163

On page 124, at the end of line 34, change "0" to "21,769,658"

AMENDMENT NO. 164

On page 124, at the end of line 36, change "0" to "23,289,817"

AMENDMENT NO. 165

On page 124, at the end of line 50, change "115,795,914" to "139,085,731"

AMENDMENT NO. 166

On page 124, after line 50, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State
General Fund by Interagency
Transfers from the Minimum
Foundation Program to the
Southern University Board of
Supervisors for the Southern
University - Agricultural &
Mechanical College Laboratory
School \$ 841,307"

AMENDMENT NO. 167

On page 125, at the end of line 5, change "0" to "469,686"

AMENDMENT NO. 168

On page 125, at the end of line 6, change "0" to "2,853,690"

AMENDMENT NO. 169

On page 125, at the end of line 26, change "0" to "13,630,350"

AMENDMENT NO. 170

On page 125, at the end of line 27, change "66,753,257" to "73,351,538"

AMENDMENT NO. 171

On page 125, at the end of line 38, change "0" to "2,079,791"

AMENDMENT NO. 172

On page 125, at the end of line 39, change "17,991,958" to "20,339,426"

AMENDMENT NO. 173

On page 125, at the end of line 49, change "0" to "2,551,507"

AMENDMENT NO. 174

On page 125, at the end of line 50, change "15,435,152" to "19,735,177"

AMENDMENT NO. 175

On page 126, at the end of line 13, change "0" to "1,954,003"

AMENDMENT NO. 176

On page 126, at the end of line 14, change "10,165,461" to "14,023,896"

Page 18 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 177

On page 126, at the end of line 25, change "0" to "1,084,321"

AMENDMENT NO. 178

On page 126, at the end of line 26, change "5,450,086" to "8,782,004"

AMENDMENT NO. 179

On page 126, delete lines 38 through 40 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 180

On page 126, at the end of line 44, change "0" to "123,910,980"

AMENDMENT NO. 181

On page 126, at the end of line 45, change "688,333,983" to "799,995,321"

AMENDMENT NO. 182

On page 126, at the end of line 46, change "688,333,983" to "923,906,301"

AMENDMENT NO. 183

On page 126, at the end of line 48, change "0" to "123,910,980"

AMENDMENT NO. 184

On page 126, at the end of line 50, change "0" to "123,910,980"

AMENDMENT NO. 185

On page 127, at the end of line 2, change "0" to "111,661,338"

AMENDMENT NO. 186

On page 127, at the end of line 12, change "688,333,983" to "799,995,321"

AMENDMENT NO. 187

On page 127, at the end of line 17, change "0" to "816,585"

AMENDMENT NO. 188

On page 127, at the end of line 18, change "2,814,000" to "3,032,420"

AMENDMENT NO. 189

On page 127, at the end of line 38, change "0" to "10,798,827"

AMENDMENT NO. 190

On page 127, at the end of line 39, change "45,990,866" to "50,292,935"

AMENDMENT NO. 191

On page 128, at the end of line 5, change "0" to "6,260,971"

AMENDMENT NO. 192

On page 128, at the end of line 6, change "37,331,431" to "45,198,024"

AMENDMENT NO. 193

On page 128, at the end of line 21, change "0" to "15,172,792"

AMENDMENT NO. 194

On page 128, at the end of line 22, change "104,986,004" to "119,418,536"

AMENDMENT NO. 195

On page 128, at the end of line 39, change "0" to "6,787,599"

AMENDMENT NO. 196

On page 128, at the end of line 40, change "55,967,945" to "67,073,793"

AMENDMENT NO. 197

On page 129, at the end of line 3, change "0" to "13,544,034"

AMENDMENT NO. 198

On page 129, at the end of line 4, change "69,783,530" to "84,336,468"

AMENDMENT NO. 199

On page 129, at the end of line 19, change "0" to "10,475,922"

AMENDMENT NO. 200

On page 129, at the end of line 20, change "61,702,981" to "74,077,191"

AMENDMENT NO. 201

On page 129, at the end of line 37, change "0" to "19,199,646"

AMENDMENT NO. 202

On page 129, at the end of line 38, change "98,578,632" to "108,271,985"

AMENDMENT NO. 203

On page 130, at the end of line 3, change "0" to "28,097,586"

AMENDMENT NO. 204

On page 130, at the end of line 4, change "139,322,787" to "163,854,477"

AMENDMENT NO. 205

On page 130, at the end of line 21, change "0" to "12,757,018"

AMENDMENT NO. 206

On page 130, at the end of line 22, change "71,855,807" to "84,439,492"

AMENDMENT NO. 207

On page 130, delete lines 39 through 42 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 208

On page 130, at the end of line 47, change "0" to "52,285,868"

AMENDMENT NO. 209

On page 130, at the end of line 48, change "187,588,636" to "267,054,045"

AMENDMENT NO. 210

On page 130, at the end of line 49, change "187,588,636" to "319,339,913"

AMENDMENT NO. 211

On page 131, at the end of line 2, change "0" to "52,285,868"

AMENDMENT NO. 212

On page 131, at the end of line 4, change "0" to "52,285,868"

AMENDMENT NO. 213

On page 131, at the end of line 6, change "0" to "79,465,409"

AMENDMENT NO. 214

On page 131, at the end of line 17, change "187,588,636" to "267,054,045"

AMENDMENT NO. 215

On page 131, at the end of line 24, change "0" to "2,903,487"

AMENDMENT NO. 216

On page 131, at the end of line 25, change "0" to "1,456,252"

AMENDMENT NO. 217

On page 131, at the end of line 34, change "0" to "4,646,021"

AMENDMENT NO. 218

On page 131, at the end of line 35, change "23,517,458" to "34,244,240"

AMENDMENT NO. 219

On page 132, at the end of line 3, change "0" to "17,428,207"

AMENDMENT NO. 220

On page 132, at the end of line 4, change "51,251,991" to "61,549,074"

AMENDMENT NO. 221

On page 132, at the end of line 13, change "0" to "1,645,776"

AMENDMENT NO. 222

On page 132, at the end of line 14, change "6,320,845" to "9,476,579"

AMENDMENT NO. 223

On page 132, at the end of line 25, change "0" to "4,869,603"

AMENDMENT NO. 224

On page 132, at the end of line 26, change "19,313,211" to "27,126,773"

AMENDMENT NO. 225

On page 132, at the end of line 35, change "0" to "5,434,491"

AMENDMENT NO. 226

On page 132, at the end of line 36, change "18,367,349" to "28,090,518"

AMENDMENT NO. 227

On page 132, at the end of line 45, change "0" to "1,679,262"

AMENDMENT NO. 228

On page 132, at the end of line 46, change "9,794,393" to "14,395,046"

AMENDMENT NO. 229

On page 133, at the end of line 9, change "0" to "2,400,349"

AMENDMENT NO. 230

On page 133, at the end of line 10, change "10,902,944" to "16,747,979"

AMENDMENT NO. 231

On page 133, at the end of line 21, change "0" to "1,577,282"

AMENDMENT NO. 232

On page 133, at the end of line 22, change "3,730,301" to "6,922,532"

AMENDMENT NO. 233

On page 133, at the end of line 32, change "0" to "2,794,062"

AMENDMENT NO. 234

On page 133, at the end of line 33, change "11,235,913" to "17,591,538"

AMENDMENT NO. 235

On page 133, at the end of line 44, change "0" to "1,801,640"

AMENDMENT NO. 236

On page 133, at the end of line 45, change "7,567,261" to "10,716,235"

AMENDMENT NO. 237

On page 134, at the end of line 3, change "0" to "2,384,783"

AMENDMENT NO. 238

On page 134, at the end of line 4, change "9,975,296" to "15,229,789"

AMENDMENT NO. 239

On page 134, at the end of line 17, change "0" to "2,720,905"

AMENDMENT NO. 240

On page 134, at the end of line 18, change "5,611,674" to "9,392,399"

Page 20 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 241

On page 134, at the end of line 33, change "0" to "1,245,091"

AMENDMENT NO. 242

On page 135, at the end of line 4, change "0" to "2,870,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 243

On page 136, delete lines 37 and 38 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Fees & Self-generated Revenues \$109,745 \$ 39,745"

AMENDMENT NO. 244

On page 141, at the end of line 42, change "312,776,933" to "124,428,696"

AMENDMENT NO. 245

On page 142, at the end of line 12, change "345,768,082" to "157,419,845"

AMENDMENT NO. 246

On page 142, at the end of line 26, change "14,018,285" to "11,868,285"

AMENDMENT NO. 247

On page 142, at the end of line 30, change "287,874,859" to "101,676,622"

AMENDMENT NO. 248

On page 142, at the end of line 32, change "329,601,203" to "141,252,966"

AMENDMENT NO. 249

On page 142, between lines 39 and 40, insert the following:

"Provided, however, that of the funds appropriated herein to the District Support Program, an amount of \$630,000 shall be allocated for Keep Louisiana Beautiful.

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:	
District Support Program	<u>\$188,348,237</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$188,348,237</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:	
State General Fund by:	
Interagency Transfers	\$ 2,150,000
Federal Funds	<u>\$186,198,237</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$188,348,237</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 250

On page 143, at the end of line 8, change "2,324,990,758" to "1,299,645,323"

AMENDMENT NO. 251

On page 143, at the end of line 13, change "2,478,545,083" to "1,453,199,648"

AMENDMENT NO. 252

On page 143, at the end of line 26, change "2,315,840,097" to "1,290,494,662"

AMENDMENT NO. 253

On page 143, at the end of line 28, change "2,463,532,279" to "1,438,186,844"

AMENDMENT NO. 254

On page 143, between lines 35 and 36, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Non-Federal Support Program for city and parish school systems and other public schools for the purchase of instructional materials and supplies for each student enrolled in a vocational agriculture, agribusiness, or agriscience course, as of October 1, 2021. Local city parish school systems and other public schools may match the dollars provided, herein

\$ 650,000

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

EXPENDITURES:	
Federal Support Program	<u>\$ 1,025,345,435</u>
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	<u>\$ 1,025,345,435</u>

MEANS OF FINANCE:	
Federal Funds	<u>\$ 1,025,345,435</u>
TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING	<u>\$ 1,025,345,435</u>

AMENDMENT NO. 255

On page 145, at the end of line 6, change "3,516,584,229" to "3,515,211,847"

AMENDMENT NO. 256

On page 145, at the end of line 12, change "296,131,014" to "297,503,396"

AMENDMENT NO. 257

On page 145, line 21, delete "\$5,105,090" and insert "\$5,128,337"

AMENDMENT NO. 258

On page 145, between lines 29 and 30, insert the following:

"The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Minimum Foundation Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by \$77,195,799.

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Minimum Foundation Program to provide

an across-the-board \$800 certificated teacher pay raise and the associated employer retirement contribution for K-12 classroom educators and other certificated personnel \$ 59,844,444

Provided, however, that for purposes of determining the use of these funds, certificated personnel are defined per the Louisiana Department of Education Bulletin 1929 to include: teachers (all function codes 1000-2200s, object code 112); therapists/specialists/counselors (function codes 1000-2200s, object code 113); school site-based principals, assistant principals, and other school administrators (function code 2400s, object code 111); central office certificated administrators (function codes 1000-2200 and 2324, 2831, and 2832 (excluding 2130s), object code 111); school nurses (function code 2134, object code 118); and sabbaticals (function codes 1000-2200s, 2134, and 2400s, object code 140).

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Minimum Foundation Program to provide an across-the-board \$400 pay raise and the associated employer retirement contribution for non-certificated personnel \$ 19,679,898

Provided, however, that for purposes of determining the use of these funds, non-certificated personnel are defined per the Louisiana Department of Education Bulletin 1929 to include: aides (function codes 1000-4900s, object code 115); support supervisors (function codes 2130s, 2300s (excluding 2311, 2321, 2324, 2831, and 2832) and 2500-4900s, object code 111); clerical/secretarial (function codes 1000-4900s, object code 114); service workers (function codes 1000-4900s, object code 116); skilled craftsmen (function codes 1000-4900s, object code 117); degreed professionals (function codes 1000-4900s, (excluding 2134s), object code 118); and other personnel (function codes 1000-4900s, object codes 100,110, and 119)."

AMENDMENT NO. 259

On page 147, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"Provided, however that of the funds appropriated to the Instruction Program, the amount of \$400,000 shall be allocated for the provision of instruction and related services for students at River Oaks Hospital in New Orleans and Brentwood Hospital in Shreveport.

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Instruction Program for operating expenses \$ 600,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 260

On page 156, between lines 31 and 32, insert the following:

"Provided, however, that in the event that the monies in the Jefferson Parish Convention Center Fund exceed \$1,200,000 for FY 2021-2022, at least \$1,200,000 shall be allocated for the purposes provided for in R.S. 47:322.34 and 332.1.

Provided further, out of the remaining monies appropriated herein out of the Jefferson Parish Convention Center Fund, \$350,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the Jefferson Performing Arts Society - East Bank, \$250,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the Jefferson Performing Arts Society - city of Westwego, \$100,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Westwego for the Westwego Farmers and Fisherman's Market, \$50,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Westwego for improvements to Sala Avenue, \$25,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city

of Westwego for the Creative Arts Center, \$30,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Westwego for Westwego Fest, \$250,000 shall be allocated and distributed to Jefferson Parish for FORE Kids Foundation for Zurich Classic, \$75,000 shall be allocated and distributed to Jefferson Parish for the Allstate Sugar Bowl Basketball Tournament, \$150,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Westwego for the WHARF project, \$250,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Gretna for the Marketing Program for the Gretna Heritage Festival, \$250,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the city of Gretna - Heritage Festival, \$135,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the Jefferson Parish Council for the New Growth Economic Development Association, \$200,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the Jefferson Parish Council for Hope Haven Festival Park Improvements, \$25,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the Jefferson Parish Council for the Louisiana Crawfish Boiling Championships, and \$25,000 shall be allocated and distributed to the town of Jean Lafitte for the Lafitte Fisheries Market. If the remaining monies in the fund are insufficient to fully fund the allocations provided for in this paragraph after fulfilling any other requirement of this Act, then the allocations provided for in this paragraph shall each receive a pro rata share of the monies available.

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the St. Charles Parish Enterprise Fund to the St. Charles Parish Council for the extension of Judge Edward Dufresne Parkway \$ 750,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 261

On page 157, between lines 18 and 19, insert the following:

"Provided, however, that out of the funds allocated under the Parish Transportation Program (R.S. 48:751-756(A)(1)) to Jefferson Parish, the funds shall be allocated directly to the following municipalities in the amounts listed:

Kenner	\$ 206,400
Gretna	\$ 168,000
Westwego	\$ 168,000
Harahan	\$ 168,000
Jean Lafitte	\$ 168,000
Grand Isle	\$ 168,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 262

On page 167, between lines 11 and 12, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Regional Maintenance and Improvement Fund to Jefferson Parish for maintenance, improvements, and lighting along the Westbank Expressway US 90 Business corridor in the event that House Bill No. 347 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law and to the extent such funds are recognized by the Revenue Estimating Conference \$ 2,923,023

ADDITIONAL FEDERAL FUNDING RELATED TO COVID-19

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Louisiana Loggers Relief Fund to the

Miscellaneous Aid Program for the Louisiana Loggers Relief Program in the event that House Bill No. 642 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law

\$ 10,000,000

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Louisiana Save Our Screens Fund to the Miscellaneous Aid Program for the Louisiana Save Our Screens Program in the event that House Bill No. 642 of the 2021 Regular Session is enacted into law

\$ 4,500,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 263

On page 169, line 32, change "Section 20." to "Section 21."

AMENDMENT NO. 264

On page 181, line 45, change "Section 21." to "Section 22."

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 1 was made Special Order of the Day No. 2 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 7—

BY REPRESENTATIVES FREEMAN, FREIBERG, GREEN, MARCELLE, AND MOORE AND SENATOR BARROW
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:302(BB)(114), 305.75, 321(P)(115), 321.1(I)(115) and 331(V)(115) and to repeal R.S. 47:337.10.2(C), relative to sales and use tax exemptions; to provide for a state sales and use tax exemption for certain purchases of feminine hygiene products; to provide for a state sales and use tax exemption for certain purchases of diapers; to provide for definitions; to provide for the effectiveness of the optional local sales and use tax exemption for certain purchases of feminine hygiene products and diapers; to provide for certain requirements and limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Ways and Means.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 44—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DEVILLIER
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:388(B)(4)(b)(xv), relative to construction aggregates; to expand the definition of "construction aggregates" to include dirt; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 131—

BY REPRESENTATIVE COUSSAN
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:6042, relative to income tax credits; to establish an income tax credit for certain donations to certain educational institutions; to provide for definitions; to provide for the amount of the credit; to provide for requirements and limitations; to authorize the promulgation of rules; to provide for termination of the credit; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Ways and Means.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Ways and Means to Original House Bill No. 131 by Representative Coussan

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "rules;" and before "to provide for applicability;" insert "to provide for termination of the credit;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the end of line 11, insert "referred to in this Section as"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 12, after "in Louisiana" delete the period "." and insert "or for amounts donated and utilized by an educational institution to purchase property."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line at the end of line 14, delete "The" and insert "For donations of property, the"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 19, after "value." and before "The" insert the following:

"For amounts donated and utilized to purchase property, the amount of the credit shall be equal to twenty-nine percent of the amount donated."

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, at the beginning of line 1, delete "C.(1)" and insert "C.(1)(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, between lines 7 and 8, insert the following:

"(b) For donations of amounts utilized to purchase property, only amounts donated to an established technology fund at the educational institution shall qualify for the credit authorized in this Section. The purpose of the technology fund as established by the educational institution shall be limited to the purchase of property used exclusively in research, research training, or direct education of students."

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, at the beginning of line 8, delete "(2)" and insert "(2)(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, between lines 16 and 17, insert the following:

"(b) For amounts donated and utilized to purchase property, the educational institution shall furnish a certification of the amount donated which shall include the date and amount donated to be utilized for the purchase of property. When claiming the credit authorized in this Section, the donor shall attach the certification to the income tax return filed with the Department of Revenue."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 4, between lines 3 and 4, insert the following:

"E. No credits shall be allowed pursuant to the provisions of this Section on or after January 1, 2027."

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 143—

BY REPRESENTATIVES WILLARD AND HILFERTY
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article VII, Section 18(F)(2)(a)(introductory paragraph) and to add Article VII, Section 18(F)(3) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to ad valorem taxation; to limit the amount of an increase in the assessed value of certain property following reappraisal in Orleans Parish; to provide for certain limitations; to provide for an effective date; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported without amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill was ordered passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 154—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article VII, Sections 10.1(B), 10.8(B), 10.11(D), and 14(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, to modify the maximum amount of monies in certain state funds that may be invested in equities; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported without amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill was ordered passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 273—

BY REPRESENTATIVES BEAULLIEU AND EDMONDS
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article VII, Section 10(C)(1) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to the expenditure limit; to provide for the method of determining the expenditure limit; to limit the growth of the expenditure limit; to provide for effectiveness; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Engrossed House Bill No. 273 by Representative Beaulieu

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, delete lines 20 through 23 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Do you support an amendment to limit the annual growth of state spending as calculated by the expenditure limit, remove the expenditure limit growth factor from the constitution, and cap the annual growth of the expenditure limit at 5%? (Effective June 30,"

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered reengrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 275—

BY REPRESENTATIVE RISER
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article VII, Section 4(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to income taxation; to provide with respect to the deductibility of federal income taxes paid for purposes of computing state corporate income taxes; to provide for applicability; to provide for an effective date; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported without amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill was ordered passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 331—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BOURRIQUE
A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article IX, Sections 3 and 4(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to water bottoms; to provide relative to water bottom boundary agreements between state and private landowners; to provide for public access and the reservation of mineral rights; to provide certain terms and conditions; to specify an election for submission of the proposition to electors and provide a ballot proposition; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Engrossed House Bill No. 331 by Representative Bourriague

Page 24 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 3, at the end of line 21 and beginning of line 22, delete "8, 2022" and insert "7, 2084"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, line 28, after "with" and before "landowners" delete "riparian"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, line 3, after "to the" and before "landowner" delete "riparian"

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered reengrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 355—

BY REPRESENTATIVES TURNER AND SCHEXNAYDER
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:176(G), relative to school interscholastic extracurricular athletic programs; to prohibit certain schools from being a member of or participating in any competition sponsored by an organization that is not audited by the legislative auditor; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Ways and Means.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 379—

BY REPRESENTATIVES LARVADAIN AND LANDRY
AN ACT

To enact Civil Code Article 2315.11, relative to damages; to provide for exemplary damages; to provide relative to sexual harassment in the workplace; to provide for attorney fees and court costs; to provide for liberative prescription; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Original House Bill No. 379 by Representative Larvadain

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 11, after "workplace" and before the period "." insert a comma "," and "as provided in R.S. 42:342"

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 381—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MOORE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:398, relative to motor vehicle accident reports; to modify references to accident reports and reporting requirements; to provide relative to electronic forms for crash reports; to provide relative to ownership of data and crash reports; to remove a provision that authorizes the Orleans Parish police department to charge a fee for copies of accident reports; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works to Original House Bill No. 381 by Representative Moore

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, delete lines 1 and 2 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Third party vendors under contract with a state or local agency shall not be prohibited from selling individual crash reports on behalf of the agency. However, third party vendors shall not sell or distribute any aggregated or compiled data owned by the state of Louisiana."

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 417—

BY REPRESENTATIVE IVEY

A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to amend Article VII of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to revenue and finance; to provide for taxation; to provide for state debt; to provide for the state bond commission; to provide for state funds; to provide for the Wildlife and Fisheries Conservation Fund; to provide for the Louisiana Education Quality Trust Fund; to provide for the Coastal Protection and Restoration Fund; to provide for the Budget Stabilization Fund; to provide for the Higher Education Louisiana Partnership Fund; to provide for the Mineral Revenue Audit and Settlement Fund; to provide for the Oilfield Site Restoration Fund; to provide for the Oil Spill Contingency Fund; to provide for the Millennium Trust; to provide for the Louisiana Fund; to provide for the Millennium Leverage Fund; to provide for the Artificial Reef Development Fund; to provide for the Agricultural and Seafood Products Support Fund; to provide for the Hospital Stabilization Fund; to provide for the Louisiana Medical Assistance Trust Fund; to provide for the Revenue Stabilization Trust Fund; to provide for the dedication of mineral revenues; to provide for the state budget; to provide for the expenditure of state funds; to provide for reporting; to provide for investments; to provide for property taxation; to provide for the Revenue Sharing Fund; to provide for the Transportation Trust Fund; to provide for a flat income tax rate; to establish exemptions for certain property; to establish exemptions for certain capital investment projects; to provide for the terms of the exemptions; to provide for the amount of the exemptions; to provide authorizations for approval of the exemptions; to provide for the administration of the exemptions; to provide for review by the Board of Commerce and Industry; to provide for approval from political subdivisions; to provide for gubernatorial approval; to authorize local government taxing

authorities to enter into cooperative endeavor agreements with owners of non-residential immovable property; to provide for a maximum term for the cooperative endeavor agreements; to provide certain requirements relative to the uniformity of state and local sales and use tax exemptions and exclusions; to provide for definitions; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Engrossed House Bill No. 417 by Representative Ivey

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 104, line 11, after "Constitution" and before the question mark "?" insert a comma "," and "relative to revenue and finance"

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered reengrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 424—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MCFARLAND
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:293(9)(a)(xx) and 297.16, relative to individual income tax; to provide for an individual income tax deduction for the adoption of a child or youth from foster care; to provide for the amount of the deduction; to provide for limitations and requirements; to authorize the promulgation of rules; to provide for applicability; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Ways and Means.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 483—

BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 37:1303, relative to restricting the practice of medicine by physicians; to define terms; to prohibit contractual provisions that restrict the practice of medicine by certain physicians; to provide for primary care physicians; to provide for state-employed physicians; to provide for physician specialists; to require a buyout provision; to provide for a physician terminated without cause; to limit the duration of certain contractual provisions; to provide for rural hospitals; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Commerce to Original House Bill No. 483 by Representative Wright

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 7, after "provisions;" and before "and" insert "to provide for rural hospitals;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 11, after "A.(1)" and before "contract," delete "No" and insert in lieu thereof "Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no" and after "agreement" and before "or" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 12, after "primary care physician" delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof "regardless of employer or any physician employed by the state from the"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 16, after "obstetrics" and before "and" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 17, after "B.(1)" and before "contract" delete "No" and insert in lieu thereof "Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no" and after "agreement" and before "or" insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, line 18, after "specialist" and before "from" insert "not employed by the state" and after "medicine" delete the comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 1, line 19, after "or" and before "under" insert "is"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 1, line 20, after "years" and before the period "." insert "or greater"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 1, after line 20, add the following:

"(2) For purposes of this Subsection, a "physician specialist" means the practice of medicine not included in the definition of primary care physician."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 2, delete line 1 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(3) Any contract, agreement, or provision thereof with a physician specialist not employed by the state"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 2, line 2, change "equal to" to "of"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 2, line 3, change "three year" to "three-year"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 2, line 5, after "C." and before "provision" delete "No" and insert in lieu thereof "Notwithstanding any provision of law to the"

Page 26 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

contrary, no" and after "practice of" delete "medicine" and insert in lieu thereof "a physician specialist not employed by the state"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 2, at the end of line 7, insert "specialist not employed by the state"

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 2, line 8, after "within" change "the" to "a"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 2, line 9, change "Subsection" to "Section"

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 2, delete line 10 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof "parish of a physician specialist's primary office location and up to two contiguous parishes."

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 2, after line 10, add the following:

"E. This Section shall not apply to any hospital that is defined as a rural hospital as provided for in the Rural Hospital Preservation Act, R.S. 40:1189.1 et seq., if the "restricted geographic region" of the physician's practice, through primary employment or under contract, is limited to a rural hospital and its contiguous parishes."

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Davis, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 484— BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE AN ACT

To provide for the establishment and reestablishment of agency ancillary funds, to be specifically known as internal service funds, auxiliary accounts, or enterprise funds for certain state institutions, officials, and agencies; to provide for appropriation of funds for Fiscal Year 2021-2022; to provide for an effective date; and to regulate the administration of said funds.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 484 by Representative Zeringue

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, between lines 19 and 20, insert the following:

"Provided, however, the Office of Group Benefits shall contract with a third-party medical claims reviewer to provide a regular, frequent, and ongoing review and oversight process, including but not limited to review and oversight of the receipt, management, adjudication, and clinical review of claims payments. The third-party medical claims reviewer shall work toward identifying and eliminating systemic errors, recovering overpayments, and ensuring that only the required and appropriate amounts due and owing on claims are paid as a result of proper adjudication."

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 484 was made Special Order of the Day No. 5 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 492— BY REPRESENTATIVES HUGHES, JEFFERSON, MIKE JOHNSON, LANDRY, AND MARINO AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 9:2800.9(A), relative to the prescriptive period for certain actions against a person for abuse of a minor; to extend the prescriptive period for actions against a person for sexual abuse of a minor or for physical abuse of a minor; to provide that an action against a person convicted of a crime against a child does not prescribe; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Original House Bill No. 492 by Representative Hughes

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, at the end of line 3, delete "period; to" and at the beginning of line 4 delete "provide for implementation;" and insert "period for actions against a person for sexual abuse of a minor or for physical abuse of a minor; to provide that an action against a person convicted of a crime against a child does not prescribe;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 9, after "A." and before "An" insert "(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, between lines 16 and 17 insert the following:

"(2) An action against a person convicted of a crime against the child does not prescribe and may be filed at any time following conviction. "Crime against the child" has the same meaning as provided in Children's Code Article 603."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, delete lines 18 through 20 in their entirety and on page 2, delete lines 1 through 10 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, at the beginning of line 11, change "Section 3." to "Section 2."

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 515—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:587(B) and 598, R.S. 22:835(C) and (F) and 2134(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), and (C), R.S. 30:21(B)(2), 101.9(A) through (C) and (D)(introductory paragraph), 2195(B) through (E) and (F)(1) and (3)(e), 2351.41, 2380, and 2418(G), (I)(3) and (4), (J), (M)(3) and (4), and (O)(3) and (5), R.S. 32:412.3, 429.2(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), 868, 1526(B), and 1731, R.S. 39:100.43(L), 100.44(Q), and 100.48(C), R.S. 40:5.10, 39.1(B)(2), (3)(introductory paragraph), and (4), 1379.3.1(C) and (D), 1379.7(B), 1428(C), 1472.20(A), 1664.9(N), 1730.68, and 1849(D)(2), (3), (4)(introductory paragraph), and (5), R.S. 45:169.1, 844.14(A)(4), and 1177(B) and (C), R.S. 46:2403(A), (C), and (D)(1), R.S. 47:463.149(F) and (G), 1835(B) and (D)(4), and 6007(C)(4)(h)(ii), (iii)(introductory paragraph), and (iv), R.S. 48:105.1(B) and (D), 381(G), 381.1(E), and 381.2(D) and (G)(1), R.S. 49:214.40(A) and (C), R.S. 56:10(B)(1)(d), (5), and (7)(a) and (D), 10.1, 164(A) and (B)(introductory paragraph), 700.2(A)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (3) and (B) through (D), 1703(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (C)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (2)(introductory paragraph), and (D), and 1705(A) and (B) and to repeal R.S. 9:154.2, R.S. 41:1615, and R.S. 56:1706 and 1844, relative to certain treasury funds; to provide for the transfer, deposit, and use, as specified, of monies in certain treasury funds; to provide with respect to the reclassification of certain funds in the state treasury as statutorily dedicated fund accounts; to provide for the elimination of certain treasury funds; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 515 by Representative Zeringue

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, between "To" and "relative to" delete "provide" and insert in lieu thereof:

"amend and reenact R.S. 15:587(B) and 598, R.S. 22:835(C) and (F) and 2134(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), and (C), R.S. 30:21(B)(2), 101.9(A) through (C) and (D)(introductory paragraph), 2195(B) through (E) and (F)(1) and (3)(e), 2351.41, 2380, and 2418(G), (I)(3) and (4), (J), (M)(3) and (4), and (O)(3) and (5), R.S. 32:412.3, 429.2(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), 868, 1526(B), and 1731, R.S. 39:100.43(L), 100.44(Q), and 100.48(C), R.S. 40:5.10, 39.1(B)(2), (3)(introductory paragraph), and (4), 1379.3.1(C) and (D), 1379.7(B), 1428(C), 1472.20(A), 1664.9(N), 1730.68, and 1849(D)(2), (3), (4)(introductory paragraph), and (5), R.S. 45:169.1, 844.14(A)(4), and 1177(B) and (C), R.S. 46:2403(A), (C), and (D)(1), R.S. 47:463.149(F) and (G), 1835(B) and (D)(4), and 6007(C)(4)(h)(ii), (iii)(introductory paragraph), and (iv), R.S. 48:105.1(B) and (D), 381(G), 381.1(E), and 381.2(D) and (G)(1), R.S. 49:214.40(A) and (C), R.S. 56:10(B)(1)(d), (5), and (7)(a) and (D), 10.1, 164(A) and (B)(introductory paragraph), 700.2(A)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (3) and (B) through (D), 1703(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (C)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (2)(introductory paragraph), and (D), and 1705(A) and (B) and to repeal R.S. 9:154.2, R.S. 41:1615, and R.S. 56:1706 and 1844,"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "treasury funds;" and before "to provide for" insert "to provide with respect to the reclassification of certain funds in the state treasury as statutorily dedicated fund accounts; to provide for the elimination of certain treasury funds;"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the beginning of line 6, change "Section 1." to "Section 1.(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, between lines 9 and 10, insert the following: "(B) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the state treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer \$22,454,333 from the State General Fund (Direct) to the Budget Stabilization Fund."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 8, between "to transfer" and "from the" delete "\$10,000,000" and insert in lieu thereof "\$15,000,000"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, between lines 13 and 14 insert the following:

"(I) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the state treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer \$5,000,000 from the State General Fund (Direct) into the Voting Technology Fund.

Section 3. R.S. 15:587(B) and 598 are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§587. Duty to provide information; processing fees; Louisiana Bureau of Criminal Identification and Information

* * *

B.(1) The bureau may charge a processing fee of twenty-six dollars for information provided to any agency or entity statutorily eligible to receive this information, except another state or local law enforcement agency, pursuant to a request to assist the agency in performing a screening function as part of any regulatory or licensing scheme. Payment of the processing fee shall accompany the request for such information and shall be deposited by the bureau immediately upon receipt into the Criminal Identification and Information Dedicated Fund Account.

(2) The bureau may charge a processing fee of ten dollars for fingerprinting of any individual. Payment of the processing fee shall accompany the request for fingerprinting and shall be deposited by the bureau immediately upon receipt into the Criminal Identification and Information Dedicated Fund Account.

* * *

§598. Criminal Identification and Information Dedicated Fund Account

All fees imposed and collected pursuant to R.S. 15:587 or any other provision of law in this Chapter shall be forwarded upon receipt to the state treasurer for immediate deposit into the state treasury. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required in this Section shall be credited to a special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury designated as the

Criminal Identification and Information Dedicated Fund Account. All monies in this fund account shall annually be appropriated by the legislature to the state police, may be withdrawn only pursuant to such appropriation, and shall be used solely and exclusively by the state police to assist in carrying out the provisions of this Chapter and for special law enforcement initiatives. Monies in the fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on the investment of monies shall be credited to this fund account following compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund account at the end of each fiscal year shall remain in the fund account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

Section 4. R.S. 22:835(C) and (F) and 2134(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), and (C) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§835. Fire marshal tax; Louisiana Fire Marshal Fund

* * *

C. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required by Subsection B of this Section shall be credited to a special fund hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the "Louisiana Fire Marshal Fund", hereafter in this Section referred to as the "fund". The monies in this fund shall be used solely as provided by Subsection D of this Section and only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund at the end of the fiscal year shall revert to the state general fund remain in the fund. The monies in the fund shall be invested by the treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund, and interest earned on the investment of these monies shall be credited to the state general fund, again, following compliance with the requirement of Article VII, Section 9(B) relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund fund.

* * *

F. Each year, after satisfaction of the provisions of Subsections C and D of this Section, and before any unexpended or unencumbered monies in the Louisiana Fire Marshal Fund shall revert to the state general fund, the state treasurer shall transfer the amount of fifty thousand dollars to the Camp Minden Fire Protection Fund as provided by R.S. 22:835.1.

* * *

§2134. Automobile Theft and Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby established a special dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the "Automobile Theft and Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "fund" "account", into which the state treasurer shall each fiscal year deposit the revenues received from those sources provided for by this Part and other sources as provided for by law after those revenues have been deposited in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state that become due and payable within each fiscal year, the treasurer, prior to placing such funds in the state general fund, shall pay into the fund account an amount equal to the revenue generated from collection from those

sources provided for by this Part and other sources as provided for by law. No expenditures shall be made from the fund account unless first appropriated by the legislature. The monies in the trust fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on money from the fund account and invested by the state treasurer shall be credited to the Automobile Theft and Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Fund account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Any monies in the Automobile Theft and Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Fund account shall be administered only by the director of the authority, upon a majority vote of the board, in the following order of priority:

* * *

C. All monies in the Automobile Theft and Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority Fund account shall be used only to enhance fraud prevention efforts as determined by the board.

* * *

Section 5. R.S. 30:21(B)(2), 101.9(A) through (C) and (D)(introductory paragraph), 2195(B) through (E) and (F)(1) and (3)(e), 2351.41, 2380, and 2418(G), (I)(3) and (4), (J), (M)(3) and (4), and (O)(3) and (5) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§21. Fees and charges of the commissioner of conservation; revisions; exceptions; collections; Oil and Gas Regulatory Dedicated Fund Account; creation; amounts; requirements

* * *

B.

* * *

(2)(a) There is hereby established a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the Oil and Gas Regulatory Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to as the "fund" "account". After deposit in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund and after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state that become due and payable within each fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay into the fund account an amount equal to the monies generated from collection of the fees provided for in this Title, R.S. 40:1749.11 et seq., or Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, any fines and civil penalties or any other provision of law relative to fees, fines, or civil penalties attributable to the office of conservation, and fifty percent of any annual assessment paid by an operator who chooses not to plug a well classified as inactive with the remainder being deposited into the Oilfield Site Restoration Fund.

(b) Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills. The monies credited to the fund account shall be appropriated by the legislature and dedicated solely to the use of the office of conservation for the regulation of the oil and gas industry and other industries under the jurisdiction of the office of conservation and shall be used solely for the purposes of that program. Any monies remaining in the fund account at the end of any fiscal year shall remain with the fund account and shall not revert to the state general fund. All interest or earnings of the fund account shall be credited to the fund account. All fees and self-generated revenue remaining on deposit for the office of conservation at the end

of any fiscal year shall be deposited into the fund account. The amount appropriated from the fund account to the office of conservation shall be subject to appropriation by the legislature.

(c) The provisions of Subtitle II of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 shall apply to the administration, collection, and enforcement of the fees imposed in this Section, and the penalties provided by that Subtitle shall apply to the person who fails to pay or report the fee. Proceeds from the fee, including any penalties collected in connection with the fee, shall be deposited into the fund account.

* * *

§101.9. Underwater Obstruction Removal Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby established a statutorily dedicated fund account in the custody of the state treasurer to be known as the Underwater Obstruction Removal Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account", into which the state treasurer shall, each fiscal year, deposit the revenues received from the collection of the monies enumerated in Subsection C of this Section, after those revenues have been deposited in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state that become due and payable within each fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay into the Underwater Obstruction Removal Trust Fund account an amount equal to the revenues generated as provided for in Subsection C of this Section. Such funds shall constitute a special custodial trust fund account which shall be administered by the secretary who shall make disbursements from the fund account solely in accordance with the purposes and uses authorized by this Part. B. The funds received shall be placed in the special trust fund in the custody of the state treasurer account to be used only in accordance with this Part and shall not be placed in the general fund. The funds shall only be used for the purposes set forth in this Part and for no other governmental purposes, nor shall any portion hereof ever be available to borrow from by any branch of government. It is the intent of the legislature that this fund trust account shall remain intact and inviolate. Any interest or earnings of the fund shall be credited only to the fund account. Monies deposited into this account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. The funds received shall be placed in the special trust fund account in the custody of the state treasurer to be used only in accordance with this Part and shall not be placed in the general fund. The funds shall only be used for the purposes set forth in this Part and for no other governmental purposes, nor shall any portion hereof ever be available to borrow from by any branch of government. It is the intent of the legislature that this fund the account shall remain intact and inviolate. Any interest or earnings of the fund account shall be credited only to the fund account.

C. The following monies shall be placed into the Underwater Obstruction Removal Fund account:

- (1) Private contributions.
- (2) Interest earned on the funds deposited in the fund account.
- (3) Any grants, donations, and sums allocated from any source, public or private, for the purposes of this Part.
- (4) Any monies deposited into the fund account pursuant to R.S. 56:700.2(A)(4).

D. The monies in the fund account may be disbursed and expended pursuant to the authority and direction of the assistant secretary for the following purposes and uses:

* * *

§2195. Motor Fuels Underground Storage Tank Dedicated Trust Fund Account

* * *

B. There is hereby established a special custodial trust statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the Motor Fuel Underground Storage Tank Trust Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Chapter as the "Tank Trust Fund Account", into which the state treasurer shall, each fiscal year, deposit the revenues received from the collection of the fees as established in R.S. 30:2195.3(A)(1)(a) and (B). The secretary is authorized pursuant to Article VII, Section 9(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana and R.S. 30:2031 to enter into an agreement with a private legal entity to receive and administer the Tank Trust Fund Account for the purpose of providing financial responsibility for underground motor fuel storage tanks. On an annual basis, all owners of registered tanks shall remit to the department a tank registration fee of sixty dollars for each tank. The revenue from the tank registration fees shall be deposited directly into the Environmental Trust Account as provided by R.S. 30:2015 and utilized for underground storage tank activities only, and any deviation from the aforesaid shall be documented and reported to the House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment and the Senate Committee on Environmental Quality. Revenues received from annual maintenance and monitoring fees, other than those established in R.S. 30:2195.3(B), shall be deposited into the Environmental Trust Account. The department shall promulgate rules and regulations for the implementation of this Section in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq.

C. Monies so deposited in the Environmental Trust Account shall be used to defray the cost to the state of administering the underground storage tank program and the cost of investigation, testing, containment, control, and cleanup of releases from underground storage tanks containing regulated substances. Only monies recovered pursuant to R.S. 30:2195.2(A)(2) and deposited in the Tank Trust Fund Account may be used for the loans authorized by R.S. 30:2195.12(E). These monies shall also be used to provide money or services as the state share of matching funds for federal grants involving underground storage tanks. At the end of each fiscal year, all monies that were deposited into the Environmental Trust Account from the fees established in R.S. 30:2195.3(A)(1)(a) and (B) which remain unspent, including all accrued interest, shall be transferred to the Tank Trust Fund Account.

D. The funds placed in the Tank Trust Fund Account shall only be used in accordance with the terms and conditions of R.S. 30:2194 through 2195.9 and shall not be placed in the general fund but shall be subject to the appropriation process of the legislature. The monies in the Tank Trust Fund Account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Monies deposited into this account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

E. Annually, the department shall prepare a report for the House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment and the Senate Committee on Environmental Quality of all disbursements of monies from the Tank Trust Fund Account and the Environmental Trust Account. The report shall include all loans made from the Tank Trust Fund Account, the number of sites actively seeking reimbursement from the Tank Trust Fund Account as of June thirtieth of each year,

the number of sites deemed eligible for the Tank Trust ~~Fund~~ Account during the previous fiscal year, and the number of sites that have been granted "No Further Action", and the department has received the last application for reimbursement during the previous fiscal year. Regarding disbursements from the Tank Trust ~~Fund~~ Account as provided by R.S. 30:2195.2, the report shall include a list of all reimbursements, all pending reimbursements, the date the application was made for reimbursement, and the date reimbursement was made by the department. The report shall be delivered to the respective legislative committees no later than March first of each year.

F.(1) All interest monies earned by the ~~Motor Fuels Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund~~ Account and all monies received from payments that are the result of cost recovery efforts shall be used for the closure of abandoned motor fuel underground storage tanks, assessment and remediation of property contaminated by abandoned motor fuel underground storage tanks, and the loans authorized by R.S. 30:2195.12(E).

* * *

(3) A tank may be declared to be an abandoned motor fuel underground storage tank by the secretary upon a finding that all of the following apply to the site:

* * *

(e) The release at the site is not eligible for the ~~Motor Fuels Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund~~ Tank Trust Account or the secretary has determined that action by the department is the most timely and efficient way to address conditions at the site.

* * *

PART III. LEAD HAZARD REDUCTION DEDICATED FUND ACCOUNT

§2351.41. Lead Hazard Reduction Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby created within the state treasury a special statutorily dedicated fund account designated as the Lead Hazard Reduction Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Part as the "account". Funds received ~~under~~ pursuant to the provisions of this Part shall be deposited into the state treasury.

B. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required by Subsection A of this Section shall be credited to a ~~special fund hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the "Lead Hazard Reduction Fund"~~ the account. The monies in this ~~fund~~ account shall be used solely as provided in Subsection C of this Section. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in ~~this fund~~ the account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund, and interest earned on the investment of these monies shall be credited to the ~~fund~~ account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

C. The monies in the Lead Hazard Reduction Fund account shall be used solely for the purpose of funding the programs and activities provided for in this Chapter, as determined by the secretary.

* * *

§2380. Right-to-Know Dedicated Fund Account

A. Subject to the exceptions contained in Article VII, Section 9 of the Constitution of Louisiana, all monies collected ~~under~~ pursuant to R.S. 30:2373 shall be paid into the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within a fiscal year, the treasurer shall, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, pay into a special statutorily dedicated fund account, which is hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the "Right-to-Know Dedicated Fund Account", hereinafter referred to as the ~~fund~~ "account", an amount equal to all monies collected ~~under~~ pursuant to R.S. 30:2373. The ~~fund~~ balance in the account shall not exceed two million dollars. Any monies in excess of that amount shall revert to the general fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be paid to the deputy secretary on his warrant and shall be used to develop the Louisiana Chemical Network (LCN), a statewide centralized inventory and release reporting system. This centralized reporting system is intended to eliminate duplication in reporting requirements, develop centralized data management, and provide processed data to all parishes via the local emergency planning committees (LEPCs). The department shall have the responsibility to develop a centralized data distribution system and provide the local emergency planning committees with the necessary equipment, software, and training to support its application. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be dedicated to equipment acquisition and personnel training for LEPCs and for the department to properly staff the centralized data management functions. The deputy secretary shall adopt the necessary rules and regulations to administer this system.

* * *

§2418. Waste tires; Waste Tire Management Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

G. There is hereby established a statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the "Waste Tire Management Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account". Any fees collected, pursuant to the secretary's rules and regulations, on the sale of tires, and any other appropriations, gifts, grants, or other monies received by the Department of Environmental Quality for the credit of the ~~Waste Tire Management Fund~~ account, shall be remitted to the state treasury and credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, as provided by the laws of this state and the Constitution of Louisiana. After a sufficient amount is allocated from the Bond Security and Redemption Fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay into the ~~Waste Tire Management Fund~~ account an amount equal to the total amount previously deposited into the treasury. All interest earned on money from ~~this fund~~ the account and invested by the state treasurer shall be credited to the ~~fund~~ account. The monies ~~of the fund~~ in the account shall be administered by the secretary solely for the purposes of solving the state's waste tire problem. No monies from the ~~fund~~ account shall be used to provide payments to waste tire processors for processing tires that are generated in Louisiana when those tires are processed in any other state. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

I.

* * *
* * *

(3)(a) In the event the balance of the fund account is insufficient to meet the obligations to waste tire processors provided for in Paragraph (2) of this Subsection, the department, after meeting all payments required by law, shall pay any undisputed obligations in a pro rata share to waste tire processors having a standard permit when the request for payment was submitted. Any remaining undisputed obligations which would have been paid to waste tire processors but for the insufficiency of the Waste Tire Management Fund account shall be paid from future surplus funds in the Waste Tire Management Fund account as provided in Subparagraph (b) of this Paragraph. However, beginning August 1, 2013, such payments shall be applied in priority from the earliest incurred undisputed obligation to the most current undisputed obligation.

(b) In the event the fund account has a surplus after meeting all obligations of the fund account for the month, including any payments required by law, such surplus shall be distributed in a pro rata share to those waste tire processors having a standard permit when the request for payment was submitted and for whom there are unpaid obligations of the fund account, excluding any disputed amounts. Such surplus shall be processed for payment by the department within fifteen days after the end of the month in which the surplus arose.

(c) For purposes of this Section, "undisputed obligations" means those waste tire material payments which should have been paid by the department to a waste tire processor since January 1, 2003, but which have not been paid due to the insufficiency of the Waste Tire Management Fund account.

(4) If litigation relating to fund account payments in dispute prior to March 1, 2004, is resolved through final judgment or settlement, the secretary shall pay from the fund account the portion of such final judgment or settlement which represents previously disputed fund account payments within one hundred eighty days of the judgment or settlement. This Subsection shall not be construed to limit or condition the right of the judgment creditor or obligee under the settlement agreement to obtain payment in satisfaction of the judgment or settlement from any source authorized by law.

J. The secretary or his designee shall submit an annual report to the president of the Senate, the speaker of the House of Representatives, the Senate Committee on Environmental Quality, and to the House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment and appear before a joint meeting of the House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment and the Senate Committee on Environmental Quality during each regular session to present the report detailing the progress of the waste tire program for the preceding year, the current balance of the Waste Tire Management Fund account, and the forecast for the fund account in the following year.

M.

* * *
* * *

(3) A waste tire processor shall not request or receive payments from the Waste Tire Management Fund account for any waste tires unless the waste tires are generated and processed in Louisiana, the generator and transporter have signed a statement swearing under penalty of law that the tires were not generated outside the state of Louisiana and are Louisiana-eligible tires, and the processor has signed a statement swearing under penalty of law that he has no knowledge contrary to the representations of the generator and

transporter. The department shall provide a standard form to be used by generators, transporters, and processors to comply with this Paragraph.

(4) In addition to any other penalties provided for in this Subsection, any person convicted of violating Paragraph (1) of this Subsection may be barred from participating in the program, including requesting and receiving payments or reimbursements from the Waste Tire Management Fund account, and any license or registration issued by the department that is required to participate in the program may be ordered to be surrendered. Participants shall include collectors, generators, processors, and transporters. Any such person convicted may be forever barred from employment with or from contracting with any license holder under this Section. Any sentence imposed which includes the suspension or barring under this Paragraph shall be suspended until after rendition of a final conviction from which no appeal may be taken.

O.

* * *
* * *

(3) Proceeds from the collection of the fees and any fines, penalties, interest, and costs collected in connection with the fees shall be deposited into the Waste Tire Management Fund account to be used to administer the waste tire program authorized by this Section.

* * *

(5) In addition to the authority and collection procedure provided for in this Subsection, the secretary has the authority to impose upon any person failing to timely remit fees imposed by this Section, a delinquent fee of ten percent of the unpaid fee or twenty-five dollars, whichever is greater. A delinquent fee of twenty-five dollars may also be imposed upon any person failing to timely submit a monthly waste tire fee report required by any rule or regulation promulgated pursuant to this Section. Proceeds from the collection of the fees authorized by this Paragraph shall be used for special waste tire projects as determined by the secretary. Any such proceeds remaining at the end of the fiscal year that have not been used for special projects shall be deposited in the Waste Tire Management Fund account.

Section 6. R.S. 32:412.3, 429.2(A), (B), and (C)(introductory paragraph), 868, 1526(B) and 1731 are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§412.3. Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Dedicated Fund Account; Office of Motor Vehicles Handling Fee Escrow Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby created, as special statutorily dedicated fund accounts ~~in~~ in the state treasury, the Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to as the "License Fund Account" and the Office of Motor Vehicles Handling Fee Escrow Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to as the "Handling Fee Account".

B.(1) After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all of the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay an amount equal to one third of the monies received by the state treasury pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 32:412 into the ~~Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Fund License Fund Account~~ Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Fund License Fund Account. The monies in this fund account shall be used solely as provided in Subsection D of this Section. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in this fund

account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account to cover under collections in any subsequent fiscal year. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund and shall be deposited into the state general fund. Monies deposited into the License Fund Account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(2) The calculation required under the provisions of Subsection D of this Section shall be made prior to the distribution to the board of trustees of the police pension funds of the city of New Orleans, the Louisiana State Police Retirement System Fund, and the Conservation Fund under the provisions of R.S. 56:10(B)(15).

C. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all of the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay an amount equal to one third of the monies received by the state treasury pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 32:412.1 into the ~~Office of Motor Vehicles Handling Fee Escrow Fund Handling Fee Account~~. The monies in this ~~fund~~ account shall be used solely as provided in Subsection E of this Section. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in this ~~fund~~ account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account to cover under collections in any subsequent fiscal year. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund and shall be deposited into the state general fund. Monies deposited into the Handling Fee Account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

D. Of the monies placed in escrow in the ~~Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Fund License Fund Account~~, one-half shall be appropriated in Fiscal Years 2020, 2026, and 2032 and one-half shall be appropriated in Fiscal Years 2021, 2027, and 2033.

E.(1) Of the monies placed in escrow in the ~~Office of Motor Vehicles Handling Fee Escrow Fund Handling Fee Account~~, one-half shall be appropriated in Fiscal Years 2020, 2026, and 2032 and one-half shall be appropriated in Fiscal Years 2021, 2027, and 2033.

(2) Of the monies appropriated under pursuant to the provisions of this Subsection, sixty-eight and seventy-five one-hundredths percent of the funds shall be allocated to self-generated revenue and thirty-one and twenty-five one-hundredths percent of the funds shall be allocated to the Office of Motor Vehicles Customer Service and Technology Dedicated Fund Account.

* * *

§429.2. Office of Motor Vehicles Customer Service and Technology Dedicated Fund Account; uses of the monies

A. There is hereby created, as a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury, the Office of Motor Vehicles Customer Service and Technology Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account".

B. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all of the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay an amount equal to the monies received by the state treasury pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 32:412.1(C), 707.2(C)(4), and 728(10) into the ~~Office of Motor~~

~~Vehicles Customer Service and Technology Fund Account~~. The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be used solely as provided in Subsection C of this Section and only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in ~~this fund~~ the account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund and shall be deposited into the state general fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature. C. Subject to an annual appropriation by the legislature, the monies in the ~~Office of Motor Vehicles Customer Service and Technology Fund~~ account shall be used solely for the following:

* * *

§868. Funding of real-time system to verify motor vehicle insurance; Insurance Verification System Dedicated Fund Account; creation

A. Of the reinstatement fees assessed in R.S. 32:863(A)(3)(a), an amount of seventy-five dollars from each reinstatement fee levied for lack of required security up to thirty days, one hundred fifty dollars from each reinstatement fee levied for lack of required security between thirty-one days and ninety days, and three hundred dollars from each reinstatement fee levied for lack of security for in excess of ninety days, and of the reinstatement fees assessed in R.S. 32:863.1(C)(1)(c) and (I)(3) an amount of fifty dollars from each first offense and one hundred dollars from each second offense, shall be, after first having been credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund as required by Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Louisiana Constitution, deposited into the Insurance Verification System Dedicated Fund Account.

B. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special statutorily dedicated fund account designated as the Insurance Verification System Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to as the "~~fund~~" "account". Monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on investment of monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be deposited in and credited to the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in this ~~fund~~ account shall be used solely as provided for in this Section and only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. Unexpended and unencumbered monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature. Monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be used in amounts appropriated by the legislature as follows:

(1) For Fiscal Year 2014-2015, monies in the ~~fund~~ shall be used as follows:

(a) First, to fully fund the creation and maintenance of the real-time system to verify motor vehicle insurance authorized by R.S. 32:863.2(F).

(b) The next forty-two million dollars shall be dedicated to the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, office of state police.

(c) The remainder of deposits shall be used for public safety and law enforcement purposes.

(2) For Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and each fiscal year thereafter, monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be used as follows:

(a) First, to fully fund the annual maintenance of the real-time system to verify motor vehicle insurance authorized by R.S. 32:863.2(F).

(b) Next, the amount needed to fund the increase in the costs of salaries and related benefits associated with the pay plan adopted by the State Police Commission, not to exceed forty-two million dollars per year, shall be dedicated to the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, office of state police.

(c) In the event House Bill No. 562 of the 2014 Regular Session of the Legislature is enacted into law, the next seven million dollars per year shall be used to fund the housing of parolees who are detained in sheriffs' jails pending their revocation hearing as provided in R.S. 15:824(B)(1)(e)(ii).

(d) The next one million dollars per year shall be used to provide additional funding to district attorneys and assistant district attorneys, specifically to fund additional assistant district attorneys beginning in 2015.

(e) The remainder of monies in the fund account shall be used for public safety and law enforcement purposes.

~~(2)~~ Funds from the Insurance Verification System Fund account shall not be used to pay any costs associated with the implementation of a system for the issuance of REAL ID compliant drivers' licenses and special identification cards.

* * *

§1526. Unified Carrier Registration Agreement; enforcement; disposition of money collected; Unified Carrier Registration Agreement Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

B.(1) All revenue collected by or distributed to the department under the Unified Carrier Registration Agreement shall be deposited upon receipt into the state treasury. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state that become due and payable during a fiscal year as provided for in Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, the treasurer shall each fiscal year deposit into a special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury, to be known as the Unified Carrier Registration Agreement Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account", an amount equal to the total amount received by the treasurer pursuant to this Subsection. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(2) All unexpended and unencumbered money in the fund account at the end of a fiscal year shall remain in the fund account and shall be available for use in the next fiscal year as provided for in this Subsection. Money in the fund account shall be invested as provided by law, and any interest earned on such investments shall be credited to the fund account after compliance with the provisions of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana.

(3) The money in the fund account shall be used each fiscal year solely and exclusively by the department, except as provided for in Paragraph (2) of this Subsection, for motor carrier safety programs, enforcement, or the administration of the Unified Carrier Registration Plan and the Unified Carrier Registration Agreement as required by the Unified Carrier Registration Act of 2005.

* * *

§1731. The Louisiana Towing and Storage Dedicated Fund Account

All fees and fines collected under pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter shall be paid into the state treasury on or before the twenty-fifth day of the month following their collection and, in accordance with Article VII, Section 9 of the Constitution of Louisiana, shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, after a sufficient amount is allocated therefrom to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within each fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of funds paid into the treasury into a special statutorily dedicated fund account, which is hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the "Louisiana Towing and Storage Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to as the "account". All funds collected or received pursuant to this Chapter and deposited in the Louisiana Towing and Storage Fund account shall be administered by the deputy secretary of public safety services. The fund account shall be used solely to fund personnel positions and the activities and enforcement of this Chapter by the office of state police and only in the amount appropriated by the legislature with all remaining funds to be deposited in the state general fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

Section 7. R.S. 39:100.43(L), 100.44(Q), and 100.48(C) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§100.43. Coronavirus Local Recovery Allocation Program

* * *

L. Any unobligated balance in the fund on ~~December 1, 2020~~ June 30, 2021, shall be transferred to the State Coronavirus Relief Fund.

§100.44. Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program

* * *

Q. Any unobligated balance in the fund on ~~December 1, 2020~~ June 30, 2021, shall be transferred to the State Coronavirus Relief Fund.

* * *

§100.48. Critical Infrastructure Workers Hazard Pay Rebate Fund

* * *

C. Monies in the rebate fund shall be appropriated to the state treasurer to be used to provide a one-time hazard pay rebate to essential critical infrastructure workers as provided in Act No. 12 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature. Any unobligated balance in the rebate fund on June 30, 2021, shall be transferred to the State Coronavirus Relief Fund.

Section 8. R.S. 40:5.10, 39.1(B)(2), (3)(introductory paragraph), and (4), 1379.3.1(C) and (D), 1379.7(B), 1428(C), 1472.20(A), 1664.9(N), 1730.68, and 1849(D)(2), (3), (4)(introductory paragraph), and (5) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§5.10. Oyster Sanitation Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby established a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the Oyster Sanitation Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to as the "fund" "account". The fund account shall consist of monies received by virtue of the surcharge assessed pursuant to R.S. 30:2075.1, such monies as may be appropriated to it by the legislature, and monies

received by the fund from grants and donations. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in accordance with the law, and shall comply with the provisions of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Subject to Article VII, Section 9, the investment earnings on account monies shall be credited to the ~~fund~~ account. The treasurer shall advise the governor and the legislature of the status of the ~~fund~~ account thirty days prior to each regular session of the legislature and at any other time upon their request.

C. Upon request of the secretary of either department named herein, and pursuant to appropriation by the legislature, the treasurer shall disburse monies from the ~~fund~~ account to the Louisiana Department of Health ~~and/or~~ or the Department of Wildlife and Fisheries for projects or measures that protect, enhance, or restore sanitary conditions directly related to the molluscan shellfish industry.

D. Monies from the ~~fund~~ account may not be used other than for the sanitation purposes authorized in Subsection C of this Section, or investment authorized in Subsection B of this Section.

* * *

§39.1. Certified copies of birth certificates and death certificates; clerks of district courts and the Second City Court of the city of New Orleans; Vital Records Conversion Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

B.

* * *

(2) Clerks shall pay to the state registrar such amounts as are required in R.S. 40:40. In addition, four dollars for each long-form birth certificate or death certificate issued by each clerk of court shall be remitted to the state treasurer on the tenth day of each month for deposit in the state treasury. The funds deposited shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable in any fiscal year, the treasurer shall credit to the Vital Records Conversion Dedicated Fund Account, hereby created, an amount equal to the funds deposited under the provisions of this Section. Monies deposited into the Vital Records Conversion Dedicated Fund Account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(3) The monies held in the Vital Records Conversion Dedicated Fund Account shall only be appropriated with the mutual consent of the secretary of state and the secretary of the Louisiana Department of Health for the following purposes:

* * *

(4) All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the ~~fund~~ Vital Records Conversion Dedicated Fund Account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on account

monies invested by the treasurer shall be deposited in the ~~fund~~ account.

* * *

§1379.3.1. Concealed Handgun Permit Dedicated Fund Account; assessment and disposition of fees

* * *

C. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required by Subsection B of this Section shall be credited to a special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the "Concealed Handgun Permit Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account". The ~~monies in this fund~~ the account shall be used solely as provided for in Subsection D of this Section and only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in ~~this fund~~ the account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in ~~such fund~~ the account. The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund and interest earned on the investment of these monies shall be credited to ~~this fund~~ the account after, ~~again,~~ following compliance with the requirement of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

D. The monies in the ~~Concealed Handgun Permit Fund~~ account shall be used solely for administration of the concealed handgun permit process and for special law enforcement initiatives.

* * *

§1379.7. Public Safety DWI Testing, Maintenance, and Training Dedicated Fund Account; uses

* * *

B. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, the treasurer shall credit an amount equal to the total amount of such costs received to a special statutorily dedicated fund account which is hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the Public Safety DWI Testing, Maintenance, and Training Dedicated Fund Account. The monies in ~~the described fund~~ the account shall be used solely to fund activities of the office of state police in executing its responsibilities in the purchase and maintenance of equipment and supplies for use in breath, blood, or urine analysis as related to violations of R.S. 14:98 or 98.1; training in the maintenance and usage of testing equipment; other such related expenses as may be necessary in the efficient and effective administration of those duties; and for special law enforcement initiatives. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be used only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the ~~fund~~ account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on monies in the ~~fund~~ account invested by the treasurer shall be credited to the ~~Public Safety DWI Testing, Maintenance, and Training Fund~~ account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation

bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§1428. Special assessment; creation of dedicated fund account

* * *

C. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required by Subsection B of this Section shall be credited to a special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the Insurance Fraud Investigation Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Subsection as the "account". The monies shall be irrevocably dedicated and deposited in the Insurance Fraud Investigation Fund account and shall be used solely as provided in Subsection A of this Section and only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. Monies in the fund account shall be appropriated, administered, and used solely and exclusively for purposes of the fraud unit, fraud support unit, insurance fraud section, LATIFPA, and as further provided in this Section. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in this fund the account at the end of the fiscal year shall be refunded to each insurer licensed by the Department of Insurance to conduct business in this state assessed a fee pursuant to this Section on a pro-rata basis based on each insurer's proportionate share of the total fees collected pursuant to this Section. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§1472.20. Explosives Trust Dedicated Fund Account

A. The Explosives Trust Dedicated Fund Account is hereby established as a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to support the efforts of the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, office of state police, explosives control unit. After depositing deposit into the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, all funds collected pursuant to R. S. 40:1472.3(H) and 1472.9(D) shall be deposited in and credited to the Explosives Trust Dedicated Fund Account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§1664.9. Fees; license endorsements for firms and persons; certifications; Louisiana Life Safety and Property Protection Trust Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

N.(1) Subject to the exceptions contained in Article VII, Section 9 of the Constitution of Louisiana, all monies received by the state fire marshal pursuant to this Subpart, including but not limited to fees and fines, shall be deposited immediately upon receipt in the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of funds paid into the state treasury by the state fire marshal pursuant to this Subpart into a special statutorily dedicated fund account which is hereby

created in the state treasury and designated as the Louisiana Life Safety and Property Protection Trust Dedicated Fund Account.

(2) The monies in the Louisiana Life Safety and Property Protection Trust Dedicated Fund Account shall be used solely for implementation, administration, and enforcement of this Subpart, and thereafter, for fire education or emergency response by the state fire marshal and only in the amounts appropriated each year to the state fire marshal or the board by the legislature. Any surplus monies and interest remaining to the credit of ~~the fund~~ the account on June thirtieth of each year after all such appropriations of the preceding fiscal year have been made shall remain to the credit of the fund account, and no part thereof shall revert to the state general fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§1730.68. Industrialized Building Program Dedicated Fund Account; distribution

A. All proceeds derived from the fees and all amounts received by the secretary from interest, fines, or penalties or any other source pursuant to the provisions of this Part shall be deposited with the state treasurer. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, the state treasurer shall, each fiscal year and subject to an annual appropriation by the legislature, credit to the "Industrialized Building Program Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account", which is hereby created in the treasury as a special designated fund account, an amount equal to the amount of money paid into the treasury by the secretary pursuant to the provisions of this Section. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund account at the end of each fiscal year shall remain in the fund account. The monies in the fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on monies in the fund account invested by the state treasurer shall be deposited in the fund account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Monies from the fund account shall be appropriated and paid to the secretary at the beginning of each fiscal year to be distributed to the office of state fire marshal, code enforcement and building safety, and shall be used for the implementation of this Part.

* * *

§1849. Permit fees; minimum; maximum; transport registration fees; personnel qualification fees; ~~rainy day fund~~ Liquefied Petroleum Gas Commission Rainy Day Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

D.

* * *

(2) After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to the monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to the funds received shall be credited to the special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the "Liquefied Petroleum Gas Commission Rainy Day Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account". The monies in this fund the account shall be used solely as provided in this Subsection, and

only in the amounts appropriated by the legislature. The monies in the fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as the monies in the state general fund. Subject to the provisions of, and after compliance with, Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, all interest earned on the monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be credited to ~~this fund~~ the account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(3) At the end of each fiscal year, the unexpended and unencumbered monies which remain in ~~this fund~~ the account, up to a maximum of two hundred fifty thousand dollars, shall remain in ~~this fund~~ the account and shall be used by the commission for the purposes set forth in this Subsection.

(4) The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be used for the following purposes:

* * *

(5) At the end of each fiscal year, the unexpended and unencumbered monies which remain in the fund account in excess of the two hundred fifty thousand dollar maximum provided in Paragraph (3) of this Subsection, not to exceed three hundred thousand dollars, shall be deposited in the separate interest-bearing account established under the authority of R.S. 40:1851(D) and shall be used solely for market development purposes as required by R.S. 40:1851.1(B).

* * *

Section 9. R.S. 45:169.1, 844.14(A)(4), and 1177(B) and (C) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§169.1. Motor Carrier Regulation Dedicated Fund Account

A.(1) All monies recovered by the transportation division of the Public Service Commission, by the collection of intrastate application, registration, and permit fees, and fines collected from penalties, shall be deposited into the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. After satisfaction of the requirements of the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, the treasurer shall deposit into the special statutorily dedicated fund account, hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the "Motor Carrier Regulation Dedicated Fund Account", an amount equal to one hundred percent of the total sums recovered as provided in R.S. 45:168 and 169. Monies deposited into this account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(2) The Motor Carrier Regulation Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "carrier fund account", shall additionally consist of all funds received by donation, grant, gift, or otherwise from any source and sums appropriated specifically to it by the legislature for increased regulatory enforcement of motor carriers.

B. The director of the transportation division of the Public Service Commission shall administer the carrier fund account and shall make disbursements from the fund carrier account for all necessary and appropriate expenditures.

C.(1) The monies in the carrier fund account shall be used to defray the cost of regulation of the intrastate motor carrier industry, specifically by the transportation division of the Public Service Commission.

(2) Monies in the carrier fund account shall be available to increase manpower and physical support for regulation of the intrastate motor carrier industry.

(3) Monies in the carrier fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as are monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on carrier account money invested by the state treasurer ~~since the creation of the fund~~ will shall be deposited into the state general fund.

D. In any cases where monies from the carrier fund account are expended in the prosecution of any violation of this Chapter, the attorney general shall institute a civil action to recover from the responsible person all such monies expended from the carrier fund account. Any monies so recovered shall be paid into the carrier fund account as provided by this Section.

* * *

§844.14. Listing procedures; prohibited acts; Telephonic Solicitation Relief Dedicated Fund Account

A.

* * *

(4)(a) All fees and penalties imposed pursuant to this Section shall be made payable to the Louisiana Public Service Commission for the administration of this Chapter and shall be dedicated to such purpose. The fees and penalties collected shall be remitted by the commission to the state treasury and credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. After a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within the fiscal year, the treasurer, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, shall pay an amount equal to the total amount of funds paid into the state treasury by the commission into a special statutorily dedicated fund account which is hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the "Telephonic Solicitation Relief Dedicated Fund Account". Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

(b) The monies in the Telephonic Solicitation Relief Dedicated Fund Account shall be used solely for the implementation, administration, and enforcement of this Chapter. Any surplus monies and interest remaining to the credit of the fund account on June thirtieth of each year shall remain to the credit of the fund account and no part thereof shall revert to the state general fund.

* * *

§1177. Inspection and supervision fees; Utility and Carrier Inspection and Supervision Dedicated Fund Account

* * *

B. Funds received by the Department of Revenue in the form of inspection and supervision fees authorized in Subsection A shall be deposited immediately upon receipt into the state treasury. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and prior to monies being placed in the state general fund, an amount equal to that deposited as required by this Subsection shall be credited to a special statutorily dedicated fund account hereby created in the state treasury to be known as the "Utility and Carrier Inspection and Supervision Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account". The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be used solely for the expenses of the operations of the commission, and only in the amounts

appropriated by the legislature. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

C. If the amounts contained in the ~~fund~~ account provided for in this Section are in excess of that necessary to fund the operations of the commission, then that excess shall be retained in such funds the account subject to the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund and shall be subject to appropriations appropriation by the legislature in subsequent years. In the event the Utility and Carrier Inspection and Supervision Fund account ceases to exist for the purpose of its creation, the assessments therefor likewise shall cease to exist.

Section 10. R.S. 46:2403(A), (C), and (D)(1) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§2403. Creation of the Children's Trust Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby established a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury to be known as the "Children's Trust Dedicated Fund Account", hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account", consisting of monies provided by the legislature and monies received from any other sources, including funds derived from donations of income tax refunds as provided in R.S. 47:120.35 and funds derived from fees as provided in Subsection B of this Section. The legislature shall make yearly appropriations to the fund for the purposes set forth in this Chapter to the extent that state funds are available. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

C. Subject to the exceptions contained in Article VII, Section 9(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana, all such additional fees collected as provided in Subsection B of this Section shall be paid into the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, pay into the Children's Trust Fund account an amount equal to the total amount of the additional birth certificate fees paid into the treasury pursuant to Subsection B of this Section.

D.(1) The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be used solely for programs designed to prevent the physical and sexual abuse and gross neglect of children. Disbursement of the amount appropriated each year shall be made as determined by the Children's Cabinet with consideration of recommendations made by the Children's Trust Fund Board. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in this fund the account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain to the credit of the fund account.

* * *

Section 11. R.S. 47:463.149(F) and (G), 1835(B) and (D)(4), and 6007(C)(4)(h)(ii), (iii)(introductory paragraph), and (iv) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§463.149. Special prestige license plate; "World Champion New Orleans Saints"; distribution of royalty fees

* * *

F. The annual royalty fee shall be collected by the department and deposited into the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District License Plate Dedicated Fund Account. The money received from the royalty fees shall be used solely to pay debt service on state debt issued to fund improvements to the Louisiana Superdome.

G. There is hereby created, as a special statutorily dedicated fund account within the state treasury, the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District License Plate Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter ~~sometimes~~ referred to in this Subsection as the "Fund" account". Notwithstanding any other provision of law, after compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and after a sufficient amount is allocated to pay all of the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay an amount equal to the annual royalty fee collected by the department into the Fund account. All of the monies in the Fund account shall be appropriated each year by the legislature to the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District for application first to pay principal and interest on any debt issued by the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District and second to pay any operating expenses of the Louisiana Stadium and Exposition District. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§1835. Employment of secretary, clerical help and experts; creation of commission expense dedicated fund account; authorization for deposits and collection of assessments

* * *

B. There is hereby established in the state treasury the "Tax Commission Expense Dedicated Fund Account", hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "expense fund account". After credit to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund as provided in Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, all assessments and fees, including penalties and interest thereon, received by the tax commission shall be deposited in and credited to the expense fund account. Monies on deposit in the expense fund account may be expended only pursuant to appropriation. Appropriations from the expense fund account shall only be made for expenses and costs of the tax commission, including but not limited to expenses and costs of operations, audits, and examinations and the defense, determination, or development of assessments and assessment procedures, including costs associated with outside experts. Any such assessment or fee, and any penalty and interest thereon, shall constitute an addition to the taxes due for all purposes of this Title. Monies on deposit in the expense fund account shall be invested in the same manner as the state general fund. Interest on investment of monies in the expense fund account shall be credited to the state general fund. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the expense fund account at the close of the fiscal year shall remain in the expense fund account. Monies deposited into the expense account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

D.

* * *

(4) The tax commission shall be reimbursed for its direct costs associated with the audits or examinations conducted pursuant to this Section, up to ten percent of the additional tax, penalty, and interest

collected, and said funds shall be paid over to the tax commission for deposit in its expense fund account for its use in carrying on its operations as provided for herein.

* * *

§6007. Motion picture production tax credit

* * *

C. Production tax credit; specific productions and projects.

* * *

(4) Transferability of the credit. Except as provided for in Subparagraph (g) of this Paragraph, motion picture tax credits not previously claimed by any taxpayer against its income tax may be transferred or sold to another Louisiana taxpayer or to the Department of Revenue, subject to the following conditions:

* * *

(h)

* * *

(ii) There is hereby established in the state treasury a special statutorily dedicated treasury fund account, the Louisiana Entertainment Development Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund" account". Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which becomes due and payable within any fiscal year as required by Article VII, Section 9(B) of this constitution, the treasurer shall deposit in and credit to the fund account the fees deposited as provided in this Paragraph.

(iii) The money in the fund account shall be appropriated by the legislature as follows:

* * *

(iv) The money in the fund account shall be invested by the treasurer in the same manner as money in the state general fund and interest earned on the investment of the money shall be credited to the fund account after compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. All unexpended and unencumbered money in the fund account at the end of the year shall remain in the fund account.

* * *

Section 12. R.S. 48:105.1(B) and (D), 381(G), 381.1(E), and 381.2(D) and (G)(1) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§105.1. Transportation Training and Education Center Dedicated Fund Account; creation

* * *

B. The secretary shall promulgate rules and regulations in accordance with law to effectuate the provisions of this Section, to implement a registration fee policy, and to provide for the uses and disposition of the fees collected. All fees collected pursuant to this Section and the rules and regulations promulgated by the secretary shall be deposited into the LTRC Transportation Training and

Education Center Dedicated Fund Account as provided for in Subsection D of this Section.

* * *

D. There is hereby created, as a special statutorily dedicated fund account in the state treasury, the LTRC Transportation Training and Education Center Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund" account". After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, an amount equal to the monies received by the state treasury pursuant to the provisions of Subsections A and B of this Section and rules and regulations adopted by the Department of Transportation and Development shall be deposited into the fund account. The monies so deposited shall be used to defray the expenses of the LTRC Transportation Training and Education Center in connection with the development, contracting, delivery, and administration of the center's transportation training program. Monies in the fund account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund, and interest earned on the investment of such monies shall be credited to the fund account after compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana. Excess monies over and above the expenses of the center shall be distributed to workforce development programs and projects within the Department of Transportation and Development. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund account at the end of any fiscal year shall remain in the fund account for use in subsequent fiscal years. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§381. Use and occupancy of highways

* * *

G. All fees shall be deposited by the secretary of the Department of Transportation and Development in the Right-Of-Way Permit Processing Dedicated Fund Account established in the office of the treasurer pursuant to R.S. 48:381.1 and said fees shall be set aside for the use of the Department of Transportation and Development to defray the expenses of the right-of-way permit office connected with the issuance and processing required for permitted activity within state roads and highways rights-of-way.

* * *

§381.1. Rights-of-way; joint use agreements; fees

* * *

E. All fees collected pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall be deposited by the secretary of the Department of Transportation and Development into the state treasury for credit to the Right-of-Way Permit Processing Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Part as the "Right-of Way Account". After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, the monies so deposited shall be credited to the fund Right-of-Way Account for the use of the Department of Transportation and Development to defray the expenses of the right-of-way permit office. Excess fees, over and above the expenses of the right-of-way permit office, shall be distributed to federally approved highway projects. All monies existing in this fund the Right-of-Way Account at the end of each fiscal year shall be retained in the Right-of-Way Permit Processing Fund account and shall not be deposited in the General Fund. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole

purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

§381.2. Rights-of-way; telecommunication installations, including wireless telephone hardware, fiber-optic lines, and telecommunications towers; annual report to the legislature

* * *

D. All fees shall be deposited by the secretary of the Department of Transportation and Development in the state treasury. After such deposit, an amount equal to the fees collected shall be transferred to the Right-of-Way Account established pursuant to R.S. 48:381.1 and ~~Permit Processing Fund which is hereby created in the state treasury and said funds shall be set aside for the use of the Department of Transportation and Development to defray the expenses of the right-of-way permit office in connection with the issuance and processing required for permitted activity within the state roads and highway rights-of-way.~~

* * *

G. The secretary shall prepare and submit an annual report to the House and Senate Transportation, Highways and Public Works Committees, which summarizes the activities, revenues, and expenditures of the right-of-way permit office related to the administration of this Section. The first annual report required under the provisions of this Subsection shall contain a summary of the activities, revenues, and expenditures of the right-of-way permit office from the beginning of the program to date and shall be submitted to the House and Senate Transportation, Highways and Public Works Committees not later than January 30, 2002. Each subsequent annual report shall be submitted not later than ninety days following the end of each calendar year and shall contain the following information:

(1) Deposits and withdrawals from the Right-of-Way ~~Permit Processing Fund Account~~ related to this Section.

* * *

Section 13. R.S. 49:214.40(A) and (C) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§214.40. Coastal Resources Trust Dedicated Fund Account

A.(1) Subject to the exceptions contained in Article VII, Section 9(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana, all funds collected by the Louisiana coastal resources program from processing and evaluation of coastal use permit applications and consistency determinations, from any federal outercontinental shelf revenue sharing program, and from any other sources, shall be paid into the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund.

(2) Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, pay into a special statutorily dedicated fund account, which is hereby created in the state treasury and designated as the Coastal Resources Trust Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "trust account", an amount equal to the total amount of funds paid into the treasury by the Louisiana coastal resources program.

(3) The monies in the trust ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general

fund. The monies in the ~~Coastal Resources Trust Fund~~ trust account shall be used solely for the programs and purposes and in the amounts appropriated each year to the Louisiana coastal resources program by the legislature. Monies deposited into the trust account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

C. Any surplus funds remaining to the credit of the trust ~~fund~~ account on July 1 of each year commencing with the fiscal year 1983-84, after all appropriations of the preceding fiscal year have been paid, and all interest earned on money from the trust ~~fund~~ account since the creation of the fund and thereafter shall remain to the credit of the ~~Coastal Resources Trust Fund~~ trust account for expenditure from year to year solely by the Louisiana coastal resources program or any uses as provided for in the federal outercontinental shelf revenue sharing legislation in accordance with appropriation made by the legislature for the purposes and functions of said program, and no part thereof shall revert to the state general fund. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the appropriation of funds out of the state general fund to the commission.

Section 14. R.S. 56:10(B)(1)(d), (5), and (7)(a), and (D), 10.1, 164(A) and (B)(introductory paragraph), 700.2(A)(introductory paragraph), (1) and (3) and (B) through (D), 1703(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (C)(introductory paragraph), (1), and (2)(introductory paragraph), and (D), and 1705(A) and (B) are hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§10. Annual report to governor; estimate of proposed expenditures; particular funds; limitations on purposes for use of monies in particular funds and accounts; warrants; vouchers; surplus funds

* * *

B.(1) Subject to the exception contained in Article VII, Section 9(A) of the Constitution of Louisiana, all funds collected by the commission from every source shall be paid into the state treasury and shall be credited to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall, prior to placing such remaining funds in the state general fund, conform to the following:

* * *

(d) Pay annually into a special statutorily dedicated fund account created in the state treasury and designated as the Louisiana Duck License, Stamp, and Print Dedicated Fund Account all amounts received pursuant to the Louisiana Duck License, Stamp, and Print Program provided for in R.S. 56:151 et seq. and such other funds as are specifically appropriated by the legislature. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

* * *

(5) The monies in the Louisiana Duck License, Stamp, and Print Dedicated Fund Account shall be used solely for the programs and purposes associated with the Louisiana Duck License, Stamp, and Print Program as provided by R.S. 56:151 et seq. in the amounts appropriated each year to the department by the legislature.

* * *

(7)(a) The monies in the Louisiana Wild Turkey Dedicated Fund Account shall be used solely for the programs and purposes associated with the Louisiana Wild Turkey Program as provided by R.S. ~~56:161~~ 56:164 et seq. in the amounts appropriated each year to the department by the legislature.

* * *

D. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the Louisiana Seafood Promotion and Marketing Fund, the Oyster Development Fund, the Shrimp Marketing and Promotion Fund, the Crab Promotion and Marketing Fund, the Louisiana Duck License, Stamp, and Print Dedicated Fund Account, the Louisiana Wild Turkey Dedicated Fund Account, and the Conservation Fund at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the respective funds. The monies in ~~the~~ these funds and accounts shall be invested by the treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. All interest earned on monies invested by the treasurer shall be deposited in the respective funds or accounts. The state treasurer shall prepare and submit to the department on a quarterly basis a printed report showing the amount of money contained in the funds and accounts from all sources.

§10.1. Aquatic Plant Control Dedicated Fund Account; creation; uses

A. There is hereby created in the state treasury the Aquatic Plant Control Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account".

B. After compliance with the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana relative to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, and after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all of the obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within any fiscal year, the treasurer shall pay into the Aquatic Plant Control Fund account an amount equal to the monies received by the state treasury pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 47:462(B)(2)(c) and R.S. 30:961(K). The monies in ~~this fund~~ the account shall be used solely as provided in Subsection C of this Section and only in the amount appropriated by the legislature. All unexpended and unencumbered monies remaining in ~~this fund~~ the account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the ~~fund~~ account. The monies in the ~~fund~~ account shall be invested by the state treasurer in the same manner as monies in the state general fund and all returns of such investment shall be deposited to the ~~fund~~ account. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

C. Subject to an annual appropriation by the legislature, the monies in the Aquatic Plant Control Fund account shall be used solely by the office of fisheries, Department of Wildlife and Fisheries, to fund the aquatic plant control program and to fund cooperative research and public education efforts by the Department of Wildlife and Fisheries and the Louisiana State University Agricultural Center relative to aquatic weed control and eradication and aquatic invasive species control and eradication. An amount not to exceed fifteen percent of the annual appropriation shall be used to fund research and public education efforts relative to aquatic weed control and eradication by the Louisiana State University Agricultural Center. The funds appropriated pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall be in addition to any other amounts appropriated by the legislature.

* * *

§164. Louisiana Wild Turkey Dedicated Fund Account; purposes

A. Funds received by the Department of Wildlife and Fisheries pursuant to the sale of wild turkey licenses shall be placed in the Louisiana Wild Turkey Dedicated Fund Account as provided by R.S.

56:10(B). Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Subject to appropriation, the monies in the Louisiana Wild Turkey Dedicated Fund Account shall be used:

* * *

§700.2. Establishment, continuance, and purposes of fund; geographical coverage; assessments

A. There is hereby established in the state treasury a Fishermen's Gear Compensation Dedicated Fund Account, hereafter referred to in this Section as the "account", into which amounts paid pursuant to this Section shall be deposited. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature. The ~~fund~~ account shall be available to the secretary only for the following purposes:

(1) Administrative and personnel expenses of the ~~fund~~ account.

* * *

(3) Expenses necessary to implement an investigatory survey of existing potential underwater obstructions which might be due to past drilling, production, and transportation activities. Such survey shall be conducted in not more than three geographical areas which are known to be hazardous as a result of underwater obstructions, the locations and sizes of which shall be approved by the Senate Committee on Natural Resources and the House Committee on Natural Resources and Environment, meeting jointly, following a consensus of opinion relative thereto rendered by commercial fishermen and the secretary. The purpose of the survey shall be to reveal the location, size, and density of underwater obstructions, as well as to test investigatory procedures, so as to provide field data and information which might aid fishermen directly and which shall be used to design a program more responsive to the needs of fishermen. Withdrawals from the ~~fund~~ account for the purposes of surveying shall be limited to the one-time application described in this Paragraph and shall not exceed one-fourth of the monies remaining in the fund at the time that this Paragraph becomes effective.

* * *

B. The ~~Fishermen's Gear Compensation Fund~~ account shall be established for Louisiana territorial waters which overlie state-owned waterbottoms which are contained within the coastal zone boundaries as described and established by R.S. 49:213.4.

~~C.(1) The fund shall be established within sixty days of the effective date of this Part, at a level sufficient to meet administrative and personnel expenses of the fund, including implementation of responsibilities set forth in R.S. 56:700.5, as well as payment of justified claims made pursuant to this Part.~~

~~(2)(a) To create a workable balance immediately upon establishment of the fund, the~~ The secretary shall be authorized and empowered to levy a fee upon each lessee of a state mineral lease and each grantee of a state right of way, for each lease and right of way in effect at the time of the effective date of this Part and which are located within the coastal zone boundary, in an amount of three hundred dollars. The secretary shall not be authorized and empowered to levy the fee upon a political subdivision of the state.

(b) The state treasurer shall be authorized to pay into the ~~fund~~ account a sum in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars from

proceeds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after compliance with dedications of mineral royalties, leases, bonuses, and rights of way and other sums payable to the state as lessor of mineral leases and grantor of rights of way as required pursuant to R.S. 30:136(B) and 136.1(A), (B), and (C), after a sufficient amount has been allocated from the Bond Security and Redemption Fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state which become due and payable within the fiscal year.

~~D. In the same fiscal year during which the fund is established, and in each fiscal year subsequent to that in which the fund is established, at any time that~~ If the balance of the fund becomes two hundred fifty thousand dollars or less and the secretary determines that additional monies are required to pay justified claims and to cover necessary administrative costs of the program, the secretary shall be authorized and empowered to replenish the ~~fund~~ fund account by levying additional fees on each lessee of a state mineral lease and each grantee of a state right of way, for each lease or right of way in effect at the time of establishing the fee rate and which are located within the coastal zone boundary. However, fees levied upon leases and rights of way as provided herein shall be made on a per-unit basis at a level not to exceed one thousand dollars per lease or right of way during any fiscal year.

* * *

§1703. The Louisiana State Parks Improvement and Repair Dedicated Fund Account

A. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special statutorily dedicated fund account to be known as the "Louisiana State Parks Improvement and Repair Dedicated Fund Account", hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund" "account". Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. Out of the funds remaining in the Bond Security and Redemption Fund after a sufficient amount is allocated from that fund to pay all obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the state that become due and payable within a fiscal year, the treasurer in each fiscal year shall pay into the fund account all of the following:

* * *

C. Except as provided in Paragraph (B)(2) of this Section, the monies in the fund account shall be used solely for the purpose of financing improvements and repairs at state parks in the state and shall be allocated, subject to appropriation by the legislature, as follows:

(1) Except as provided in R.S. 56:1704, fifty percent of the monies in the fund account shall be allocated to each state park in an amount equal to fifty percent of the amount of fees and other self-generated funds generated by that park.

(2) Fifty percent of the monies in the fund account shall be allocated for use throughout the state park system on the following priority need basis, as recommended by the assistant secretary of the office of state parks:

* * *

D. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund account at the end of a fiscal year shall remain in the fund account and be available for appropriation in the next fiscal year in the same manner as allocated herein. Monies in the fund account shall be invested as provided by law. Interest earned on the investment of monies in the fund account shall be credited to the state general fund.

* * *

§1705. Poverty Point Reservoir Development Dedicated Fund Account

A. The Poverty Point Reservoir Development Dedicated Fund Account, hereinafter referred to as the "fund" "account", is hereby established as a special dedicated fund account within the state treasury. Monies deposited into the account shall be categorized as fees and self-generated revenue for the sole purpose of reporting related to the executive budget, supporting documents, and general appropriation bills and shall be available for annual appropriation by the legislature.

B. After satisfaction of the requirements of Article VII, Section 9(B) of the Constitution of Louisiana with respect to the Bond Security and Redemption Fund, the state treasurer shall each year deposit in and credit to the fund account an amount equal to the total fees and self-generated revenues collected in that year from activities of the Poverty Point Retirement Development Community and the Black Bear Golf Course. Monies in the fund may be appropriated for support of the operation, maintenance, improvement, and expansion of the Poverty Point Retirement Development Community and the Black Bear Golf Course. Any unexpended or unencumbered monies on deposit in the fund account at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the fund account. Monies in the fund account shall be invested in the same manner as those in the state general fund and interest earned on such investment shall be deposited in and credited to the state general fund.

* * *

Section 15. R.S. 9:154.2, 41:1615, and 56:1706 and 1844 are hereby repealed in their entirety.

Section 16. The Louisiana Law Institute is hereby directed to make corrections to the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 as necessary to conform to the provisions of Sections 3 through 15 of this Act, including changing the names of funds amended in this Act and any internal references to such amended funds that exist within the statutes, including changing references to "fund" to "account" or "trust account" as necessary.

Section 17. The state treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer to the state general fund any unencumbered balances remaining in the funds repealed pursuant to Section 15 of this Act, after satisfying the appropriations for Fiscal Year 2021-2022."

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, at the beginning of line 14, change "Section 3." to "Section 18."

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 515 was made Special Order of the Day No. 4 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 516—
BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE
AN ACT

To appropriate funds and to make certain reductions from certain sources to be allocated to designated agencies and purposes in specific amounts for the making of supplemental appropriations and reductions for said agencies and purposes for Fiscal Year 2020-2021; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Ways and Means.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 516 by Representative Zeringue

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, between lines 9 and 10 insert the following:

"EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

01-100 EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the office of disability affairs \$ 100,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Gingerbread House Bossier-Caddo Children's Advocacy Center, Inc. for operating expenses \$ 50,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administrative Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Disability Affairs Trust Fund by (\$100,000).

01-103 MENTAL HEALTH ADVOCACY SERVICE

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administrative Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$450,000).

01-106 LOUISIANA TAX COMMISSION

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Tax Commission Expense Fund to the Property Taxation Regulatory/Oversight Program for operating expenses \$ 545,177

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Property Taxation Regulatory/Oversight Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$697,943).

01-107 DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Executive Administration Program for application toward the payment due this year for the Hurricane and Storm Damage Risk Reduction System \$ 45,000,000

01-111 GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for increased expenses related to the LWIN system \$ 2,004,576

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for state match for the federal Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities grant \$ 2,438,130

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Administrative Program for federal matching funds generated by the Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities grant \$ 7,314,389

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the final installment payment to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for the state's share of the August 2016 flood event \$ 7,498,335

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of the cost to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for Assistance costs related to Tropical Storm Barry \$ 142,746

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for payment to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for the state's share of Assistance costs associated with Hurricane Laura \$ 16,646,664

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Laura \$ 4,106,723

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for payment to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for the state's share of Assistance costs associated with Hurricane Delta \$ 2,412,777

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Delta \$ 3,532,833

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Sally \$ 323,638

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Tropical Storm Cristobal \$ 64,063

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for payment to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for the state's share of Assistance costs related to Hurricane Zeta \$ 259,707

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Zeta \$ 170,005

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Severe and Winter Weather \$ 2,000,869

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the final payment on the state's share of the January 2013 Severe Storms/Flooding cost \$ 14,558

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the final payment on the state's share of the 2015 Severe Storms/Flooding cost \$ 118,588

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the final payment on the state's share of costs related to Tropical Storm Ike \$ 3,819,821

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program \$ 7,744,553

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program to pay the outstanding balance for equipment purchased through the Louisiana Equipment and Acquisition Fund \$ 1,874,716

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administrative Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Coronavirus Local Recovery Allocation Fund by (\$4,999,999).

01-112 DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Military Affairs Program for hurricane related expenses and expenses owed to the Louisiana State Police \$ 3,716,544

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Military Affairs Program for funding National Guard death benefit payments \$ 500,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Military Affairs Program for increased costs associated with building projects at Camp Beauregard \$ 1,500,000

01-133 OFFICE OF ELDERLY AFFAIRS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program for the New Orleans Council on Aging \$ 300,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administrative Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$300,000).

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

03-130 DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the State Veterans Cemetery Program for acquisitions, major repairs, and operating expenses \$ 120,250

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Claims Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$400,000).

**ELECTED OFFICIALS
DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

04-139 SECRETARY OF STATE

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Elections Program for elections costs \$ 2,206,232

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

04-147 STATE TREASURER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Financial Accountability and Control Program for an online reporting system \$ 90,000

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY

04-160 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Animal Health and Food Safety Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Laura \$ 1,924,945

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Animal Health and Food Safety Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Zeta \$ 66,719

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Animal Health and Food Safety Program for the state's share of emergency response efforts related to Hurricane Delta \$ 501,651"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete line 15 in its entirety and insert the following in lieu thereof:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Business Development Program to provide state dollars to draw federal matching funds from the U.S. Economic Development Administration \$ 600,000

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Business Development Program for business recovery efforts \$ 2,400,000

DEPARTMENT OF CULTURE, RECREATION AND TOURISM

06-263 OFFICE OF STATE MUSEUM

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Museum Program for operating expenses \$ 125,000

06-264 OFFICE OF STATE PARKS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Parks and Recreation Program for operating expenses \$ 125,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Parks and Recreation Program for recreational improvements at Bogue Chitto State Park \$ 20,000

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND DEVELOPMENT

07-276 ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operations Program to provide pass-through funding for the Port of Lake Charles to perform the Calcasieu Dredged Material Management Plan \$ 5,000,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operations Program for road improvements in Lafayette Parish \$ 1,000,000

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY AND CORRECTIONS CORRECTIONS SERVICES

08-400 CORRECTIONS-ADMINISTRATION

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Office of Management and Finance Program for salaries, other compensation, and related benefits \$ 866,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Adult Services Program for other compensation, related benefits, offender medical care, and payments to parish clerks of court for each parish with a state correctional facility \$ 3,631,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Board of Pardons and Parole Program for other compensation \$ 87,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Office of Management and Finance Program for the Allen Parish Clerk of Court for back payments owed pursuant to R.S. 13:793 \$ 24,000

08-402 LOUISIANA STATE PENITENTIARY

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration Program for expenses related to the office of risk management \$ 123,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries, other compensation, operating services, and supplies \$ 1,109,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program to pay outstanding balance on

equipment purchased through the Installment Purchasing Market program \$ 225,919

08-405 RAYMOND LABORDE CORRECTIONAL CENTER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries, other compensation, supplies, professional services, and acquisitions \$ 597,500

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Auxiliary Account Program due to increased revenues \$ 240,000

08-406 LOUISIANA CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTE FOR WOMEN

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries and other compensation, operating services, supplies, professional services, and acquisitions \$ 841,500

08-408 ALLEN CORRECTIONAL CENTER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for personnel services and supplies \$ 655,500

08-409 DIXON CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTE

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration Program for gas and electrical expenses \$ 7,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries, operating services, supplies, professional services, other compensation, and acquisitions \$ 2,439,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program to pay outstanding balance on equipment purchased through the Installment Purchasing Market program \$ 122,405

08-413 ELAYN HUNT CORRECTIONAL CENTER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for operating services, supplies, and acquisitions \$ 350,000

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-

generated Revenues to the Auxiliary Account Program due to increased revenues \$ 200,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Administration Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$350,000).

08-414 DAVID WADE CORRECTIONAL CENTER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration Program for operating services \$ 50,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries, supplies, professional services, other compensation, and acquisitions \$ 1,564,000

08-415 ADULT PROBATION AND PAROLE

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration and Support Program for salaries and related benefits \$ 257,500

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Field Services Program for salaries, other compensation, related benefits, travel, operating services, supplies, acquisitions, and expenses for agents' vehicles and rent in state offices \$ 6,075,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration and Support Program to pay outstanding balance on equipment purchased through the Installment Purchasing Market program \$ 444,562

08-416 B.B. "SIXTY" RAYBURN CORRECTIONAL CENTER

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Incarceration Program for salaries, supplies, professional services, acquisitions, and major repairs \$ 907,000

PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

08-419 OFFICE OF STATE POLICE

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Traffic Enforcement Program for costs incurred related to emergency response efforts for natural disasters \$ 2,293,890

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operational Support Program for crime lab equipment and software \$ 2,571,250

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Operational Support Program for costs related to the LWIN system \$ 2,004,576

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operational Support Program for the Acadiana Criminalistics Lab \$ 190,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operational Support Program for the purchase of a diesel tank for Troop G \$ 75,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Traffic Enforcement Program for vehicles \$ 8,558,502

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Traffic Enforcement Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Riverboat Gaming Enforcement Fund by (\$5,253,152).

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Operational Support Program for operating expenses \$ 5,964,426

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Fund to the Operational Support Program for operating expenses \$ 4,035,574

Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Office of Motor Vehicles Driver's License Escrow Fund to the Traffic Enforcement Program for operating expenses \$ 10,000,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Traffic Enforcement Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Insurance Verification System Fund by (\$10,000,000).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Operational Support Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues by (\$10,000,000).

08-422 OFFICE OF STATE FIRE MARSHAL

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Fire Prevention Program for expenditures related to emergency response efforts due to natural disasters \$ 429,030

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

09-302 CAPITAL AREA HUMAN SERVICES DISTRICT

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Department of Children and Family Services to the Capital Area Human Services District Program for the Louisiana Health and Rehab Center - Reality House \$ 710,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Capital Area Human Services District Program for rent \$ 423,852"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, delete line 1 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Medical Vendor Administration Program for Federal Emergency Management Agency reimbursements \$ 195,648

09-306 MEDICAL VENDOR PAYMENTS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Payments to Public Providers Program for the Central Louisiana Supports and Services Center \$ 1,130,682

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Payments to Public Providers Program for the Central Louisiana Supports and Services Center \$ 2,686,610

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Payments to Private Providers Program for projected expenditures \$ 6,127,988

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers by (\$94,799,663).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First

Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues by (\$25,698,483).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the New Opportunities Waiver Fund by (\$10,596,511).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Hospital Stabilization Fund by (\$13,459,367).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Louisiana Medical Assistance Trust Fund by (\$63,870,987).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of Federal Funds by (\$332,487,237).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Public Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$355,665).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Public Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of Federal Funds by (\$985,454).

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Medicare Buy-Ins & Supplements Program to align with budget forecasts \$ 30,900,344

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Medicare Buy-Ins & Supplements Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$5,772,323).

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Uncompensated Care Costs Program to align with budget forecasts \$ 7,686,239

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Uncompensated Care Costs Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers by (\$7,686,239).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Payments to Private Providers Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the

appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$56,000,000)."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, between lines 6 and 7 insert the following:

"09-307 OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Management and Finance Program for disaster-related reimbursements related to Hurricane Delta \$ 189,440

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Management and Finance Program for disaster-related reimbursements related to Hurricane Laura \$ 1,859,631

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Management and Finance Program for COVID-19 expenditures \$ 1,951,074

09-320 OFFICE OF AGING AND ADULT SERVICES

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administration Protection and Support Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura \$ 232

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Administration Protection and Support Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements \$ 2,090

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Villa Feliciana Medical Complex Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura \$ 4,203

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Villa Feliciana Medical Complex Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements \$ 37,830

09-324 LOUISIANA EMERGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana Emergency Response Network

Page 48 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura	\$ 2,398	Public Health Services Program for Tropical Storm Zeta related expenses	\$ 28,428
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Louisiana Emergency Response Network Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements	\$ 21,582	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Public Health Services Program for Tropical Storm Zeta related expenses	\$ 9,476
09-326 OFFICE OF PUBLIC HEALTH		Payable out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Vital Records Conversion Fund to the Public Health Services Program for electronic birth and death records	\$ 270,000
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Public Health Services Program for COVID-19 response efforts	\$ 9,974,548	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Public Health Services Program for the development and construction of the new Terrebonne Parish Health Unit	\$ 1,000,000
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Laura related expenses	\$ 7,560,188	The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Public Health Services Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$270,000)."	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Laura related expenses	\$ 840,021	<u>AMENDMENT NO. 5</u>	
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Sally related expenses	\$ 21,347	On page 2, delete line 16 and insert the following in lieu thereof:	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Sally related expenses	\$ 7,116	"expenditures	\$ 3,514,307
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Delta related expenses	\$ 2,727,387	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura	\$ 56,973
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Public Health Services Program for Hurricane Delita related expenses	\$ 909,731	Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements	\$ 512,753
Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Hospital Based Treatment Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura	\$ 4,560
		Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Hospital Based Treatment Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements	\$ 41,039
		Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-	

generated Revenues to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline 9-8-8 State Planning Grant Initiative \$ 116,345

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Behavioral Health Administration and Community Oversight Program for the Transformation Transfer Initiative Grant \$ 114,645

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Unalotted Program by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$23,359,408).

09-340 OFFICE FOR CITIZENS WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from Medical Vendor Payments to the Central Louisiana Supports and Services Program for salaries and related benefits, renovations, equipment, and supplies \$ 3,817,292

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Governor's Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness to the Pinecrest Supports and Services Center Program for disaster-related expenditure reimbursements \$ 1,000,289

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Pinecrest Supports and Services Center Program for costs related to Hurricane Laura \$ 111,143

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

10-360 OFFICE OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Division of Child Welfare to pay outstanding balances on equipment purchased through the Installment Purchasing Market program \$ 2,011,551

LOUISIANA WORKFORCE COMMISSION

14-474 WORKFORCE SUPPORT AND TRAINING

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Office of Management and Finance Program for costs related to natural disasters \$ 154,623"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, between lines 38 and 39, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System for application to the balance of the Unfunded Accrued Liability of the system existing as of June 30, 1988 \$ 5,311,898"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, line 7, insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana for application to the balance of the Unfunded accrued liability of the system existing as of June 30, 1988 \$ 11,727,275"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, between lines 8 and 9, insert the following:

"19-671 BOARD OF REGENTS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Office of Student Financial Assistance Program for increased TOPS billings \$ 1,600,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Office of Student Financial Assistance Program to align with revenue projections \$ 1,129,888

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Office of Student Financial Assistance Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the TOPS Fund by (\$1,129,888)."

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, between lines 20 and 21 insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors, Louisiana State University - Agricultural and Mechanical College Laboratory School \$ 150,847

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for Pennington Biomedical Research Center \$ 1,600,000

Page 50 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University- Agricultural Center for operating expenses \$ 1,200,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University Agricultural Center for National Estuarine Research Reserve initiatives \$ 600,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University - Agricultural Center for facility renovations at Camp Grant Walker \$ 500,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana State University Board of Supervisors for the Louisiana State University Agricultural Center for renovations to the Parker Agricultural Coliseum \$ 7,000,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center - Shreveport, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$340,000).

19-615 SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Southern University Board of Supervisors, Southern University - Agricultural and Mechanical College Laboratory School \$ 841,307

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Southern University Board of Supervisors for Southern University-Shreveport, Louisiana for implementation of an integrated health clinic \$ 300,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Southern University Board of Supervisors for infrastructure upgrades and equipment \$ 1,475,000

EXPENDITURES:
Southern University- Agricultural Research & Extension Center for United States Department of Agriculture matching grant funds \$ 5,000,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES \$ 5,000,000

MEANS OF FINANCE:
State General Fund (Direct) \$ 2,500,000
Federal Funds \$ 2,500,000

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 5,000,000

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Southern University Board of Supervisors due to changes in enrollment \$ 3,857,077

Provided, however, that the amount appropriated above from Fees and Self-generated Revenues shall be allocated as follows:

Southern University - Law Center \$ 3,857,077"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 4, delete line 11 in its entirety and insert the following in lieu thereof:

"Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Department of Education Subgrantee Assistance Program to the Instruction Program for enhanced services \$ 55,435

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Instruction Program for supplies and operating expenses \$ 193,709

19-673 NEW ORLEANS CENTER FOR THE CREATIVE ARTS

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Instruction Program for supplies and operating expenses \$ 169,595

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Department of Education to the Instruction Program for supplies \$ 82,000

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 4, between lines 28 and 29 insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the District Support Program due to lost revenues \$ 275,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Support Program for the CYBER.ORG cyber range project \$ 2,000,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the District Support Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary

Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Litter Abatement and Education Account by (\$275,000).

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the District Support Program for revenue shortfalls \$ 1,332,409

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the District Support Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers by (\$1,332,409)."

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 4, between lines 35 and 36 insert the following:

"Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Non Federal Support Program for Teach for America, Inc. for teacher recruitment and placement in teacher shortage areas \$ 500,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Non Federal Support Program for Pointe-Aux-Chenes Elementary School operating expenses \$ 1,000,000

19-682 RECOVERY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers from the Minimum Foundation Program to the Instruction Program for increased costs \$ 1,749,705

19-695 MINIMUM FOUNDATION PROGRAM

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Minimum Foundation Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund by Statutory Dedications out of the Lottery Proceeds Fund by (\$75,959,315).

LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER HEALTH CARE SERVICES DIVISION

19-610 LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER HEALTH CARE SERVICES DIVISION

Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Lallie Kemp Regional Medical Center Program for patient care \$ 4,357,746

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

20-451 LOCAL HOUSING OF STATE ADULT OFFENDERS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Local Housing of Adult Offenders Program for housing offenders \$ 34,688,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Local Reentry Services Program for increased costs \$ 269,000

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Criminal Justice Reinvestment Initiative Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$6,565,000).

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Transitional Work Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$975,000).

20-906 DISTRICT ATTORNEYS AND ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEYS

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Twenty-third Judicial District Court District Attorney's office for computer upgrades \$ 110,000

20-923 CORRECTIONS DEBT SERVICE

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Corrections Debt Service Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$2,480,500).

20-931 LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT-DEBT SERVICE AND STATE COMMITMENTS

Payable out of Federal Funds to the Debt Service and State Commitments Program for grant proceeds for improvements to the Vernon Parish School Board and School District \$ 6,839,476

The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Debt Service and State Commitments Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$600,000).

20-945 STATE AID TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the St. Bernard Parish Sheriff's Office for replacement equipment \$ 1,900,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of New Iberia for the study of economic development in West Bend \$ 10,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Lafourche Parish School Board to partially satisfy the obligation of the state pursuant to R.S. 41:642(A)(2) for oil and gas royalties \$ 1,013,961

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Sexual Trauma Awareness and Response \$ 250,000

Page 52 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to St. Tammany Parish for Carr Road dredging	\$ 250,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Sunset for infrastructure and economic development	\$ 25,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Farmerville for historic building renovations	\$ 250,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to town of Washington for infrastructure and economic development	\$ 25,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Jean Lafitte for police vehicles	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Jefferson Parish	\$ 250,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Jean Lafitte for the Jean Lafitte Seafood Festival	\$ 200,000	Provided, however, that the funds appropriated above to Jefferson Parish shall be distributed as follows:	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Ponchatoula Police Department for equipment	\$ 70,000	Marrero Senior Citizens Guild	\$ 10,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Ponchatoula for recreational improvements	\$ 60,000	Woodmere Senior Citizens Guild	\$ 10,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Ponchatoula for pavilion construction	\$ 70,000	Old Harvey Senior Guild	\$ 10,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Ponchatoula for the restoration of a locomotive and structural repair at Collinswood Museum	\$ 50,000	Social, Educational, & Athletic Club Incorporated	\$ 40,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Iowa Police Department for hurricane response equipment	\$ 30,000	Jefferson Parish Recreation Department for the Woodmere Youth Center	\$ 100,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Calcasieu Parish Ward 8 Fire District #1 for a truck replacement	\$ 40,000	New Covenant Faith Ministries Food Bank	\$ 5,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Jefferson Davis Fire District #1 for fire station hurricane repairs	\$ 30,000	Jefferson Parish Recreation Department for equipment at the Woodmere, Jacobs, MLK, Nicholson, and KAWK parks	\$ 40,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Elton for road repair	\$ 50,000	New Growth Economic Development Association	\$ 35,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Jefferson Davis Police Jury for road repair	\$ 100,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Recreation and Park Commission for the Parish of East Baton Rouge for Greenwood Park and Baton Rouge Zoo facility improvements	\$ 200,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Opelousas for infrastructure and economic development	\$ 200,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Zachary for recreational improvements	\$ 20,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Erath for a utility substation	\$ 400,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Oberlin for emergency road repairs	\$ 126,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Allen Parish Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 100,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Finding Our Roots African American Museum for operating expenses	\$ 50,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the MidCity Baptist Community Fellowship	\$ 250,000
		Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Northeast Louisiana Delta African American Heritage Museum for roof repairs	\$ 50,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana Center Against Poverty, Inc.	\$ 200,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Bossier City Fire Department for equipment	\$ 50,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Richland Parish Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Bossier Parish Police Jury for recreational improvements	\$ 50,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the East Carroll Parish Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Bossier Parish Police Jury for the Save 537 Coalition Engineering Report	\$ 25,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Madison Parish Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the St. George Fire Protection District for capital improvements	\$ 250,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the West Carroll Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Second Harvest Food Bank of Greater New Orleans and Acadiana for operating expenses	\$ 250,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Morehouse Parish Police Jury for emergency road repairs	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Jackson for fire station roof repairs	\$ 40,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Ascension Parish Sheriff's Office for body cameras	\$ 110,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Clinton for equipment and repairs	\$ 40,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Geismar Volunteer Fire Department for equipment	\$ 30,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the village of Wilson for building renovations	\$ 20,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Avoyelles Parish for repaving the Highway 107 115 Cutoff	\$ 250,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the village of Norwood for water upgrades	\$ 20,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Pontchartrain Conservancy for a water quality program and the New Canal Lighthouse Museum and Education Center	\$ 100,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of St. Francisville for town hall repairs	\$ 45,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Jefferson Parish for cooling fans at LaSalle Park	\$ 60,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Slaughter for road and drainage improvements	\$ 35,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Harahan for a sewer cover rehabilitation project	\$ 50,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Zachary for recreational facility improvements	\$ 50,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Jefferson Parish for the Lafreniere rehabilitation project	\$ 40,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the St. Helena Police Jury for St. Helena Parish courthouse repairs	\$ 75,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Rapides Parish Sheriff's Office for equipment and renovations at Hineston substation	\$ 250,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Algiers Economic Development Foundation for the Algiers Career and Educational Development Program	\$ 75,000

Page 54 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Algiers Development District for infrastructure	\$ 75,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Desoto Parish Police Jury for road repairs	\$ 200,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Jefferson Parish for recreational infrastructure in Council District No. 3	\$ 75,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the City of Rayne for MLK Center construction	\$ 200,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Algiers Development District for technical enhancements to the historic Algiers courthouse	\$ 75,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Acadia Parish Police Jury for upgrades at Le Gros Memorial Airport	\$ 125,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Baker Economic Development District and Convention Center	\$ 30,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Crowley Fire Department for fire station renovations	\$ 125,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Jefferson Parish for the fire training center	\$ 400,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Crowley for building renovations, equipment, and recreational improvements	\$ 150,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Greater Baton Rouge Economic Partnership	\$ 1,000,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Acadia Parish Police Jury for fire protection equipment	\$ 140,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Winn Parish Police Jury for road repairs	\$ 1,000,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Duson for road lighting upgrades and police equipment	\$ 70,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Mary Bird Perkins Cancer Center for equipment	\$ 500,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Village of Morse for water meter upgrades and police equipment	\$ 65,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff's Office for construction of a training facility	\$ 450,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Village of Estherwood for equipment and police equipment	\$ 50,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Stonewall for road improvements	\$ 400,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Village of Mermentau for equipment and police equipment	\$ 50,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Sabine Parish Police Jury for recreational infrastructure	\$ 200,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Israelite Community Development Corporation for youth programs	\$ 25,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Caddo Parish Commission for recreational improvements	\$ 100,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to Assumption Parish for the repaving of Lee Drive	\$ 1,000,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the town of Logansport for facility upgrades	\$ 60,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to St. John the Baptist Parish for infrastructure and repairs	\$ 190,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the village of Grand Cane for renovation of historic buildings	\$ 40,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to St. Charles Parish for drainage improvements	\$ 1,000,000

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to St. Charles Parish for infrastructure improvements	\$ 260,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Ruston for improvements to Industrial Park	\$ 300,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to St. Martin Parish for land acquisition	\$ 1,000,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Lincoln Parish Fire Protection District #1 for building improvements	\$ 200,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Alexandria for water well replacement	\$ 1,000,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Union Parish Policy Jury for courthouse elevator repairs	\$ 130,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Lafayette Consolidated Government for recreational improvements	\$ 500,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Ruston for city hall upgrades	\$ 400,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Community Foundation of Acadiana	\$ 500,000	The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the appropriation to the LA Cancer Research Center of LSU HSCNO and Tulane HSC, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$1,360,000).	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Lafayette Consolidated Government for Ambassador Caffery/Kaliste Saloom road construction	\$ 500,000	20-966 SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENTS TO LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Broussard for La Nouvelle Road overlay project	\$ 250,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Fire Fighters Program for payments to eligible recipients	\$ 1,200,000
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Youngsville for recreational improvements	\$ 250,000	The commissioner of administration is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the means of finance for the Deputy Sheriffs Program, as contained in Act No. 1 of the 2020 First Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, by reducing the appropriation out of the State General Fund (Direct) by (\$1,500,000).	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Denham Springs Drainage District No. 1 for equipment	\$ 200,000	20-XXX FUNDS	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to STEM NOLA	\$ 100,000	Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Administrative Program	\$ 42,945
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Washington Parish Fair Association for fairground repairs from tornado damage	\$ 30,000	The state treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer \$42,945 from the State General Fund (Direct) into the Self-Insurance Fund.	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the city of Bogalusa for recreational infrastructure	\$ 15,000	ANCILLARY APPROPRIATIONS	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Bogalusa YMCA for repairs and equipment upgrades	\$ 10,000	21-800 OFFICE OF GROUP BENEFITS	
Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Terrebonne Parish Consolidated Government for economic development construction projects in downtown Houma	\$ 900,000	Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the State Group Benefits Program for aligning the budget with actuarial projections	\$ 34,562,626
		21-804 OFFICE OF RISK MANAGEMENT	
		Payable out of the State General Fund by Fees and Self-generated Revenues to the Risk Management Program for survivor benefits claims	\$ 1,000,000

21-815 OFFICE OF TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

Payable out of the State General Fund by Interagency Transfers to the Technology Services Program for contract services and software projects \$ 28,119,264

JUDICIAL EXPENSE

23-949 LOUISIANA JUDICIARY

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Louisiana Judiciary \$ 2,548,533

Payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) to the Fortieth Judicial District Court for a pilot literacy program \$ 75,000

Section 2.(A) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, each appropriation contained in Other Requirements, Schedule 20-945 State Aid to Local Government Entities, in Act No. 45 of the 2020 Second Extraordinary Session of the Legislature, which appropriation has a valid Cooperative Endeavor Agreement on June 30, 2021, shall be deemed a bona fide obligation through December 31, 2021, and all other provisions of the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement, including but not limited to reporting requirements, shall be performed as agreed.

(B) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, each appropriation contained in this Act shall be deemed a bona fide obligation.

Section 3. A. Notwithstanding the provisions of R.S. 49:112, the sum of \$7,741,648 or so much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 to be allocated to pay final judgments against the state as provided in Paragraph B of this Section. All judgments provided for in this Section shall be paid as to principal, interest, court costs, attorneys fees, and expert witness fees as awarded in each judgment. If the provisions of the judgment conflict with the provisions of this Act, the provisions of the judgment shall be controlling. Any other provision of this Act not in conflict with the provisions of a judgment shall control. The judgment shall only be paid if the judgment is final. Payment shall be made as to each judgment only after presentation to the state treasurer of documentation required by the state treasurer. All judgments provided for in this Section shall be deemed to have been paid on the effective date of this Act, and interest shall cease to run as of that date.

(B) Payment of the following judgments shall be in the amounts specified below for each judgment:

(1) The sum of \$6,500 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Virginia B. Guidry versus Louisiana Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company, Theriot Farms, LLC, Iryn Joseph Woods, Progressive Security Insurance Company and the State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development", signed on October 26, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Virginia B. Guidry, bearing Number C642-19, on the docket of the Thirty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Jefferson Davis, state of Louisiana.

(2) The sum of \$75,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Larry and Rose Storey, et ux versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, G. Wall and Safeway Insurance Company of Louisiana", signed April 22, 2015, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Larry Storey and Rose Storey,

bearing Number 2004-000408 Division "E", on the docket of the Twenty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Tangipahoa, state of Louisiana.

(3) The sum of \$180,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Glen Callies versus State of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development", signed January 28, 2020, between state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Glen Callies, bearing Number 33,844 Division "A", on the docket of the Twentieth Judicial District Court, parish of East Feliciana, state of Louisiana.

(4) The sum of \$15,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Allen Joseph Johnson, Jr., individually and as tutor for Lydia G. Johnson vs. State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development, David M. Courville, D/B/A Vidrine Community Grocery, and John B. LaHaye, Jr. consolidated with Chelsie Brean Fontenot vs. State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development, David M. Courville D/B/A Vidrine Community Grocery and John B. LaHaye, Jr. consolidated with State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company A/S/O Stephen B. Tate vs. Chelsie B. Fontenot", signed June 20, 2017, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company as subrogee of Stephen B. Tate, bearing Numbers 71,981 "A", 72,033 "B", and 72,730 "B", on the docket of the Thirteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Evangeline, state of Louisiana.

(5) The sum of \$50,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Jacquelyn R. O'Brien versus Mastec North America, Inc., et al c/w Travis Gerace and Teryl Gene Gerace, individually and o/b/o Roma Hooks O'Brien versus Westley Eugene Worley, Mastec North America, Inc., Ace American Ins. Co. Steven Antoine Guillory, II John P. May, III, Louisiana Farm Bureau Casualty Ins. Co. and State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co. c/w Daniel Joseph O'Brien, Jr., Dustin Blake O'Brien, Dylan Blaine O'Brien, and Leslie Dewayne O'Brien, individually and on behalf of the Estate of Daniel Joseph O'Brien, Sr. versus Westley Eugene Worley, Mastec North America, Inc., and Ace American Insurance Company c/w Lonnie P. Fontenot versus Westley Worley, Mastec North America, Inc., Ari Fleet LT, and Ace American Insurance Company c/w John May, III and Steven Guillory, II versus Ace American Insurance Company, Westley Worley and Mastec North America, Inc.", signed March 3, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Travis Gerace and Teryl Gene Gerace, bearing Numbers 48068 Division "C", 48,279 Division "C", 48,344 Division "D", 48,392 Division "D", and 48,419 Division "D", on the docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Pointe Coupee, state of Louisiana.

(6) The sum of \$125,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Micka and Tabatha LeBlanc, individually and on behalf of their minor children, Bryant LeBlanc and Brianne LeBlanc vs. Louisiana Department of Transportation & Development & GoAuto Insurance Company", signed March 24, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Micka LeBlanc and Tabatha LeBlanc, individually and on behalf of their minor children Brianne LeBlanc and Bryant LeBlanc, bearing Number 124,477-A, on the docket of the Sixteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Iberia, state of Louisiana.

(7) The sum of \$15,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Alma Gonzales Mora, individually and on behalf of her minor children, Paulina F. Mora and Jessica A. Mora, The Estate of Ignacio Mora, & Nivardo Mora and Maria Pantoja de Mora versus Sidney Farrior, Pot-O-Gold Rentals, Inc., Gemini Insurance Company and American Central Insurance Company c/w Lee Mar versus The Hanover Insurance Company BFI Waste Systems of North America, Inc., f/k/a Browning-Ferris, Inc. and State of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development", signed January 13, 2016, between the state of

Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Lee Mar, bearing Numbers 2004-05634 Division "F" and 2005-2884 Division "H", on the docket of the Civil District Court for the parish of Orleans, state of Louisiana.

(8) The sum of \$30,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Kristina B. Cohran versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, Clayton General Store, L.L.C., LCAYTON One Stop, L.L.C., and Joseph James Bazille, III", signed October 29, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Kristina B. Cohran, bearing Number 51710 Division "B", on the docket of the Seventh Judicial District Court, parish of Concordia, state of Louisiana.

(9) The sum of \$250,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Miriam Membreno, individually and on behalf of her minor son, Cesar Joel Castillo versus the State of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development", signed February 11, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Miriam Membreno, individually and on behalf of her minor son, Cesar Joel Castillo, bearing Number 641,586 Section 24, on the docket of the Nineteenth Judicial District Court, parish of East Baton Rouge, state of Louisiana.

(10) The sum of \$10,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Jerry Lacaze versus City of Natchitoches, et al", signed January 28, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Jerry Lacaze, bearing Number C-89244 Division "B", on the docket of the Tenth Judicial District Court, parish of Natchitoches, state of Louisiana.

(11) The sum of \$150,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Gerald R. White, et ux versus Louisiana Department of Transportation & Development, et al", signed August 5, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Gerald White and Charlotte White, bearing Number 253,702-A, on the docket of the Ninth Judicial District Court, parish of Rapides, state of Louisiana.

(12) The sum of \$220,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Matthew Wooley, Adrian Wooley and Jason Wooley, et al versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development", signed April 21, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Matthew Wooley, Adrian Wooley, and Jason Wooley, bearing Number 249,191 Division "A", on the docket of the Ninth Judicial District Court, parish of Rapides, state of Louisiana.

(13) The sum of \$18,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "James Geduldick vs. Amanda Fagane, State of Louisiana, Highway Department, Michael Fagane, National Automotive Ins. Co., and Liberty Mutual Mid Atlantic Insurance Co. c/w Ronald L. Courtney and Rebecca L. Morris versus Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, National Automotive Insurance Company, and Amanda V. Fagane", signed December 14, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Todd Courtney, Rhonda Courtney Elliot, Ronnie Courtney, and Erin Couto, bearing Number 127,673 Div. A c/w 159,367 Div. A, on the docket of the Twenty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Livingston, state of Louisiana.

(14)(a) The sum of \$360,443 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Kaitlin Arredondo, individually and on behalf of her minor children, Ayden Aymond and Allison Aymond versus Underwriter's at Lloyd's of London Bayou Gun Runner, L.L.C., et al", signed February 6, 2021, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Kaitlin Arredondo, individually and on behalf of her minor children Ayden Aymond and Allison Aymond, bearing Numbers 48,038 c/w 48,069,

48,072, 48,082, and 48,087, on the docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Pointe Coupee, state of Louisiana.

(b) A sum of up to \$10,000 awarded to Kaitlin Arredondo in the consent judgment captioned "Kaitlin Arredondo, individually and on behalf of her minor children, Ayden Aymond and Allison Aymond versus Underwriter's at Lloyd's of London Bayou Gun Runner, L.L.C., et al", signed February 6, 2021, for future medical care and related benefits shall be payable from the Future Medical Care Fund pursuant to R.S. 39:1533.2.

(15) The sum of \$1,100,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Joseph S. Lessard, Tammy Marie Lessard, Travis P. Lessard, Sr., Jenna LessardGuerra, Travis P. Lessard, Jr. and Joseph Robert Lessard versus the State of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development, the parish of Livingston, John D. Kreher, and Charlotte Kreher Cook", signed August 7, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Joseph S. Lessard, Tammy Marie Lessard, Jenna Lessard Guerra, Travis P. Lessard, Jr., and Joseph Robert Lessard, bearing Number 149,798 Division "B", on the docket of the Twenty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Livingston, state of Louisiana.

(16) The sum of \$15,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Lucretia L. Garrett versus State Farm Fire and Casualty Company, Direct General Insurance Company of Louisiana, Bridget A. Leco and the State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development", signed September 11, 2017, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Lucretia L. Garrett, bearing Number 123,468 Division "A", on the docket of the Twenty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Livingston, state of Louisiana.

(17) The sum of \$150,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Kevin Brent Fontenot versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development", signed August 12, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Kevin Brent Fontenot, bearing Number 66,908 "B", on the docket of the Tenth Judicial District Court, parish of Natchitoches, state of Louisiana.

(18) The sum of \$75,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Linda D. Weaver, et vir versus State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development", signed October 16, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Linda D. Weaver and Charles Weaver, bearing Number 36,596, on the docket of the Thirty-Ninth Judicial District Court, parish of Red River, state of Louisiana.

(19) The sum of \$13,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Corey O. Banks vs Crescent City Connection and Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development", signed October 25, 2018, between the Department of Transportation and Development, the Crescent City Connection, Corey O. Banks, Leontine Mullins, and the City of New Orleans, bearing Numbers 2006-2728 and 2006-3316 Division "E" Section 16, on the docket of the Civil District Court for the parish of Orleans, state of Louisiana.

(20) The sum of \$423,561 plus legal interest from the date of judicial demand and costs to be fixed by the Civil District Court for the parish of Orleans for payment of the judgment captioned "Louise Kaltenbaugh, Ph.D., et al versus Board of Supervisors, Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College at Baton Rouge (Southern University at New Orleans Campus) consolidated with Dayanand Thangada, Audrey S. McGee and Shirley A. Williams-Scott versus Board of Supervisors, Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College at Baton Rouge (Southern University at New Orleans)", rendered on October 23, 2019, against the Board of Supervisors, Southern University Agricultural and Mechanical College (Southern University at New Orleans Campus) in favor of Shirley Williams-Scott, Audrey S. McGee, and Robert

Perry, bearing Numbers 2018-CA-1085 and 2018-CA-1086, on the docket of the Court of Appeal, Fourth Circuit, state of Louisiana.

(21) The sum of \$17,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "David L. Ocmand and Linda C. Ocmand versus Town of Brusly and the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation consolidated with Louisiana Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company versus the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation consolidated with State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Com. versus the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation", signed February 4, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Louisiana Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company, bearing Numbers 1042602, Div. "A", 1042912, Div. "A", and 1042919 Div. "D", on the docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of West Baton Rouge, state of Louisiana.

(22) The sum of \$250,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Corliss Landry vs. Surefire Construction, Inc., and Victor Scott Bernard", signed July 22, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Corliss Landry, bearing Number 2013-2503-A, on the docket of the Fifteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Lafayette, state of Louisiana.

(23) The sum of \$75,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Daisy Horton Holmes, et al versus Lloyd Harris, State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company, AAA Insurance Company and State of Louisiana - Dept. of Transportation", signed February 21, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Nellie Horton Bakare, Mose Horton, Jr., Dwight Horton, Kerri Horton, and Orelee Horton, bearing Number 41,149 Section "B", on the docket of the Twentieth Judicial District Court, parish of East Feliciana, state of Louisiana.

(24) The sum of \$295,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Lonetta Barnard, et al versus Joshua Daniel Goss, et al", signed August 21, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and John Cameron, tutor on behalf of the interdicted plaintiff, Robert Barnard and Lonetta Barnard, bearing Number 10-1772, on the docket of the Fourth Judicial District Court, parish of Ouachita, state of Louisiana.

(25) The sum of \$10,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Andre' and Tina Villemarette, individually and on behalf of their minor children, Devin and Olivia Villemarette versus Joseph Riggins, Owner Operator Services, Inc. and State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company", signed December 5, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Andre' Villemarette, Tina Villemarette individually and on behalf of their minor children Devin Villemarette, and Olivia Villemarette, bearing Number 2012-7744A, on the docket of the Twelfth Judicial District Court, parish of Avoyelles, state of Louisiana.

(26) The sum of \$195,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Adam Fitzgerald, et al versus Andrew Scott Barker, et al consolidated with Reaka Windham versus Liberty Mutual, et al, Louisiana", signed April 24, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Adam Fitzgerald, Robert L. Fitzgerald, and Germaine G. Fitzgerald, bearing Numbers 61,118-A and 61,133-B, on the docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Iberville, state of Louisiana.

(27) The sum of \$125,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Randy Stephens versus State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation & Development", signed December 16, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Randy Stephens, bearing

Number 85,732 Division "B", on the docket of the Thirtieth Judicial District Court, parish of Vernon, state of Louisiana.

(28) The sum of \$52,500 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Richard James Hickman, et al versus State of Louisiana, DOTD" between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development and Sylvia Smith, as the legal tutrix of the minor children, Richard James Hickman, Jr., Alcibiade Joseph Hickman, and Darlene Monica Hickman, bearing Number 118626-C, on the docket of the Sixteenth Judicial District Court, parish of Iberia, state of Louisiana.

(29) The sum of \$250,000 for the payment of the consent judgment captioned, "David L. Ocmand and Linda C. Ocmand versus Town of Brusly and the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation consolidated with Louisiana Farm Bureau Casualty Insurance Company versus the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation consolidated with State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Com. versus the State of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation", signed February 13, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through Department of Transportation and Development, and David and Linda Ocmand, bearing Numbers 1042602 Div. "A", 1042912 Div. "A", and 1042919 Div. "D", on the docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of West Baton Rouge, state of Louisiana.

(30)(a) The sum of \$375,287 for general damages and past and future lost wages and past medical expenses, plus interest on the sum from the date of judicial demand until paid, is hereby payable for payment of the amended non-appealable judgment by consent captioned "Mitchell Johnson, Jr. versus state of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al. consolidated with Davis Lanus, et al. versus state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al.", signed March 12, 2020, against the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Mitchell Johnson, Jr., bearing Number 111.837 Division "A" consolidated with 111.948 Division "D", on the docket of the Twenty-Third Judicial District Court, parish of Ascension, state of Louisiana.

(b) A sum of up to \$32,945 awarded to Mitchell Johnson, Jr. in the judgment captioned "Mitchell Johnson, Jr. versus state of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al. consolidated with Davis Lanus, et al. versus state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al.", signed March 12, 2020 for future medical care and related benefits shall be payable from the Future Medical Care Fund pursuant to R.S. 39:1533.2.

(c) The sum of \$1,241,350 for certain damages and medical expenses, plus interest on the sum from the date of judicial demand until paid, is hereby payable for payment of the amended non-appealable judgment by consent captioned "Mitchell Johnson, Jr. versus state of Louisiana through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al. consolidated with Davis Lanus, et al. versus state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, et al.", signed March 12, 2020, against the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development and in favor of David and Shayla Lanus, bearing Number 111.837 Division "A" consolidated with 111.948 Division "D", on the docket of the Twenty-Third Judicial District Court, parish of Ascension, state of Louisiana.

(31) The sum of \$3,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Christopher Stough and Hope Cantor Stough versus Celadon Corporation, Sammy Trotter, Illinois National Insurance Company, Zastrzyhenyi Dmytro, Dosped, Inc., The State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development, and West Baton Rouge Parish Sherrif's Office", signed May 7, 2019, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Christopher Stough and Hope Cantor Stough, bearing Number 43,213 Division "A", on the

docket of the Eighteenth Judicial District Court, parish of West Baton Rouge, state of Louisiana.

(32) The sum of \$45,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Ross A. Parria and Irene E. Parria, LLC versus State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development", signed on September 29, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Ross A. Parria and Irene E. Parria, LLC, bearing Number 19-1873 Division I-14, on the docket of the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, state of Louisiana.

(33) The sum of \$350,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Thomas Cole versus State of Louisiana, through the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development" between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development, and Thomas Cole, bearing Number 145,958 Division "C", on the docket of the Twenty-First Judicial District Court, parish of Livingston, state of Louisiana.

(34) The sum of \$45,500 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Charles G. Phillips, Jr. and Sandra J. Phillips vs. State of Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development, Shelter Mutual Ins. Co., LA Farm Bureau Casualty Ins. Co. and Velma R. Miller", signed January 6, 2020, between the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Transportation and Development and Charles G. Phillips, Jr. and Sandra J. Phillips, bearing Number 46368, on the docket of the Third Judicial District Court, parish of Union, state of Louisiana.

(35) The sum of \$2,500 for payment of attorney's fees and costs in the judgment captioned "State of Louisiana versus Aaron Dutchy Nelson", signed March 4, 2021, against the state of Louisiana, through the Department of Children and Family Services, bearing Number 16660-IV-D, on the docket of the Thirty-Second Judicial District Court, parish of Terrebonne, state of Louisiana.

(36) The sum of \$248,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Don Fontenelle versus Dash Building Material Center, Inc., et al.", signed January 19, 2021, between the state of Louisiana, through the Board of Supervisors for the University of Louisiana System through the University of New Orleans, and Carla Fontenelle, Alan Fontenelle, and Jason Fontenelle, bearing Number 2018-04573 Division B-5, on the docket of the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans, state of Louisiana.

(37) The sum of \$45,000 for payment of the consent judgment captioned "Albert T. Abadie, et al versus Anco Insulations, Inc., et al", signed February 9, 2021, between the state of Louisiana, through the Board of Supervisors of Louisiana State University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, and Glee D. Fiegenschue and Dana F. Wilson, bearing Number C-492139 Division "J" Section "25", on the docket of the Nineteenth Judicial District Court, parish of East Baton Rouge, state of Louisiana.

(38) The sum of \$5,000, plus attorney fees in the amount of \$9,800, plus court costs in the amount of \$2,442, is hereby payable for payment of the judgment captioned "Elaine Lewnau, Christy Moland, Terrilynn Gillis, Marilyn Seibert, and Tom Aswell versus the Board of Supervisors of Southern State University and Agricultural and Mechanical College", rendered January 9, 2020, against the Board of Supervisors of Southern State University and Agricultural and Mechanical College in favor of Elaine Lewnau, Christy Moland, Terrilynn Gillis, Marilyn Seibert, and Tom Aswell, bearing Number 2019 CA 0943, on the docket of the Court of Appeal, First Circuit, state of Louisiana.

Section 4. Notwithstanding the provisions of R.S. 49:112, the sum of \$30,000,000 is hereby payable out of the State General Fund (Direct) for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 for partial payment of the judgment captioned "Jean Boudreaux and the Victims of the Flood on April 6, 1983 on the Tangipahoa River versus the State of

Louisiana, Department of Transportation, et al.", rendered on June 10, 2005, bearing Number 2004 CA 0985, on the docket of the Court of Appeal, First Circuit, state of Louisiana. The monies payable pursuant to this Section shall be paid to the plaintiffs through Hancock Bank, as escrow agent, into escrow account number 1097000229. Payment shall be made as to this judgment only after presentation to the state treasurer of documentation required by the state treasurer."

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 4, at the beginning of line 36, change "Section 2." to "Section 5."

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 516 was made Special Order of the Day No. 3 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 525—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:842(15), relative to taxation of tobacco products; to provide for the definition of smokeless tobacco; to exclude certain products; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Ways and Means.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Ways and Means to Original House Bill No. 525 by Representative Harris

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 16, delete "pharmaceutical grade"

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 553—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE

AN ACT

To provide with respect to the Revenue Sharing Fund and the allocation and distribution thereof for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 553 by Representative Zeringue

Page 60 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 8, delete line 28 in its entirety and insert "due the Monroe City School Board (\$1,189,051), shall form a special fund (\$9,723,762) to"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 9, line 6, delete "(\$1,193,019)," and insert "(\$1,189,051),"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 9, at the beginning of line 7, delete "(\$1,993,612)" and insert "(\$1,993,780)"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 41, delete lines 4 through 30 in their entirety, delete page 42 in its entirety, and on page 43, delete lines 1 through 10 in their entirety and insert the following:

" PARISH	Total Due FY 2021-2022	Sheriff's Fund	Retirement Contribution
ACADIA	\$ 1,209,913	\$ 144,981	\$ 20,875
ALLEN	507,927	71,859	9,470
ASCENSION	2,522,162	124,756	19,639
ASSUMPTION	431,954	84,694	7,955
AVOUELLES	794,750	122,811	16,170
BEAUREGARD	751,737	81,874	11,624
BIENVILLE	265,015	57,954	8,075
BOSSIER	2,440,710	165,790	45,478
CADDO	4,491,951	533,835	206,854
CALCASIEU	3,945,512	458,864	120,644
CALDWELL	209,457	45,993	6,360
CAMERON	150,610	48,424	7,975
CATAHOULA	195,010	45,507	6,041
CLAIBORNE	309,782	52,800	6,500
CONCORDIA	391,003	70,983	9,690
DESOTO	566,186	53,189	6,958
EAST BATON ROUGE	8,374,408	692,137	238,794
EAST CARROLL	122,708	43,076	6,599
EAST FELICIANA	391,399	47,549	4,745
EVANGELINE	659,244	70,983	10,467
FRANKLIN	413,525	71,081	15,093
GRANT	447,846	59,704	7,118
IBERIA	1,387,758	215,965	36,825
IBERVILLE	632,935	135,258	16,150

JACKSON	313,549	63,496	9,869
JEFFERSON	8,334,775	1,294,427	276,257
JEFFERSON DAVIS	614,698	67,386	15,272
LAFAYETTE	4,702,257	299,589	56,683
LAFOURCHE	1,956,884	187,474	39,038
LASALLE	298,330	53,286	6,958
LINCOLN	870,429	70,692	18,383
LIVINGSTON	2,790,221	163,262	26,358
MADISON	203,909	43,076	7,995
MOREHOUSE	494,190	97,335	18,084
NATCHITOCHE	734,802	104,239	15,452
ORLEANS	7,098,663	0	0
OUACHITA	2,894,124	266,042	63,801
PLAQUEMINES	433,826	139,633	24,743
POINTE COUPEE	438,262	62,329	8,414
RAPIDES	2,564,157	316,022	74,787
RED RIVER	167,386	40,937	2,931
RICHLAND	401,465	63,691	13,618
SABINE	479,737	66,608	10,308
ST. BERNARD	903,622	337,123	59,913
ST. CHARLES	1,039,064	103,072	19,120
ST. HELENA	217,539	43,368	5,802
ST. JAMES	418,890	90,237	15,133
ST. JOHN	844,055	115,129	14,036
ST. LANDRY	1,587,430	266,431	40,135
ST. MARTIN	1,056,742	109,003	12,481
ST. MARY	1,011,916	184,265	36,406
ST. TAMMANY	5,155,550	267,598	47,771
TANGIPAHOA	2,615,464	269,640	37,144
TENSAS	83,738	33,353	5,303
TERREBONNE	2,132,014	217,132	43,365
UNION	443,534	57,370	8,155
VERMILION	1,163,773	118,630	20,018
VERNON	932,552	158,206	22,171
WASHINGTON	913,141	131,174	18,383
WEBSTER	775,045	103,850	22,550

WEST BATON ROUGE	520,961	72,637	10,288
WEST CARROLL	211,066	45,118	9,291
WEST FELICIANA	289,776	39,284	3,748
WINN	278,962	61,551	7,517
TOTAL	<u>\$90,000,000</u>	<u>\$9,723,762</u>	<u>\$1,993,780"</u>

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 553 was made Special Order of the Day No. 8 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 561—
BY REPRESENTATIVE BAGLEY
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 37:1303, relative to physicians; to provide that certain restrictive agreements on physicians relative to employment by any entity of state government are unenforceable; to provide for a physician who is terminated without cause; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Commerce to Original House Bill No. 561 by Representative Bagley

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, after "unenforceable;" and before "and" insert "to provide for a physician who is terminated without cause;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 7, after "enforcement" insert a semicolon ";" and "termination without cause"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the beginning of line 8, insert "A."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, after line 10, add the following:

"B. No provision to restrict the practice of medicine shall be enforceable upon a physician who is terminated without cause by the employer."

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Davis, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 584—
BY REPRESENTATIVE ZERINGUE AND SENATOR CORTEZ AND REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER
AN ACT

To appropriate funds to defray the expenses of the Louisiana Judiciary, including the Supreme Court, Courts of Appeal, District Courts, Criminal District Court of Orleans Parish, and other courts; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 584 by Representative Zeringue

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 4, line 23, after "(Direct)", delete "\$56,169,990" and insert "\$54,882,754"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 25, after "Transfers", delete "\$9,392,850" and insert "\$10,680,086"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 5, delete lines 11 through 13 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof:

"MEANS OF FINANCE:		
State General Fund (Direct)	\$ 47,300,362	\$ 50,466,469
State General Fund by:		
Interagency Transfers	\$ 372,279	\$ 0

TOTAL MEANS OF FINANCING \$ 47,672,641 \$ 50,466,469"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 8, at the end of line 13, delete "\$3,417,804" and insert "\$3,417,084"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 8, at the end of line 15, delete "\$3,417,804" and insert "\$3,417,084"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 8, at the end of line 17, delete "\$3,417,804" and insert "\$3,417,084"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 8, between lines 37 and 38, insert the following:

"Section 2. The appropriations, and the allocations of such appropriations, from the State General Fund (Direct) contained in Section 1 of this Act shall be reduced by a total amount of Nine Million, Six-Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand, One-Hundred Fifty-Five and no/100 (\$9,626,155) Dollars, pursuant to a plan adopted by the Judicial Budgetary Control Board or as approved by the Louisiana Supreme Court."

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 8, at the beginning of line 38, change "Section 2.A." to "Section 3.A."

Page 62 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 10, at the beginning of line 1, change "Section 3." to "Section 4."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 10, line 18, after "(Direct)", delete "\$156,167,954" and insert "\$154,508,439"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 10, delete line 19 in its entirety and insert the following:

"Total Interagency Transfers \$11,052,365 \$ 9,392,850"

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 584 was made Special Order of the Day No. 7 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 606—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BRASS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 48:250.2(A) and (B) and 250.3(C) through (E)(1)(a), relative to the Department of Transportation and Development design-build contracts; to provide for a pool of pre-qualified design-builders; to remove legislative approval for the department to use of design-build; to expand the qualification specific to the type of work experience of design component members; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works to Original House Bill No. 606 by Representative Brass

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "through" and before "relative" change "(E)," to "(E)(1)(a)."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 9, after "Section 1." delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof "R.S. 48:250.2(A) and (B) and 250.3(C) through (E)(1)(a) are hereby amended and reenacted"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 3, delete lines 19 and 20 in their entirety

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 609—

BY REPRESENTATIVE JORDAN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:134(A) and to enact R.S. 9:2800.77, relative to liability of peace officers; to provide relative to immunity from civil liability for peace officers; to provide for exceptions to immunity; to provide for malfeasance; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to Original House Bill No. 609 by Representative Jordan

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete line 2 in its entirety and insert the following:

"To amend and reenact R.S. 14:134(A) and to enact R.S. 9:2800.77, relative to liability of"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 4, after "immunity;" delete the remainder of the line and at the beginning of line 5, delete "attorney fees and costs;"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 11, after "peace officers" delete the remainder of the line

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 12, after "laws" and before "of" delete "or the Constitution"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 13, after "Louisiana" and before "for" delete "or the Constitution of the United States of America"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, delete lines 16 through 19 in their entirety and on page 2, delete lines 1 and 2 in their entirety and insert the following:

"B. For the purposes of this Section, "peace officers" shall include commissioned police officers, sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, marshals, deputy marshals, correctional officers, constables, wildlife enforcement agents, state park wardens, probation and parole officers, military police officers, security personnel employed by the Supreme Court of Louisiana or a court of appeal of Louisiana, and an officer, employee, contract worker, or volunteer with any prison, jail, work release facility, or correctional institution. "Peace officers" shall also include any employee of the state, a municipality, or other public agency whose permanent duties include the making of arrests, performing of searches and seizures, executing criminal warrants, preventing or detecting crime, or enforcing the penal, traffic, or highway laws of this state."

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Gregory Miller, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 620—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BAGLEY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:387.14, relative to the fee and gross vehicle weight limits and axle weight limits for certain special permits; to provide for the increase of special permits; to provide relative to the issuance of special permit fees; to increase the amount of the permit fees; to provide for the application requirements for special permits; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works to Original House Bill No. 620 by Representative Bagley

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 18, after "include" change "six" to "seven"

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 632—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DEVILLIER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:386(A) and 387(A) and (B)(1)(introductory paragraph), relative to divisible shipments; to provide for the inclusion of divisible shipments in the total gross weight of any vehicle or combination of vehicles; to provide for an additional fee applicable to a special permit for shipments that are divisible; to provide for fees; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works to Original House Bill No. 632 by Representative DeVillier

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "R.S. 32:386(A) and" delete "387(B)(1)(introductory paragraph)" and insert "387(A) and (B)(1)(introductory paragraph)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 8, after "R.S. 32:386(A) and" delete "387(B)(1)(introductory paragraph)" and insert "387(A) and (B)(1)(introductory paragraph)"

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 636—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:820.5.9, relative to the Department of Transportation and Development's authority over high-occupancy vehicle lanes on state highways; to create a high-occupancy vehicle; to provide for violations; to provide for definitions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

HOUSE BILL NO. 701 (Substitute for House Bill 636 by

Representative Pierre)—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PIERRE

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:820.5.9, relative to the Department of Transportation and Development's authority over high-occupancy vehicle lanes on state highways; to create a high-occupancy vehicle; to provide for violations; to provide for definitions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 701 by Rep. Pierre, on behalf of the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works, as a substitute for House Bill No. 636 by Rep. Pierre.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

HOUSE BILL NO. 639—

BY REPRESENTATIVES ZERINGUE AND SCHEXNAYDER

AN ACT

To enact Subpart Q-1 of Part II-A of Chapter 1 of Subtitle I of Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 39:100.122 and 100.123, relative to funding for infrastructure investment and construction; to create the Matching Assistance and Grants for Infrastructure and Construction Fund; to provide for uses of the fund; to create a program for the administration of monies from the fund; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Appropriations.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 642—

BY REPRESENTATIVES SCHEXNAYDER AND ZERINGUE AND SENATOR CORTEZ

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 39:100.44.1 and Subpart N of Part II-A of Chapter 1 of Subtitle I of Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 39:100.51 through 100.56, relative to the disbursement of monies received from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021; to create funds for the deposit of federal monies received from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021; to create programs for the administration of monies from the funds; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 642 by Representative Schexnayder

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, after "enact" and before "Subpart" insert "R.S. 39:100.44.1 and"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "R.S. 39:100.51" and before "relative" delete "and 100.52," and insert "through 100.56,"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 5, after "create" and before "for" delete "a fund" and insert "funds"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 6, after "create" and before "for" delete "a program" and insert "programs"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, at the beginning of line 7, delete "fund;" and insert "funds;"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, line 9, after "Section 1." insert "R.S. 39:100.44.1 and"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 1, line 10, after "R.S. 39:100.51" delete the remainder of the line and insert "through 100.56, are hereby"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 1, between lines 11 and 12, insert the following:

"§100.44.1. Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program; Louisiana Rescue Plan Funds

A. Notwithstanding the provisions of R.S. 39:100.44, the treasurer shall utilize the resources of the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program to administer the Louisiana Loggers Relief Program and the Louisiana Save Our Screens Program as provided in this Section. The treasurer may utilize up to five percent of the monies in the Louisiana Loggers Relief Fund and the Louisiana Save Our Screens Fund for administration of the programs. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the treasurer may enter into consulting services, professional services, and information and technology services contracts for the purpose of the procurement of any goods or services necessary to implement and expedite the distribution of funds as emergency procurements exempt from the provisions of the Louisiana Procurement Code and corresponding rules and regulations. The cost of such contracts shall be considered administrative expenses.

B. Any business receiving funding from a program within the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program pursuant to this Section shall meet the following criteria:

(1) Had a physical and active operation in Louisiana as of March 1, 2020.

(2) Had fifty or fewer full-time equivalent employees as of March 1, 2020.

(3) Filed Louisiana taxes for tax years 2019 and 2020.

(4) Experienced a revenue loss of ten percent or greater of gross revenue for the period of January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020, as compared to the gross revenue of the business during the same period in 2019.

(5) Is in good standing with the secretary of state.

(6) Does not exist for the purpose of advancing partisan political activity.

(7) Does not directly lobby federal or state officials.

(8) Does not derive income from passive investments without active participation in business operations.

C. Any grant award received pursuant to this Section combined with any monies received pursuant to the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program as provided in R.S. 39:100.44, United States Small Business Administration-Guaranty Paycheck Protection Program loan, and United States Small Business Administration Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance shall not exceed the amount of revenue loss experienced by the business during the period provided for in Subsection (B)(4) of this Section.

D. Priority shall be given to businesses that previously submitted applications to the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program as provided in R.S. 39:100.44 but whose applications were not considered due to exhaustion of monies in the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Fund.

E. The Louisiana Loggers Relief Program is hereby established as a component of the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program. The program shall provide grants to eligible timber harvesting and timber hauling businesses impacted by COVID-19. Any grant received pursuant to this Subsection shall not exceed twenty-five thousand dollars per business. In addition to the criteria provided in Subsection B of this Section, a timber harvesting or timber hauling business shall meet all of the following criteria to be eligible to receive a grant:

(1) Is assigned a North American Industry Classification System Code of 113310 or 484220.

(2) Is certified by the Louisiana Forestry Association as a master logger.

(3) Is not a subsidiary of a business with more than fifty full-time equivalent employees, is not part of a larger business enterprise with more than fifty full-time equivalent employees, and is not owned by a business with more than fifty full-time equivalent employees.

F. The Louisiana Save Our Screens Program is hereby established as a component of the Louisiana Main Street Recovery Program. The program shall provide grants to eligible movie theater businesses impacted by COVID-19. Any grant received pursuant to this Subsection shall not exceed ten thousand dollars per movie screen located in Louisiana. Theatres with corporate ownership based outside of Louisiana shall use funds received pursuant to this Subsection for Louisiana-based screens and operations. In addition to the criteria provided in Subsection B of this Section, a business shall meet all of the following criteria to be eligible to receive a grant:

(1) Is a movie theater that has at least one permanent indoor auditorium for viewing films for entertainment by the general public

who attend by the purchase of an individual ticket to view a specific non-adult-oriented film.

(2) Conducted regularly scheduled screenings in Louisiana in calendar year 2019.

(3) Is currently open and actively operating as of the effective date of this Section.

(4) Was subject to limitations or restrictions as a result of Proclamation Number 25 JBE 2020 or any subsequent gubernatorial proclamations related to COVID-19."

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 1, delete line 12 and insert "SUBPART N. LOUISIANA RESCUE PLAN FUND"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 1, line 13, after "§100.51." delete the remainder of the line and insert "Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund; purpose"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 1, delete line 15 in its entirety and insert "Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund", hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund."

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 1, line 16, after "B." delete "The" and insert "Except for four hundred million dollars which shall be paid to the Clearing Account of the Unemployment Compensation Fund pursuant to R.S. 23:1491, the"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 2, line 5, after "be" and before "as provided" delete "used solely" and insert "allocated"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 2, delete lines 6 through 23 in their entirety and insert the following:

"E. If the legislature is not in session, the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget is authorized to appropriate monies from the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund or any of the funds created pursuant to this Subpart. Any such appropriation shall be consistent with guidance promulgated by the United States Treasury. The committee is further authorized to approve the transfer of funds between any of the funds created pursuant to this Subpart."

§100.52. Louisiana Water Infrastructure Fund

A. There is hereby created in the state treasury, as a special fund, the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Fund, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund". The treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer three hundred million dollars from the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund into the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Fund.

B. Monies in the fund shall be invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on the investment of monies in the fund shall be deposited in and credited to the fund.

C. Monies in the fund shall be used to provide grant funding for repairs, improvements, and consolidation of water systems and sewerage systems pursuant to the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Program as provided in R.S. 39:100.56.

§100.53. Granting Unserved Municipalities Broadband Opportunities Fund

A. There is hereby created in the state treasury, as a special fund, the Granting Unserved Municipalities Broadband Opportunities (GUMBO) Fund, hereinafter referred to as the "fund". The treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer ninety million dollars from the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund into the fund.

B. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in the fund at the end of the fiscal year shall remain in the fund. Monies in the fund shall be invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on the investment of monies in the fund shall be deposited in and credited to the fund.

C. Monies in the fund shall be used to provide grants to help fund broadband access in rural and disadvantaged areas pursuant to the provisions of the Granting Unserved Municipalities Broadband Opportunities program established by law.

§100.54. Louisiana Loggers Relief Fund

A. There is hereby created in the state treasury, as a special fund, the Louisiana Loggers Relief Fund, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund". The treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to transfer ten million dollars from the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund into the fund. Monies in the fund shall be used to provide economic support grants to eligible Louisiana timber harvesting and timber hauling businesses in accordance with the provisions of the Louisiana Loggers Relief Program as provided in R.S. 39:100.44.I.

B. Monies in the fund shall be invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on the investment of monies in the fund shall be deposited in and credited to the fund.

C. Any remaining balance in the fund on January 1, 2022, shall be transferred to the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund.

§100.55. Louisiana Save Our Screens Fund

A. There is hereby created in the state treasury, as a special fund, the Louisiana Save Our Screens Fund, hereinafter referred to in this Section as the "fund". The treasurer is hereby authorized to transfer four million five hundred thousand dollars from the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund into the fund. Monies in the fund shall be used to provide economic support grants to eligible movie theater owners and operators in accordance with the Louisiana Save Our Screens Program as provided in R.S. 39:100.44.I.

B. Monies in the fund shall be invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund. Interest earned on the investment of monies in the fund shall be deposited in and credited to the fund.

C. Any remaining balance in the fund on January 1, 2022, shall be transferred to the Louisiana Rescue Plan Fund.

§100.56. Louisiana Water Infrastructure Program

A. As used in this Section, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(1) "Committee" shall mean the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget.

(2) "Office" shall mean the office of public health in the Louisiana Department of Health.

(3) "Fund" shall mean the Louisiana Water Infrastructure Fund.

B. The Louisiana Water Infrastructure Program is hereby established to provide grant funding for repairs, improvements, and consolidation of community water systems. The office shall

administer the program. The office shall establish a review panel comprised of employees of the office, the office of community development in the division of administration, the Department of Environmental Quality, and the legislative auditor. The review panel shall review and rate applications submitted by community water systems and local governing authorities and submit recommendations for funding to the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget.

C. The office shall promulgate rules for the administration of the program. The rules shall include application requirements, a timeline for application submissions and approval, criteria for ratings, a process for prioritizing critical infrastructure needs, and requirements for waivers of matching funds or decreased match. The Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., shall not apply to rules promulgated pursuant to this Section. No later than ninety days after the effective date of this Section, the office shall submit the rules to the committee for review and approval. Any changes to the initial rules shall require approval by the committee.

D. In addition to the rules provided for in Subsection C of this Section, the office shall submit a proposed budget outlining administrative expenses for the program to the committee for review and approval prior to implementing the program.

E. Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, the office may enter into consulting services, professional services, and information and technology services contracts for the purpose of the procurement of any goods or services necessary to implement and expedite the distribution of funds as emergency procurements exempt from the provisions of the Louisiana Procurement Code and corresponding rules and regulations. The cost of such contracts shall be considered administrative expenses.

F. Each grant recipient shall be required to provide matching funds unless the review panel recommends waiving the match requirement.

G. Upon committee approval of the rules, the office shall begin accepting applications. The applications shall include the following, at a minimum:

- (1) The amount of grant funding requested.
- (2) The amount and proposed source of funding for the required match.
- (3) Proposals for repairs, improvements, or consolidation with neighboring systems.
- (4) Proposals for ensuring the financial sustainability and compliance of the systems, including proposals for increasing rates paid by users of the system based on a fair assessment of the system to comparable systems.

H. The review panel's funding recommendations to the committee shall include:

- (1) Recommendations for utilization of existing resources including the Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund, Clean Water State Revolving Fund, and Community Water Enrichment and Other Improvements Fund.
- (2) Certification that the local governing authority that operates the system either utilized funding received pursuant to the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund of the American Rescue Act Plan of 2021 as the source of funding for the required match or had legitimate cause that precluded the use of those funds for the match.

I. Upon approval of any funding recommendations, the committee may appropriate monies from the fund to the system or local governing authority that operates the system.

J. No money shall be expended from the fund without approval of the committee.

K. The provisions of R.S. 39:72.1(A) shall not apply to monies appropriated from the fund pursuant to this Section."

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 2, at the beginning of line 24, change "Section 2." to "Section 2.(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 2, after line 28, add the following:

"(B) Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph (A) of this Section, R.S. 39:100.53 as enacted by the provisions of this Act shall become effective if and when the Act which originated as House Bill No. 648 of this 2021 Regular Session of the Legislature is enacted and becomes effective."

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 642 was made Special Order of the Day No. 1 for May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 650—

BY REPRESENTATIVE PRESSLY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 34:991, 992(B), 993, 1042, 1044, 1045, 1122(B)(1) and (C), 1133(G), 1134, and 1135(B), to enact R.S. 34:992(C), 1043(C), 1122(A)(4), 1139 and 1140, and to repeal R.S. 34:1005, relative to the regulation of river port pilots and steamship pilots; to provide for the Board of River Port Pilot Commissioners and the Board of Examiners for New Orleans and Baton Rouge Steamship Pilots for the Mississippi River; to provide for appointments to the boards; to provide for duties of the boards; to provide for authority of the boards; to provide for public meetings; to provide for duties of pilots; to provide for appointments of pilots; to provide for continuing education of pilots; to provide for qualifications to participate in pilot apprenticeship programs; to provide for pilotage certification requirements; to require reports to the governor, president of the Senate, and speaker of the House; to prohibit discrimination; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Commerce to Original House Bill No. 650 by Representative Pressly

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, at the end of line 2, delete "and 1122(B)(1) and (C)," and delete line 3 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"1122(B)(1) and (C), 1133(G), 1134, and 1135(B), to enact R.S. 34:992(C), 1043(C), 1122(A)(4), 1139 and 1140, and to repeal R.S. 34:1005,"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 7, after "appointments" and before "the" insert "to"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the end of line 15, delete "and 1122(B)(1) and (C)" and delete line 16 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"1122(B)(1) and (C), 1133(G), 1134, and 1135(B) are hereby amended and reenacted and R.S. 34:992(C), 1043(C), 1122(A)(4), 1139, and 1140 are hereby"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, delete lines 6 through 16 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof "(1) The commander of the United States Coast Guard Atlantic Area, Eighth District or his designee."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 14, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"§1133. Board of Louisiana River Pilot Review and Oversight; creation; membership

* * *

G. The members of the board shall serve without compensation. However, the members appointed as former judges shall be entitled to a per diem, not to exceed one hundred fifty dollars the same per diem established by the Louisiana Supreme Court from time to time for appointed ad hoc judges while executing their duties as board members. Additionally, the members who shall be appointed judges shall be entitled to reasonable expenses as approved by the chairman.

* * *

§1134. Meetings; quorum

A. The board shall meet at least twice per year, at a place of their choosing, and at other such times and places as it may determine. Six members of the board shall constitute a quorum. A decision by a vote of a majority of the members of the board present shall constitute the decision of the board.

B. The governor shall appoint members and convene the first meeting of the board on or before March 1, 2005.

C. At the first meeting and annually thereafter, the board shall annually elect a chairman and such other officers of the board as they may determine necessary and appropriate for the administration, implementation, and enforcement of this Part.

§1135. Powers; functions; duties; responsibilities

* * *

B.(1) The board shall review and may approve or reject any proposed rule or regulation that may be adopted by any of the Board of Commissioners or Examiners, except for rules and regulations adopted on an emergency basis. Any rejection by the board shall be within ninety days of submission of the proposed rule or regulation to the board; otherwise, such rule or regulation shall be deemed approved.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, following the adoption of any emergency regulation or rule by the Board of Commissioners or Examiners as defined by R.S. 34:1131, the emergency regulation or rule shall be transmitted by the Board of Commissioners or Examiners immediately to the board and to each member of the board. Within ten days of receipt of the emergency

regulation or rule, any individual member of the board may require a meeting of the board by giving notice to the chairman or, in the absence of a chairman, to any other officer of the board for the purpose of holding a meeting to review the emergency regulation or rule for approval or rejection. Any meeting called for consideration of an emergency regulation or rule shall be held within thirty days of the request for a meeting. If the board votes to reject the emergency regulation, or rule, it shall be nullified and of no effect. An emergency regulation or rule review conducted by the board pursuant to the provisions of this Paragraph shall be in addition to R.S. 49:953(B) of the Administrative Procedure Act concerning emergency regulations or rules. If there is any conflict between this Paragraph and R.S. 49:953(B), this provision shall control with regard to the Board of Commissioners or Examiners' emergency regulations or rules.

* * *

§1139. Prudent and safe pilotage

The boards of commissioners or examiners are established for the purposes of prudent and safe pilotage. The pilot members of the Board of Commissioners or Examiners in their deliberations and decisions shall consider the purpose and high standard of prudent and safe pilotage, and in their fiduciary capacity as commissioners or examiners, they shall act independently of the pilots they regulate and independently of any association of pilots. Any effort by pilots or any association of pilots to control or influence the decisions of commissioners or examiners shall be a violation of law.

§1140. No impingement

A. A pilot association, partnership, corporation, or limited liability company shall not create any provision which impinges upon or diminishes the authority or duties of the Board of Commissioners or Examiners."

On motion of Rep. Davis, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Davis, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 662— BY REPRESENTATIVES COUSSAN AND BRYANT AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:633(7)(e), relative to certain severance tax exemptions; to provide for a tax exemption on oil produced from certain orphaned wells; to provide for the amount of the exemption; to provide for applicability; to provide for definitions; to provide for effectiveness; to provide for certain requirements and limitations; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Ways and Means.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Ways and Means to Original House Bill No. 662 by Representative Coussan

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, at the end of line 28 delete "the Department of Natural" and at the beginning of line 29 delete "Resources permitted operation is complete and"

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

HOUSE BILL NO. 695—
BY REPRESENTATIVES SCHEXNAYDER AND ZERINGUE
AN ACT

To To appropriate funds for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to defray the expenses of the Louisiana Legislature, including the expenses of the House of Representatives and the Senate, of legislative service agencies, and of the Louisiana State Law Institute; to provide for the salary, expenses, and allowances of members, officers, staff, and agencies of the Legislature; to provide with respect to the appropriations and allocations herein made; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Appropriations.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Appropriations to Original House Bill No. 695 by Representative Schexnayder

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 9, after "sum of" delete the remainder of the line and on line 10, delete "Eighty-One and No/100 (\$74,093,881.00)" and insert "Seventy-Three Million Six Hundred Ten Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Three and No/100 (\$73,610,173.00)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 4, line 12, after "Ten Million" delete the remainder of the line and on line 13, delete "Hundred Eight and No/100 (\$10,483,708.00)" and insert "and No/100 (\$10,000,000.00)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 4, line 22, delete "forty-five" and insert "Forty-Five"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 9, delete line 14 in its entirety and insert the following:

"Legislative Auditor \$10,483,708 \$10,000,000"

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, House Bill No. 695 was made Special Order of the Day No. 6 for May 6, 2021.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Green, the Committee on Appropriations was discharged from further consideration of House Bill No. 157.

On motion of Rep. Zeringue, the bill was ordered passed to its third reading.

House and House Concurrent Resolutions on Third Reading for Final Consideration

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions on third reading for final consideration were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 18—
BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education to conduct a study of processes used to collect, investigate, track, monitor, and disclose complaints and deficiencies relative to child care providers and to submit a written report of findings and conclusions, including any recommendations for related legislation, to the House Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on Education not later than sixty days prior to the beginning of the 2022 Regular Session of the Legislature.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. DeVillier, the resolution was returned to the calendar.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 34—
BY REPRESENTATIVES BUTLER, CARRIER, EDMONSTON, MIKE JOHNSON, KERNER, LANDRY, NEWELL, AND VILLIO
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Louisiana Department of Health to study potential means of financing dental care for adult residents of intermediate care facilities for persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities and to report findings of the study to the House Committee on Appropriations, the Senate Committee on Finance, and the legislative committees on health and welfare.

Read by title.

Rep. Butler moved the adoption of the resolution.

By a vote of 99 yeas and 0 nays, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 6—
BY REPRESENTATIVE ECHOLS
A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Department of Children and Family Services to develop data sharing agreements with the Louisiana Gaming Control Board and the Louisiana Lottery Corporation to facilitate identification of lottery and other gaming winners who receive Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program benefits.

Read by title.

Rep. Echols sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Echols to Engrossed House Resolution No. 6 by Representative Echols

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, delete "lottery and other gaming winners" and insert in lieu thereof "winners of substantial lottery or gambling winnings"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 13, after "identification of" delete the remainder of the line and insert in lieu thereof "winners of substantial lottery or gambling winnings, as provided in 7 CFR 273.11(r),"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, at the beginning of line 14, delete "gaming winnings"

On motion of Rep. Echols, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Echols moved the adoption of the resolution, as amended.

By a vote of 67 yeas and 27 nays, the resolution, as amended, was adopted.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Lyons requested the House consent to correct his vote on final passage of House Resolution No. 6 from yea to nay, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 7—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ECHOLS

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Department of Children and Family Services to study out-of-state expenditures of Louisiana-issued Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program benefits in order to identify fraud and to report findings of the study to the House Committee on Appropriations and the House Committee on Health and Welfare.

Read by title.

Rep. Echols moved the adoption of the resolution.

By a vote of 66 yeas and 31 nays, the resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 8—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ECHOLS

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the Department of Children and Family Services to investigate out-of-state retailers at which the greatest amounts of Louisiana-issued Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program benefits are expended and to report findings of the investigation to the House Committee on Appropriations and the House Committee on Health and Welfare.

Read by title.

Speaker Pro Tempore Magee in the Chair

Rep. Echols moved the adoption of the resolution.

By a vote of 70 yeas and 30 nays, the resolution was adopted.

Suspension of Rules

Rep. Mincey asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to take up at this time the following House and House Concurrent Resolutions ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading, with a view of acting on the same:

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 54—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MINCEY

A RESOLUTION

To urge and request the state superintendent of education to request Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) waivers regarding school and district accountability and reporting requirements for the 2020-2021 school year.

Read by title.

Rep. Mincey moved the adoption of the resolution.

By a vote of 93 yeas and 0 nays, the resolution was adopted.

Speaker Schexnayder in the Chair**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 18—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education to conduct a study of processes used to collect, investigate, track, monitor, and disclose complaints and deficiencies relative to child care providers and to submit a written report of findings and conclusions, including any recommendations for related legislation, to the House Committee on Education and the Senate Committee on Education not later than sixty days prior to the beginning of the 2022 Regular Session of the Legislature.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Emerson moved the adoption of the resolution.

By a vote of 98 yeas and 0 nays, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

House Concurrent Resolutions Returned from the Senate with Amendments

The following House Concurrent Resolutions returned from the Senate with amendments to be concurred in by the House were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 43—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MCFARLAND AND SENATORS CATHEY, BOUDREAUX, BOUIE, CARTER, CLOUD, CORTEZ, FESI, HEWITT, JACKSON, MCMATH, MILLIGAN, FRED MILLS, ROBERT MILLS, MIZELL, MORRIS, PEACOCK, REESE, SMITH, AND WOMACK

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate April 28, 2021, as the first annual Louisiana Loggers Day at the Capitol.

Read by title.

The above resolution was taken up with the amendments proposed by the Senate.

SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Cathey to Original House Concurrent Resolution No. 43 by Representative McFarland

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 1, delete "House of Representatives of the"

Rep. McFarland moved that the amendments proposed by the Senate be concurred in.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	Miguez
Adams	Frieman	Miller, D.
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bacala	Geymann	Mincey

Bagley	Glover	Moore
Beaullieu	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bishop	Green	Nelson
Bourriaque	Harris	Newell
Brass	Hilferty	Orgeron
Brown	Hollis	Owen, C.
Bryant	Huval	Owen, R.
Butler	Illg	Phelps
Carpenter	Ivey	Pierre
Carrier	James	Pressly
Carter, G.	Jefferson	Riser
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Romero
Carter, W.	Johnson, M.	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Coussan	Jones	Selders
Cox	Jordan	St. Blanc
Crews	Kerner	Stagni
Davis	LaCombe	Stefanski
Deshotel	Landry	Tarver
DeVillier	Larvadain	Thomas
DuBuisson	Lyons	Thompson
Duplessis	Mack	Turner
Echols	Magee	Villio
Edmonds	Marcelle	White
Edmonston	Marino	Willard
Farnum	McCormick	Wright
Firment	McFarland	Zeringue
Fontenot	McKnight	
Freeman	McMahen	
Total - 98		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Emerson	Garofalo	Horton
Gadberry	Hodges	Hughes
Total - 6		

The amendments proposed by the Senate were concurred in by the House.

House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on third reading and final passage were taken up and acted upon as follows:

HOUSE BILL NO. 20—
BY REPRESENTATIVES MIGUEZ AND HODGES
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 18:1400.10, relative to the funding of elections and related expenses; to prohibit public officials and agencies from using private donations to pay costs related to conducting elections; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Miguez moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	Miller, G.
Adams	Frieman	Mincey
Amedee	Gadberry	Muscarello
Bacala	Garofalo	Nelson
Bagley	Geymann	Orgeron

Beaullieu	Goudeau	Owen, C.
Bishop	Harris	Owen, R.
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Pressly
Butler	Hodges	Riser
Carrier	Hollis	Romero
Coussan	Horton	Schamerhorn
Crews	Huval	Seabaugh
Davis	Illg	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Ivey	Stagni
DeVillier	Johnson, M.	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Echols	Mack	Thomas
Edmonds	Magee	Thompson
Edmonston	McCormick	Turner
Emerson	McFarland	Villio
Farnum	McKnight	Wheat
Firment	McMahen	Wright
Fontenot	Miguez	Zeringue
Total - 69		

NAYS

Brass	Glover	Lyons
Brown	Green	Marcelle
Bryant	Hughes	Marino
Carpenter	James	Miller, D.
Carter, G.	Jefferson	Moore
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Newell
Carter, W.	Johnson, T.	Phelps
Cormier	Jones	Pierre
Cox	Jordan	Selders
Duplessis	LaCombe	White
Freeman	Landry	Willard
Gaines	Larvadain	
Total - 35		

ABSENT

Total - 0

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Miguez moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Suspension of the Rules

Rep. James moved to suspend the rules to call House Bill No. 46 from the calendar at this time, which motion was agreed to.

HOUSE BILL NO. 46—
BY REPRESENTATIVES JAMES AND JORDAN
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Articles 230.1(B), 292, 293, 294(D), 701(B), (C), and (D)(1)(introductory paragraph) and (3), and 732 and to enact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 734(D), relative to pretrial procedures; to provide relative to the subpoena of a witness to appear before certain persons; to provide relative to appointment of counsel for certain persons; to provide relative to transcripts of preliminary examination proceedings; to provide relative to an order for preliminary examination before and after indictment; to provide relative to subpoenas; to provide relative to service of subpoenas; to provide relative to pretrial motions for speedy trial; to provide relative to the effect of a defendant's motion for speedy trial on certain duties of the state with regard to discovery; to provide relative to the court's authority to suspend or dismiss a pending speedy trial motion; to provide relative to the time period within which a bill of information or indictment is filed; to provide relative to the time period for setting an arraignment; to provide relative to the defendant's bail

obligation under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Stefanski sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Stefanski to Engrossed House Bill No. 46 by Representative James

AMENDMENT NO. 1

Delete the set of House Floor Amendments by Representative James (#1766)

AMENDMENT NO. 2

Delete the set of House Floor Amendments by Representative Horton (#944)

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 2, after "Procedure" delete the remainder of the line and insert "Article"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, delete line 3 through 16 in their entirety and insert "701(B)(1)(a), relative to pretrial motions for speedy trial; to provide relative to a defendant in continued custody; and to provide for related matters."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 18 after "Procedure" delete "Articles 230.1(B), 292, 293, 294(D) 701(B)," and insert "Article 701(B)(1)(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, delete lines 19 and 20 in their entirety and insert "is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, delete lines 1 through 28 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, delete lines 1 through 3 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 3, line 8, after "(1)(a)" delete the remainder of the line

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, line 9, delete "Subparagraph, when" and insert "When"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, line 10 change "five" to "thirty"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 3, between lines 10 and 11 insert

"if the defendant is being held for a misdemeanor and within sixty days of the arrest if the defendant is being held for a felony."

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 3, delete lines 13 through 29 and delete pages 4 and 5 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Section 2. This Act shall become effective upon signature by the governor or, if not signed by the governor, upon expiration of the time for bills to become law without signature by the governor, as provided by Article III, Section 18 of the Constitution of Louisiana. If vetoed by the governor and subsequently approved by the legislature, this Act shall become effective on the day following such approval."

Speaker Pro Tempore Magee in the Chair

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. James moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	McKnight
Adams	Frieman	McMahan
Amedee	Gadberry	Miguez
Bacala	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bagley	Garofalo	Mincey
Beaullieu	Geymann	Moore
Bishop	Glover	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Nelson
Brass	Green	Newell
Brown	Harris	Orgeron
Bryant	Hilferty	Owen, C.
Butler	Hollis	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Horton	Phelps
Carrier	Hughes	Pierre
Carter, G.	Huval	Pressly
Carter, R.	Illg	Riser
Carter, W.	Ivey	Romero
Cormier	James	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jefferson	Seabaugh
Cox	Jenkins	Selders
Crews	Johnson, M.	St. Blanc
Davis	Johnson, T.	Stagni
Deshotel	Jones	Stefanski
DeVillier	Jordan	Tarver
DuBuisson	Kerner	Thomas
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thompson
Echols	Landry	Turner
Edmonds	Larvadain	Villio
Edmonston	Lyons	Wheat
Emerson	Magee	White
Farnum	Marcelle	Willard
Firment	Marino	Wright
Fontenot	McCormick	Zeringue
Freeman	McFarland	

Total - 101

NAYS

Mack
Total - 1

ABSENT

Hodges
Total - 2
Miller, D.

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. James moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 73—

BY REPRESENTATIVE CREWS
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:262(A) and (B) and R.S. 46:153.4(H) and to enact R.S. 46:153.4(I), relative to the Medicaid estate recovery program; to require the Louisiana Department of Health to contract for the administration of the program; to provide for requirements and specifications relative to such contracts; to authorize the department to contract on a contingency fee basis for Medicaid estate recovery program administration; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Speaker Schexnayder in the Chair

Rep. Crews moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Emerson	Miguez
Amedee	Farnum	Miller, G.
Bacala	Freiberg	Muscarello
Bagley	Frieman	Nelson
Bishop	Gadberry	Owen, C.
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Pressly
Butler	Hilferty	Romero
Carrier	Hollis	Schamerhorn
Crews	Illg	Seabaugh
Davis	Ivey	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Kerner	Stagni
DeVillier	Mack	Tarver
DuBuisson	Marino	Thomas
Echols	McCormick	Turner
Edmonds	McKnight	Villio
Edmonston	McMahan	Wright
Total - 48		

NAYS

Adams	Gaines	McFarland
Beaullieu	Green	Miller, D.
Brass	Hughes	Mincey
Brown	Huval	Newell
Bryant	James	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Jefferson	Phelps
Carter, G.	Jenkins	Pierre
Carter, R.	Johnson, M.	Riser
Carter, W.	Johnson, T.	Selders
Cormier	Jordan	Stefanski
Coussan	LaCombe	Thompson
Cox	Landry	White
Duplessis	Larvadain	White
Firment	Lyons	Willard
Fontenot	Magee	Zeringue
Freeman	Marcelle	
Total - 47		

ABSENT

Garofalo	Harris	Jones
Geymann	Hodges	Moore
Glover	Horton	Orgeron
Total - 9		

The Chair declared the above bill failed to pass.

Rep. Dustin Miller moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill failed to pass, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 77—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MARINO, JONES, LANDRY, AND MARCELLE
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 893(B), relative to suspension of sentences in felony cases; to provide relative to fourth or subsequent convictions; to provide relative to the consent of the district attorney; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Marino moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freeman	McKnight
Adams	Freiberg	McMahan
Amedee	Frieman	Miguez
Bacala	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Bagley	Gaines	Miller, G.
Beaullieu	Glover	Mincey
Bishop	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriaque	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Hilferty	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, C.
Butler	Horton	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Hughes	Phelps
Carrier	Huval	Pierre
Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser
Carter, W.	James	Romero
Cormier	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, M.	Selders
Crews	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Davis	Jordan	Stagni
Deshotel	Kerner	Stefanski
DeVillier	LaCombe	Tarver
DuBuisson	Landry	Thomas
Duplessis	Larvadain	Thompson
Echols	Lyons	Turner
Edmonds	Mack	Villio
Edmonston	Magee	White
Emerson	Marcelle	White
Farnum	Marino	Willard
Firment	McCormick	Wright
Fontenot	McFarland	Zeringue
Total - 99		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Garofalo	Harris	Orgeron
Geymann	Jones	
Total - 5		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Marino moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 86—
BY REPRESENTATIVE BEAULLIEU
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:444(G), relative to a parish executive committee of a recognized political party in Lafayette Parish; to provide relative to membership on such a committee; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Beaulieu moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McMahan
Adams	Gadberry	Miguez
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, D.
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Glover	Mincey
Beaulieu	Goudeau	Moore
Bishop	Green	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Nelson
Brass	Hodges	Newell
Brown	Hollis	Orgeron
Bryant	Horton	Owen, C.
Butler	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Huval	Phelps
Carrier	Illg	Pierre
Carter, G.	Ivey	Pressly
Carter, W.	James	Riser
Cormier	Jefferson	Romero
Coussan	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cox	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, T.	Selders
Davis	Jones	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jordan	Stagni
DeVillier	Kerner	Stefanski
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Tarver
Duplessis	Landry	Thomas
Echols	Larvadain	Thompson
Edmonds	Lyons	Turner
Edmonston	Mack	Villio
Emerson	Magee	White
Farnum	Marcelle	Willard
Firment	Marino	Wright
Fontenot	McCormick	Zeringue
Freeman	McFarland	
Freiberg	McKnight	
Total - 101		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Carter, R.	Geymann	Harris
Total - 3		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Beaulieu moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 168—
BY REPRESENTATIVE MIKE JOHNSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:491(B), relative to objections to candidacy for elective office; to provide relative to review of evidence by a district attorney; to provide relative to filing of objections by a district attorney; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Michael Johnson moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	Miguez
Adams	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bacala	Garofalo	Mincey
Bagley	Glover	Moore
Beaulieu	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bishop	Green	Nelson
Bourriaque	Hilferty	Newell
Brass	Hodges	Orgeron
Brown	Hollis	Owen, C.
Bryant	Horton	Owen, R.
Butler	Hughes	Phelps
Carpenter	Huval	Pierre
Carrier	Illg	Pressly
Carter, G.	Ivey	Riser
Carter, R.	James	Romero
Carter, W.	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, M.	Selders
Crews	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Davis	Jones	Stagni
Deshotel	Jordan	Stefanski
DeVillier	Kerner	Tarver
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Thomas
Duplessis	Landry	Thompson
Echols	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonds	Lyons	Villio
Edmonston	Mack	White
Emerson	Magee	Willard
Farnum	Marcelle	Wright
Firment	Marino	Zeringue
Fontenot	McCormick	
Freeman	McKnight	
Freiberg	McMahan	
Total - 100		

NAYS

Cormier
Total - 1

ABSENT

Geymann	Harris	McFarland
Total - 3		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Michael Johnson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 232—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MARINO AND JAMES
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 894(B)(2), relative to suspension and deferral of sentence and probation in misdemeanor cases; to provide relative to discharge and dismissal of prosecutions; to remove the restriction that discharge and dismissal may occur only once during a five-year period; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Marino moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freeman	McMahan
Adams	Freiberg	Miguez
Amedee	Frieman	Miller, D.
Bacala	Gadberry	Miller, G.
Bagley	Gaines	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell
Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, C.
Butler	Horton	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Hughes	Phelps
Carrier	Huval	Pierre
Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	James	Riser
Carter, W.	Jefferson	Romero
Cormier	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, T.	Selders
Crews	Jones	St. Blanc
Davis	Jordan	Stagni
Deshotel	Kerner	Stefanski
DeVillier	LaCombe	Tarver
DuBuisson	Landry	Thomas
Duplessis	Larvadain	Thompson
Echols	Lyons	Turner
Edmonds	Mack	Villio
Edmonston	Magee	Wheat
Emerson	Marcelle	White
Farnum	Marino	Willard
Firment	McCormick	Wright
Fontenot	McFarland	Zeringue

Total - 99

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Garofalo	Harris	McKnight
Geymann	Ivey	

Total - 5

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Marino moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 243—

BY REPRESENTATIVES NEWELL AND MARCELLE
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:966(B)(2)(introductory paragraph) and (D)(1) and to repeal R.S. 40:964(Schedule I)(C)(19) and 966(C)(2) and (F), relative to marijuana; to remove criminal penalties associated with the possession, distribution, or dispensing of marijuana; to provide for a contingent effective date; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Newell, the bill was returned to the calendar.

HOUSE BILL NO. 270—

BY REPRESENTATIVES MAGEE, BAGLEY, HUGHES, DUSTIN MILLER, AND TURNER AND SENATOR FRED MILLS
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:1262(4) and 1291(6) and R.S. 40:1223.3(6)(a) and to enact R.S. 37:1291(7), relative to telemedicine and telehealth; to revise the definitions of those terms; to exempt certain activity from laws pertaining to the practice of medicine; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Magee sent up floor amendments on behalf Representative Stagni which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Stagni to Engrossed House Bill No. 270 by Representative Magee

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 7, after "Electronic mail messages" and before "that are" insert "and text messages"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, line 14, after "Electronic mail messages" and before "that are" insert "and text messages"

On motion of Rep. Magee, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Magee moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	McMahan
Adams	Frieman	Miguez
Amedee	Gadberry	Miller, D.
Bacala	Gaines	Miller, G.
Bagley	Garofalo	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell
Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, C.
Butler	Horton	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Hughes	Phelps
Carrier	Huval	Pierre

Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser
Carter, W.	James	Romero
Cormier	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, M.	Selders
Crews	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Davis	Jordan	Stagni
Deshotel	Kerner	Stefanski
DeVillier	LaCombe	Tarver
DuBuisson	Landry	Thomas
Duplessis	Larvadain	Thompson
Echols	Lyons	Turner
Edmonds	Mack	Villio
Edmonston	Magee	White
Emerson	Marcelle	Willard
Farnum	Marino	Wright
Firment	McCormick	Zeringue
Fontenot	McFarland	
Freeman	McKnight	
Total - 101		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Geymann	Harris	Jones
Total - 3		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Magee moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 285—
BY REPRESENTATIVE JAMES

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:563(C)(1) and 1309(E)(4)(a), relative to voting; to provide for the amount of time a voter may remain in a voting machine; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. James moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McMahan
Adams	Gadberry	Miguez
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, D.
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Geymann	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell
Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, C.
Butler	Horton	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Hughes	Phelps
Carrier	Huval	Pierre
Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser
Carter, W.	James	Romero

Cormier	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, M.	Selders
Crews	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Davis	Jones	Stagni
Deshotel	Jordan	Stefanski
DeVillier	Kerner	Tarver
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Thomas
Duplessis	Landry	Thompson
Echols	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonds	Lyons	Villio
Edmonston	Mack	White
Emerson	Magee	Willard
Farnum	Marcelle	Wright
Firment	Marino	Zeringue
Fontenot	McCormick	
Freeman	McFarland	
Freiberg	McKnight	
Total - 103		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Harris
Total - 1

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. James moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 378—
BY REPRESENTATIVE JENKINS
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 18:102(A)(1)(b), 171(A), (B), and (C), 171.1(A)(1), and 176(A)(1), (2), and (3)(b) and to enact R.S. 18:102(C), relative to registration and voting; to provide relative to registration and voting by a person with a felony conviction; to provide relative to the suspension of registration and voting rights of such a person; to provide relative to reports to election officials concerning such persons; to provide relative to the duties of registrars of voters and officials in the Department of State and in the Department of Public Safety and Corrections relative to such reports; to provide for the information required to be reported; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Jenkins moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	McMahan
Adams	Gadberry	Miguez
Bagley	Gaines	Miller, D.
Beaullieu	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bishop	Glover	Mincey
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Moore
Brass	Green	Nelson
Brown	Hilferty	Newell
Bryant	Hollis	Orgeron
Butler	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Huval	Phelps
Carrier	James	Pierre

Page 76 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Carter, G.	Jefferson	Riser
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Romero
Carter, W.	Johnson, M.	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Johnson, T.	Selders
Coussan	Jones	St. Blanc
Cox	Jordan	Stagni
Davis	Kerner	Stefanski
Deshotel	LaCombe	Tarver
DeVillier	Landry	Thompson
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Turner
Duplessis	Lyons	Wheat
Echols	Magee	White
Edmonston	Marcelle	Willard
Emerson	Marino	Wright
Farnum	McFarland	Zeringue
Freeman	McKnight	
Total - 83		

NAYS

Amedee	Frieman	Muscarello
Bacala	Hodges	Owen, C.
Crews	Horton	Pressly
Edmonds	Illg	Seabaugh
Firment	Mack	Thomas
Fontenot	McCormick	
Total - 17		

ABSENT

Geymann	Ivey
Harris	Villio
Total - 4	

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Jenkins moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 422—
BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 15:1199.4(O), relative to the Reentry Advisory Council; to provide relative to the membership of the Reentry Advisory Council; to provide relative to the disqualification of members for missing a certain number of meetings; to provide for certain notification to the nominating authority of the disqualified member; to provide for the appointment of a member to replace the disqualified member; to prohibit the disqualified member from being reappointed for a certain period of time; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Emerson moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McMahan
Adams	Gadberry	Miguez
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, D.
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Geymann	Mincey
Beaulieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell

Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, C.
Butler	Horton	Owen, R.
Carpenter	Hughes	Phelps
Carrier	Huval	Pierre
Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser
Carter, W.	James	Romero
Cormier	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Coussan	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Cox	Johnson, M.	Selders
Crews	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Davis	Jones	Stagni
Deshotel	Jordan	Stefanski
DeVillier	Kerner	Tarver
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Thomas
Duplessis	Landry	Thompson
Echols	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonds	Lyons	Villio
Edmonston	Mack	Wheat
Emerson	Magee	White
Farnum	Marcelle	Willard
Firment	Marino	Wright
Fontenot	McCormick	Zeringue
Freeman	McFarland	
Freiberg	McKnight	
Total - 103		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Harris
Total - 1

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Emerson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 560—
BY REPRESENTATIVE EMERSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 211, relative to summons by an officer instead of arrest and booking; provides for issuance of a citation in lieu of arrest for persons committing certain offenses; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Horton, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Horton on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 560 by Representative Emerson

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, between lines 4 and 5, insert "Be it enacted by the Legislature of Louisiana: Section 1. Code of Criminal Procedure Article 211 is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:"

On motion of Rep. Horton, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Emerson moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahon
Amedee	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Bagley	Geymann	Miller, G.
Beaullieu	Glover	Mincey
Bishop	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriaque	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Hilferty	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Bryant	Hollis	Orgeron
Butler	Horton	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carrier	Huval	Phelps
Carter, G.	Illg	Pierre
Carter, R.	Ivey	Pressly
Carter, W.	James	Riser
Cormier	Jefferson	Romero
Coussan	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Cox	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Davis	Johnson, T.	Selders
Deshotel	Jones	St. Blanc
DeVillier	Jordan	Stagni
DuBuisson	Kerner	Stefanski
Duplessis	LaCombe	Tarver
Echols	Landry	Thomas
Edmonds	Larvadain	Thompson
Edmonston	Lyons	Turner
Emerson	Mack	Villio
Farnum	Magee	Wheat
Firment	Marcelle	White
Fontenot	Marino	Willard
Freeman	McCormick	Wright
Freiberg	McFarland	Zeringue

Total - 102

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Crews
Total - 2

Harris

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Emerson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 570—
BY REPRESENTATIVE LYONS

AN ACT

To enact Part VI of Chapter 5-E of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1257.1 through 1257.4, relative to nonemergency, non-ambulance medical transportation providers enrolled in the state Medicaid program; to provide for enhanced monthly payments to such providers by the Louisiana Department of Health; to provide for the calculation of, and to set limits on, such monthly payment amounts; to make the payments contingent upon federal approval; to provide for administrative rulemaking; to provide for a termination date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Lyons moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	Marcelle
Adams	Gadberry	Marino
Bacala	Gaines	McKnight
Beaullieu	Garofalo	McMahon
Bishop	Glover	Miller, D.
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Miller, G.
Brass	Green	Mincey
Brown	Hilferty	Moore
Bryant	Hollis	Nelson
Butler	Hughes	Newell
Carpenter	Illg	Owen, R.
Carrier	Ivey	Phelps
Carter, G.	James	Pierre
Carter, R.	Jefferson	Selders
Carter, W.	Jenkins	St. Blanc
Cormier	Johnson, T.	Stagni
Coussan	Jones	Tarver
Cox	Jordan	Thompson
DeVillier	Kerner	Turner
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Villio
Duplessis	Landry	White
Edmonds	Larvadain	Willard
Farnum	Lyons	Wright
Freeman	Magee	Zeringue

Total - 72

NAYS

Amedee	Hodges	Orgeron
Deshotel	Horton	Owen, C.
Echols	Huval	Pressly
Edmonston	Johnson, M.	Riser
Emerson	Mack	Romero
Firment	McCormick	Schamerhorn
Fontenot	McFarland	Seabaugh
Frieman	Miguez	Stefanski
Geymann	Muscarello	Wheat

Total - 27

ABSENT

Bagley
Crews
Total - 5

Davis
Harris

Thomas

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Lyons moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 577—
BY REPRESENTATIVES MCKNIGHT AND JORDAN

AN ACT

To enact Subpart D-1 of Part IV of Chapter 4 of Title 22 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 22:1341 through 1346, relative to residential flood coverage; to provide for notice to applicants; to provide for types of residential flood insurance policies; to provide for definitions; to provide for an alternative rate filing process; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. McKnight sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative McKnight to Engrossed House Bill No. 577 by Representative McKnight

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 7, line 4, change "A." to "A.(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 7, at the beginning of line 9, change "(1)" to "(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 7, at the beginning of line 11, change "(2)" to "(b)"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 7, delete lines 14 through 16 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"(2) If an applicant does not have flood coverage, a producer shall inform the applicant of the existence of the National Flood Insurance Program.

B. (1) An insurer writing standard flood insurance policies, preferred flood insurance policies, customized flood insurance policies, flexible flood insurance policies, residential flood insurance policies using a different definition of "flood" than that used in R.S. 22:1341, or residential flood insurance policies with terms and conditions other than those described in R.S. 22:1344, shall state whether the coverage meets, exceeds, or does not meet the coverage of a private flood insurance policy, as defined in 42 U.S.C. 4012a(b)(7), by making one of the following certifications:

(a) "This flood insurance policy meets or exceeds the coverage of "private flood insurance" as defined in 42 U.S.C. 4012a(b)(7), applicable federal regulations, and the standard flood insurance policy under the National Flood Insurance Program."

(b) "This flood insurance policy provides less coverage than "private flood insurance" as defined in 42 U.S.C. 4012a(b)(7), applicable federal regulations, or the standard flood insurance policy under the National Flood Insurance Program."

(2) The certifications required pursuant to this Subsection shall be in writing on the declarations page of the policy in bold typed print of not less than a fourteen point font."

On motion of Rep. McKnight, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. McKnight moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. Speaker, Frieman, McKnight, Adams, Gadberry, McMahan, Amedee, Gaines, Miguez, Bacala, Garofalo, Miller, D., Bagley, Geymann, Miller, G., Beaulieu, Glover, Mincey, Bishop, Goudeau, Moore, Bourriaque, Green, Muscarello, Brass, Hilferty, Nelson

Table with 3 columns: Brown, Hodges, Newell, Bryant, Hollis, Orgeron, Butler, Horton, Owen, C., Carpenter, Hughes, Owen, R., Carrier, Huval, Pierre, Carter, G., Illg, Pressly, Carter, R., Ivey, Riser, Carter, W., James, Romero, Cormier, Jefferson, Schamerhorn, Coussan, Jenkins, Seabaugh, Cox, Johnson, M., Selders, Davis, Johnson, T., St. Blanc, Deshotel, Jones, Stagni, DeVillier, Jordan, Stefanski, DuBuisson, Kerner, Tarver, Duplessis, LaCombe, Thomas, Echols, Landry, Thompson, Edmonds, Larvadain, Turner, Edmonston, Lyons, Villio, Emerson, Mack, Wheat, Farnum, Magee, White, Firment, Marcelle, Willard, Fontenot, Marino, Wright, Freeman, McCormick, Newell, Freiberg, McFarland, Orgeron

Total - 100

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 2 columns: Crews, Phelps, Harris, Zeringue

Total - 4

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. McKnight moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 48— BY REPRESENTATIVE MIGUEZ AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1379.3(D)(2) and to enact R.S. 40:1379.3(D)(1)(j), relative to concealed handgun permits; to provide relative to the required safety and training for applicants; to provide relative to the certification of instructors of the required safety and training courses; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Miguez moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns: Mr. Speaker, Frieman, McMahan, Adams, Gadberry, Miguez, Amedee, Gaines, Miller, D., Bacala, Garofalo, Miller, G., Bagley, Geymann, Mincey, Beaulieu, Glover, Moore, Bishop, Goudeau, Nelson, Bourriaque, Green, Newell, Brass, Hilferty, Orgeron

Brown	Hodges	Owen, C.
Bryant	Hollis	Owen, R.
Butler	Horton	Phelps
Carpenter	Hughes	Pierre
Carrier	Huval	Pressly
Carter, G.	Illg	Riser
Carter, R.	Ivey	Romero
Carter, W.	James	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Jefferson	Seabaugh
Coussan	Jenkins	Selders
Cox	Johnson, M.	St. Blanc
Crews	Johnson, T.	Stagni
Davis	Jones	Stefanski
Deshotel	Jordan	Tarver
DeVillier	Kerner	Thomas
DuBuisson	LaCombe	Thompson
Echols	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonds	Lyons	Villio
Edmonston	Mack	White
Emerson	Magee	Willard
Farnum	Marcelle	Wright
Firment	Marino	Zeringue
Fontenot	McCormick	
Freeman	McFarland	
Freiberg	McKnight	

Total - 100

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Duplessis	Landry
Harris	Muscarello

Total - 4

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Miguez moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 50—

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:301(7)(m), 302(BB)(114), 321(P)(115), 321.1(I)(115), and 331(V)(115), relative to state sales and use tax; to provide for a state sales and use tax exclusion for certain leases or rentals of items of tangible personal property; to provide for definitions; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Stefanski moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahan
Amedee	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Bagley	Geymann	Miller, G.
Beaullieu	Glover	Mincey
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Moore
Brass	Green	Muscarello
Brown	Hilferty	Nelson

Bryant	Hodges	Newell
Butler	Hollis	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, R.
Carrier	Hughes	Phelps
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, R.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, W.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	White
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Wright
Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue
Freiberg	McFarland	

Total - 101

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bishop	Harris	Orgeron
--------	--------	---------

Total - 3

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Stefanski moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 118—

BY REPRESENTATIVES FRIEMAN, BEAULLIEU, FIRMENT, HORTON, MCCORMICK, MCFARLAND, CHARLES OWEN, SEABAUGH, AND ROMERO

AN ACT

To enact Part V of Chapter 9 of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1813 through 1817, relative to enforcement of federal firearm laws; to provide relative to infringements on a citizen's right to keep and bear arms; to enact the Louisiana Firearm Protection Act; to prohibit enforcement of federal firearm laws; to provide for definitions; to provide relative to application; to provide relative to a right of action; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Frieman sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Frieman to Engrossed House Bill No. 118 by Representative Frieman

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 4, after "means any" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and at the beginning of line 5 delete "submachine gun, or assault rifle" and insert in lieu thereof: "automatic or semiautomatic pistol, rifle, or shotgun, or any short barrel variant"

Page 80 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 10, after "detachable" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof: "magazines, suppressors, interchangeable barrels or barrel assemblies."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 25, after "(2)" and before "of firearms" delete "Any registering or tracking" and insert in lieu thereof: "The registration or tracking"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 3, delete lines 14 through 24 in their entirety and insert in lieu thereof:

"A. The provisions of this Part shall apply to any employee or official of the state or a political subdivision."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, line 25, after "Any" and before "described in" delete "entity" and insert in lieu thereof: "employee or official"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 3, line 26, after "which the" and before "explicitly" delete "entity" and insert in lieu thereof: "employee or official"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 4, delete line 1 in its entirety and insert in lieu thereof: "C. Any employee or official described in Subsection A of this Section shall not enforce or assist"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 4, line 4, after "Any" and before "described in" delete "entity" and insert in lieu thereof: "employee or official"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 4, delete line 5 in its entirety and at the beginning of line 6 delete "effective date of this Act," and insert in lieu thereof: "public or private funds or assets."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 4, line 11, after "Any" and before "R.S. 40:1815(B)" delete "entity or person who acts to violate" and insert in lieu thereof: "person or official described in Subsection A of this Section who violates"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 4, at the beginning of line 15, delete "law" and insert in lieu thereof: "law, rule, or order"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 4, line 22, after "state shall" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and at the beginning of line 23 delete "state" and insert in lieu thereof: "be ineligible to receive state funding distribution of which is not required by the Constitution of Louisiana"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 4, at the beginning of line 24, change "entity" to "political subdivision"

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 4, line 26, after "that the" and before "has violated" delete "entity" and insert in lieu thereof: "political subdivision"

On motion of Rep. Frieman, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Frieman moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	Muscarello
Amedee	Gadberry	Nelson
Bacala	Geymann	Orgeron
Bagley	Goudeau	Owen, C.
Beaulieu	Hilferty	Owen, R.
Bourriaque	Hodges	Pressly
Brown	Hollis	Riser
Butler	Horton	Romero
Carrier	Huval	Schamerhorn
Cormier	Illg	Seabaugh
Coussan	Ivey	St. Blanc
Crews	Johnson, M.	Stagni
Davis	Johnson, T.	Stefanski
Deshotel	Kerner	Tarver
DeVillier	LaCombe	Thomas
DuBuisson	Mack	Thompson
Echols	Magee	Turner
Edmonds	McCormick	Villio
Edmonston	McFarland	Wheat
Emerson	McKnight	White
Farnum	McMahen	Wright
Firment	Miguez	Zeringue
Fontenot	Miller, G.	
Freiberg	Mincey	
Total - 70		

NAYS

Adams	Glover	Lyons
Brass	Green	Marcelle
Bryant	Hughes	Marino
Carpenter	James	Miller, D.
Carter, G.	Jefferson	Moore
Carter, R.	Jenkins	Newell
Carter, W.	Jones	Phelps
Duplessis	Jordan	Pierre
Freeman	Landry	Selders
Gaines	Larvadain	Willard
Total - 30		

ABSENT

Bishop	Garofalo
Cox	Harris
Total - 4	

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Frieman moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 124— BY REPRESENTATIVE HOLLIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:95(A)(1), (2), and (3), relative to the illegal carrying of weapons; to provide relative to the prohibition on the concealed carrying of any firearm or other instrumentality customarily used or intended for use as a dangerous weapon; to provide an exception to the offense for a

concealed handgun permit holder; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Hollis, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Hollis gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 124 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 148—
BY REPRESENTATIVE ECHOLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:301(8)(b), relative to state sales and use tax; to provide for an exclusion for institutions of higher education accredited by the American Osteopathic Association Commission on Osteopathic College Accreditation from sales and use taxation on certain transactions; to provide for certain limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Echols, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Echols gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 148 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 156—
BY REPRESENTATIVE FREIBERG

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 11:701(33)(a)(ii)(aa), R.S. 14:403.1(B)(6), R.S. 15:1134(A), R.S. 17:7(27)(a)(ii)(aa), 7.2(A)(4), 24.1(K), 46(A)(1)(b), 392.1(E), 414.2(A), 416.8(A)(1)(a)(iii), 1170, 1200(A) and (B), 2926(A)(introductory paragraph) and (B)(1), the title of Chapter 19 of Title 17 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, 3002(A), (B), (C)(introductory paragraph), and (D)(1) and (3), 3003, 3004, 3005(A), (B), (C)(introductory paragraph), (D), and (E), 3006(A), 3162(C)(8), 3166(section heading) and 3602(7), R.S. 18:116(A)(2)(a), and R.S. 42:1119(B)(2)(a)(iv), relative to school employees; to provide for technical changes with respect to the terms "guidance counselor" and "school counselor"; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Freiberg moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahan
Bacala	Gaines	Miguez
Bagley	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Beaulieu	Geymann	Miller, G.
Bishop	Glover	Mincey
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Moore

Brass	Green	Muscarello
Brown	Hilferty	Nelson
Bryant	Hodges	Newell
Butler	Hollis	Orgeron
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, C.
Carrier	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carter, G.	Huval	Phelps
Carter, R.	Illg	Pierre
Carter, W.	Ivey	Pressly
Cormier	James	Riser
Coussan	Jefferson	Romero
Cox	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Crews	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	Wheat
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Zeringue
Freeman	McCormick	
Freiberg	McFarland	

Total - 100

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Amedee	Selders
Harris	Wright
Total - 4	

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Freiberg moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 170—
BY REPRESENTATIVE MARINO

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:392.1(F), relative to students with dyslexia; to require public school governing authorities to report to the state Department of Education and to require the state Department of Education to report to the legislature regarding such students; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Marino sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Marino to Engrossed House Bill No. 170 by Representative Marino

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 14, change "through" to "pursuant to"

On motion of Rep. Marino, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Marino moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	McMahan
Adams	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Bagley	Geymann	Miller, G.
Beaulieu	Glover	Mincey
Bishop	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriaque	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Hilferty	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Butler	Hollis	Orgeron
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, C.
Carrier	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, R.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, W.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	White
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Wright
Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue
Freiberg	McFarland	
Frieman	McKnight	

Total - 100

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Amedee	Harris
Bryant	Phelps

Total - 4

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Marino moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 174—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HUVAL
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:4546.21, relative to the Louisiana Municipal Natural Gas Purchasing and Distribution Authority; to provide for the authority to require contractors and subcontractors to be prequalified as part of the public bidding process for pipeline facilities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Huval moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahan
Amedee	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Bagley	Geymann	Miller, G.
Beaulieu	Glover	Mincey
Bishop	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriaque	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Hilferty	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Butler	Hollis	Orgeron
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, C.
Carrier	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, R.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, W.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	White
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Wright
Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue
Freiberg	McFarland	

Total - 101

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bryant	Harris	Phelps
--------	--------	--------

Total - 3

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Huval moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Amedee requested the House consent to record her vote on final passage of House Bill No. 174 as yea, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE BILL NO. 176—

BY REPRESENTATIVE THOMPSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 42:1124.4(A)(3), (B)(2), and (C) and 1157(A)(1)(a) and (4), relative to ethics; to provide relative to certain fees and penalties assessed by the Board of Ethics; to reduce the per-day penalty to be assessed against certain filers

of required financial disclosure statements; to provide for a maximum amount to be assessed against certain filers; to give discretion to the board and its staff regarding the assessment of certain penalties against certain filers of required financial disclosure statements; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Thompson moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miguez
Adams	Gaines	Miller, D.
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Geymann	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell
Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Butler	Hollis	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, R.
Carrier	Hughes	Phelps
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, R.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, W.	Ivey	Riser
Cormier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Larvadain	Thompson
Edmonds	Lyons	Turner
Edmonston	Mack	Villio
Emerson	Magee	White
Farnum	Marcelle	Willard
Firment	Marino	Wright
Fontenot	McCormick	Zeringue
Freeman	McFarland	
Freiberg	McKnight	
Frieman	McMahen	

Total - 100

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Amedee	Harris
Bryant	Landry

Total - 4

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Thompson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 187—

BY REPRESENTATIVE BAGLEY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:2116.31(B) and 2116.34(A)(1), (7), and (10)(c) through (f), relative to home health services; to define authorized healthcare provider; to authorize nurse practitioners, clinical nurse specialists, and physician assistants to order home health services; to provide rules and regulations for nurse practitioners, clinical nurse specialists, and physician assistants; to provide for administrators of home health agencies; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Bagley moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahen
Amedee	Gaines	Miguez
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Geymann	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bishop	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bourriaque	Green	Nelson
Brass	Hilferty	Newell
Brown	Hodges	Orgeron
Butler	Hollis	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, R.
Carrier	Hughes	Phelps
Carter, G.	Huval	Pierre
Carter, W.	Illg	Riser
Cormier	Ivey	Romero
Coussan	James	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jefferson	Seabaugh
Crews	Jenkins	Selders
Davis	Johnson, M.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Johnson, T.	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	White
Farnum	Magee	Willard
Firment	Marcelle	Wright
Fontenot	Marino	Zeringue
Freeman	McCormick	
Freiberg	McFarland	

Total - 98

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bryant	Harris	Miller, D.
Carter, R.	Jones	Pressly

Total - 6

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Bagley moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Amedee requested the House consent to record her vote on final passage of House Bill No. 187 as yea, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE BILL NO. 204—
BY REPRESENTATIVE TURNER
AN ACT

To enact Part II-B of Chapter 5-E of Title 40 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 40:1250.31 through 1250.35, relative to the delivery of Medicaid-funded services for persons with disabilities; to provide for definitions; to provide for delivery of individual and family support services; to prohibit limitations on direct service worker hours in the delivery of certain services; to provide with respect to Medicaid payments for services of direct service workers; to provide for delivery of certain Medicaid waiver services and long-term personal care services; to authorize remote visitation of service recipients in certain programs with visitation requirements; to require promulgation of administrative rules by the Louisiana Department of Health; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Turner, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Turner gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 204 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 211—
BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:4035.1(C) through (E) and to enact R.S. 17:4035.1(F) and (G), relative to public school choice; to provide relative to school funding; to provide relative to the applicability of school and district accountability; to provide for an appeals process for public school choice enrollment denials; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Speaker Pro Tempore Magee in the Chair

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. James, the rules were suspended to limit the author or proponent handling the legislative instrument to ten minutes for opening remarks and all subsequent speakers on the instrument to three minutes.

Speaker Schexnayder in the Chair

Motion

On motion of Rep. Wright, the bill was returned to the calendar.

HOUSE BILL NO. 240—
BY REPRESENTATIVE JENKINS
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1379.1.4(D), relative to the carrying of concealed weapons by qualified retired law enforcement officers; to require the issuance of the required identification to qualified individuals by certain persons; to provide for prospective and retroactive application; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Jenkins moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Frieman	McKnight
Adams	Gadberry	McMahan
Bacala	Gaines	Miguez
Bagley	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Beaulieu	Geymann	Miller, G.
Bourriaque	Glover	Mincey
Brass	Goudeau	Moore
Brown	Green	Nelson
Bryant	Hilferty	Newell
Butler	Hollis	Orgeron
Carpenter	Horton	Owen, C.
Carrier	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carter, G.	Huval	Phelps
Carter, R.	Illg	Pierre
Carter, W.	Ivey	Pressly
Cormier	James	Riser
Coussan	Jefferson	Romero
Cox	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Crews	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Davis	Johnson, T.	Selders
Deshotel	Jones	St. Blanc
DeVillier	Jordan	Stagni
DuBuisson	Kerner	Stefanski
Duplessis	LaCombe	Tarver
Echols	Landry	Thomas
Edmonds	Larvadain	Thompson
Edmonston	Lyons	Turner
Emerson	Mack	Villio
Farnum	Magee	Wheat
Firment	Marcelle	White
Fontenot	Marino	Willard
Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue
Freiberg	McFarland	
Total - 98		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Amedee	Harris	Muscarello
Bishop	Hodges	Wright
Total - 6		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Jenkins moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 244—
BY REPRESENTATIVES TURNER AND JORDAN
AN ACT

To enact Part III-A of Chapter 5 of Title 22 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 22:1660.1 through 1660.6, relative to pharmacy services administrative organizations; to provide for definitions; to require registration and licensing; to provide for duties and responsibilities; to provide for contractual agreements; to provide for fee reimbursement; to authorize rulemaking; to provide for penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Turner, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Turner gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 244 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 246—
BY REPRESENTATIVE COUSSAN
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 30:23(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (1), (2), and (4), (C), and (D)(1), relative to the underground storage of hydrogen in underground reservoirs and salt domes; to include hydrogen as a substance that can be stored in underground reservoirs and salt domes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Coussan gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 246 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 256—
BY REPRESENTATIVE TARVER
AN ACT

To repeal R.S. 17:438(D), relative to permitted withholdings from a school employee's paycheck; to authorize employees of certain school boards to have dues for an organization withheld from their paychecks; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Tarver moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freeman	Miguez
Amedee	Freiberg	Miller, G.
Bacala	Frieman	Mincey
Bagley	Gadberry	Nelson
Beaulieu	Garofalo	Orgeron
Bourriaque	Geymann	Owen, C.
Brass	Glover	Owen, R.

Butler	Goudeau	Pressly
Carrier	Hilferty	Riser
Carter, W.	Hodges	Romero
Coussan	Hollis	Schamerhorn
Crews	Horton	Seabaugh
Davis	Huval	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Illg	Stefanski
DeVillier	Ivey	Tarver
DuBuisson	Johnson, M.	Thomas
Echols	Kerner	Thompson
Edmonds	Mack	Turner
Edmonston	Magee	Villio
Emerson	McCormick	Wheat
Farnum	McFarland	Wright
Firment	McKnight	Zeringue
Fontenot	McMahan	
Total - 68		

NAYS

Adams	Green	Marcelle
Brown	Hughes	Miller, D.
Bryant	James	Moore
Carpenter	Jefferson	Newell
Carter, G.	Jenkins	Phelps
Carter, R.	Jones	Pierre
Cormier	Jordan	Selders
Cox	LaCombe	Stagni
Duplessis	Landry	White
Gaines	Larvadain	Willard
Total - 30		

ABSENT

Bishop	Johnson, T.	Marino
Harris	Lyons	Muscarello
Total - 6		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Tarver moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Schamerhorn requested the House consent to correct his vote on final passage of House Bill No. 256 from nay to yea, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE BILL NO. 306—
BY REPRESENTATIVE MUSCARELLO
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 42:1119(B)(2)(a)(vi), relative to nepotism; to provide an exception to allow an immediate family member of a school board member or superintendent to be employed as a bus operator; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Muscarello, Jr. moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	McMahan
Adams	Gaines	Miguez
Amedee	Garofalo	Miller, D.

Page 86 HOUSE

14th Day's Proceedings - May 4, 2021

Bacala	Geymann	Miller, G.
Bagley	Glover	Mincey
Beaullieu	Goudeau	Moore
Bourriaque	Green	Muscarello
Brass	Hilferty	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Bryant	Hollis	Orgeron
Butler	Horton	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carrier	Huval	Phelps
Carter, R.	Illg	Pierre
Carter, W.	Ivey	Pressly
Cormier	James	Riser
Coussan	Jefferson	Romero
Cox	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Crews	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Davis	Johnson, T.	Selders
Deshotel	Jones	St. Blanc
DeVillier	Jordan	Stagni
DuBuisson	Kerner	Stefanski
Duplessis	LaCombe	Tarver
Echols	Landry	Thomas
Edmonds	Lyons	Thompson
Emerson	Mack	Turner
Farnum	Magee	Villio
Firment	Marcelle	White
Fontenot	Marino	Willard
Freeman	McCormick	Wright
Freiberg	McFarland	Zeringue
Frieman	McKnight	
Total - 99		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bishop	Edmonston	Larvadain
Carter, G.	Harris	
Total - 5		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Muscarello, Jr. moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 324—

BY REPRESENTATIVE HILFERTY
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:81.6(A), 235.1(B)(4)(a), and 416.1(B), relative to student discipline; to prohibit corporal punishment in public elementary and secondary schools; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Hilferty moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Adams	Hilferty	McKnight
Brass	Hollis	Miller, D.
Brown	Hughes	Miller, G.
Bryant	Illg	Moore
Carpenter	James	Nelson
Carter, G.	Jefferson	Newell

Carter, R.	Jenkins	Phelps
Carter, W.	Johnson, T.	Pierre
Cormier	Jones	Pressly
Coussan	Jordan	Stagni
Davis	Landry	Thomas
DuBuisson	Larvadain	Villio
Duplessis	Lyons	White
Freeman	Magee	Willard
Freiberg	Marcelle	Wright
Green	Marino	Zeringue
Total - 48		

NAYS

Amedee	Frieman	Mincey
Bacala	Gadberry	Muscarello
Bagley	Gaines	Orgeron
Beaullieu	Garofalo	Owen, C.
Bourriaque	Geymann	Owen, R.
Butler	Goudeau	Riser
Carrier	Hodges	Romero
Crews	Horton	Schamerhorn
Deshotel	Huval	Seabaugh
DeVillier	Ivey	St. Blanc
Echols	Johnson, M.	Stefanski
Edmonds	Kerner	Tarver
Edmonston	Mack	Thompson
Emerson	McCormick	Turner
Farnum	McFarland	White
Firment	McMahan	
Fontenot	Miguez	
Total - 49		

ABSENT

Mr. Speaker	Glover	Selders
Bishop	Harris	
Cox	LaCombe	
Total - 7		

The Chair declared the above bill failed to pass.

HOUSE BILL NO. 699 (Substitute for House Bill No. 524 by Representative Nelson)—

BY REPRESENTATIVE NELSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact the heading of Title 26 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, R.S. 36:451(B) and 458(E), R.S. 40:966(B)(2)(introductory paragraph) and (D)(1) and 1046(K), and R.S. 47:287.73(C)(1) and 301(10)(ii), to enact Division 5 of Subpart B of Part V of Chapter 1 of Title 14 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 14:93.21 through 93.26, Chapter 9 of Title 26 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 26:941 through 965, and R.S. 40:1046(L), and to repeal R.S. 40:964(Schedule I)(C)(19) and 966(C)(2) and (F), relative to the legal status of marijuana; to repeal laws which criminalize the possession of marijuana; to provide for a legal and regulatory framework relative to production of cannabis products and sale of such products to consumers over a certain age; to create and provide for crimes relating to unlawful sale, purchase, and possession of cannabis products; to revise the heading of Title 26 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950; to require and provide specifications for state regulation of cultivation, processing, and manufacturing of cannabis products; to require and provide specifications for state regulation of the retail sale of cannabis products; to require licensing by the state of cannabis retailers; to require licensure by the state of cannabis commercial growers, cannabis processors, and cannabis contract carriers; to create and provide requirements associated with licenses to be issued by the state to allow cultivation and possession of cannabis plants by individuals for personal use; to require promulgation of administrative rules; to provide for definitions; to provide for products that holders of licenses associated with

medical marijuana may sell; to provide relative to the taxability of such products; to allow local governments to limit the issuance of licenses within their jurisdiction; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Nelson, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Nelson gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 699 from the calendar on Monday, May 10, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 211—

BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:4035.1(C) through (E) and to enact R.S. 17:4035.1(F) and (G), relative to public school choice; to provide relative to school funding; to provide relative to the applicability of school and district accountability; to provide for an appeals process for public school choice enrollment denials; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Wright moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Geymann	Miller, D.
Amedee	Goudeau	Muscarello
Bacala	Green	Nelson
Beaullieu	Hilferty	Orgeron
Coussan	Hollis	Owen, C.
Crews	Horton	Owen, R.
Davis	Hughes	Phelps
DeVillier	Illg	Pressly
DuBuisson	Ivey	Romero
Duplessis	Johnson, T.	Seabaugh
Echols	Jordan	St. Blanc
Edmonds	Kerner	Stagni
Emerson	Lyons	Stefanski
Famum	Mack	Tarver
Fontenot	Magee	Thomas
Freeman	Marino	Turner
Freiberg	McCormick	Villio
Frieman	McKnight	Willard
Gaines	McMahen	Wright
Garafalo	Miguez	Zeringue
Total - 60		

NAYS

Bagley	Edmonston	Larvadain
Bourriaque	Firment	Marcelle
Brass	Gadberry	McFarland
Brown	Glover	Miller, G.
Bryant	Hodges	Mincey
Butler	Huval	Moore
Carpenter	James	Newell
Carrier	Jefferson	Pierre
Carter, G.	Jenkins	Riser
Carter, R.	Johnson, M.	Schamerhorn

Carter, W.	Jones	Thompson
Cormier	LaCombe	Wheat
Cox	Landry	White
Total - 39		

ABSENT

Adams	Deshotel	Selders
Bishop	Harris	
Total - 5		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Wright moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 464—

BY REPRESENTATIVE IVEY

AN ACT

To enact Parts I through IV of Chapter 1-A of Subtitle III of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 47:1721 through 1731, relative to ad valorem tax; to provide for exemptions from ad valorem property taxes for certain capital investment project property; to establish requirements for eligibility; to provide for standard, local, and executive ad valorem tax exemptions; to provide for cooperative endeavor agreements; to provide for exemption applications; to provide for the terms and values of exemptions; to provide for definitions; to provide for local authority approval; to provide for gubernatorial approval; to provide for the consideration, approval, and granting of the exemption; to provide for a statement of purpose; to provide for oversight; to provide for a withdrawal process; to provide for effectiveness; to provide for reporting; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Ivey, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Ivey gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 464 from the calendar on Tuesday, May 11, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 629—

BY REPRESENTATIVE IVEY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:32(A), 241, 287.12, 287.69, 293(3), (9)(a)(iv), and (10), 294, 295(B), 300.1, 300.6(A), and 300.7(A), to enact R.S. 47:293(9)(a)(xx), Parts I through IV of Chapter 1-A of Subtitle III of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 47:1721 through 1731, and Chapter 2-A of Subtitle III of Title 47 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 47:1890, and to repeal R.S. 47:79(B), 287.79, 287.83, 287.85, 287.442(B)(1), 293(4) and (9)(a)(ii), 296.1(B)(3)(c), 297(A), and 298, relative to taxes; to provide for a flat income tax rate for individuals, estates, and trusts; to provide for the calculation of individual income tax liability; to provide for certain deductions and credits; to reduce certain deductions and credits; to provide with respect to the deduction for excess federal itemized personal deductions; to provide for limitations and restrictions; to reduce the amount of the deduction allowed for excess federal itemized personal deductions; to provide for personal exemptions and credits for dependents; to repeal the deductibility of federal income taxes

paid for purposes of calculating income tax; to provide for the rates and brackets for estates and trusts; to provide relative to the rate of the corporation income tax; to provide for exemptions from ad valorem property taxes for certain capital investment project property; to establish requirements for eligibility; to provide for standard, local, and executive ad valorem tax exemptions; to provide for cooperative endeavor agreements; to provide for exemption applications; to provide for the terms and values of exemptions; to provide for definitions; to provide for local authority approval; to provide for gubernatorial approval; to provide for the consideration, approval, and granting of the exemption; to provide for a statement of purpose; to provide for oversight; to provide for a withdrawal process; to provide for reports; to provide for certain requirements and limitations; to provide for the classification of property; to establish the percentages to be used for purposes of fair market value in property assessment; to provide for applicability; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Ivey, the bill was returned to the calendar.

HOUSE BILL NO. 84—

BY REPRESENTATIVE MARCELLE
AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 401(A)(introductory paragraph) and (5), relative to qualifications of jurors; to provide relative to the authority of certain persons under indictment or order of imprisonment or on probation or parole to serve on a jury; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Marcelle moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Marino
Adams	Glover	McCormick
Bagley	Green	McFarland
Brass	Hollis	McKnight
Brown	Hughes	Miller, D.
Bryant	Ivey	Moore
Carpenter	James	Nelson
Carrier	Jefferson	Newell
Carter, G.	Jenkins	Owen, R.
Carter, R.	Johnson, M.	Phelps
Carter, W.	Johnson, T.	Pierre
Cormier	Jones	Selders
Cox	Jordan	Stagni
Davis	LaCombe	Turner
DuBuisson	Landry	White
Duplessis	Larvadain	Willard
Farnum	Lyons	Zeringue
Freiberg	Magee	
Gadberry	Marcelle	
Total - 55		

NAYS

Amedee	Garofalo	Owen, C.
Bacala	Goudeau	Pressly
Beaullieu	Hodges	Riser
Bourriaque	Horton	Romero
Crews	Huval	Schamerhorn
Deshotel	Illg	Seabaugh
DeVillier	Kerner	St. Blanc
Echols	Mack	Stefanski
Edmonds	McMahan	Tarver
Edmonston	Miguez	Thomas
Emerson	Miller, G.	Thompson
Firmont	Mincey	Villio
Fontenot	Muscarello	Wheat
Frieman	Orgeron	Wright
Total - 42		

ABSENT

Bishop	Freeman	Hilferty
Butler	Geymann	
Coussan	Harris	
Total - 7		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Marcelle moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 38—

BY REPRESENTATIVES EDMONDS, AMEDEE, BACALA, CREWS, ECHOLS, EDMONSTON, FIRMONT, FRIEMAN, GAROFALO, IVEY, MCFARLAND, MIGUEZ, AND CHARLES OWEN
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 39:16.1(2) and (4), 16.2, 16.3(A)(1) and (3)(introductory paragraph) and (D), 16.4(A), (B)(1) and (2), and (C)(2)(f), 16.5(A)(2), 16.6(A)(2) and (C)(7), 16.7(A)(2), (B), and (C)(10), 16.9(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), and (C)(introductory paragraph), (1), (3), (4), and (5), 16.13(A), (B), (D), and (E), and 16.14 and to enact R.S. 39:16.10(D), relative to reporting of public fiscal information; to provide relative to the Louisiana Fiscal Transparency Website; to require public school governing authorities to comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements for the website; to provide relative to the duties and authority of the commissioner of administration relative to such requirements; to provide relative to the duties and authority of the legislative auditor relative to such requirements; to provide for compliance and investigative audits; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Edmonds sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Edmonds to Engrossed House Bill No. 38 by Representative Edmonds

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 6, after "to enact" and before "R.S. 39:16.10(D)," insert "R.S. 17:3996(B)(59) and"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, between lines 14 and 15, insert the following:

"Section 1. R.S. 17:3996(B)(59) is hereby enacted to read as follows:

§3996. Charter schools; exemptions; requirements

* * *

B. Notwithstanding any state law, rule, or regulation to the contrary and except as may be otherwise specifically provided for in an approved charter, a charter school established and operated in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and its approved charter and the school's officers and employees shall be exempt from all statutory mandates or other statutory requirements that are applicable to public schools and to public school officers and employees except for the following laws otherwise applicable to public schools with the same grades:

* * *

(59) Fiscal transparency, R.S. 39:16.1 et seq.

* * *

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the beginning of line 15, change "Section 1." to "Section 2."

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 7, at the beginning of line 22, change "Section 2." to "Section 3."

On motion of Rep. Edmonds, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Edmonds moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Freiberg	McFarland
Adams	Frieman	McKnight
Amedee	Gadberry	McMahen
Bacala	Gaines	Miguez
Bagley	Garofalo	Miller, D.
Beaulieu	Geymann	Miller, G.
Bourriaque	Glover	Mincey
Brass	Goudeau	Moore
Brown	Green	Muscarello
Bryant	Hilferty	Nelson
Butler	Hodges	Orgeron
Carpenter	Hollis	Owen, C.
Carrier	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carter, G.	Huval	Phelps
Carter, R.	Illg	Pierre
Carter, W.	Ivey	Pressly
Cormier	James	Riser
Coussan	Jefferson	Romero
Cox	Jenkins	Schamerhorn
Crews	Johnson, M.	Seabaugh
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver

Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	Wheat
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marcelle	Willard
Fontenot	Marino	Wright
Freeman	McCormick	Zeringue

Total - 99

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bishop	Horton	Selders
Harris	Newell	

Total - 5

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Edmonds moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 55—

BY REPRESENTATIVES FREEMAN, AMEDEE, CARPENTER, ECHOLS, FREIBERG, JENKINS, MIKE JOHNSON, MARCELLE, MARINO, MOORE, NELSON, AND WHITE AND SENATORS BARROW, JACKSON, MIZELL, AND PETERSON

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Civil Procedure Article 3603(A), Children's Code Article 1568(D), and R.S. 46:2134(D) and to enact Code of Civil Procedure Article 3603.1(C)(3), relative to the issuance of protective orders; to provide for complainants seeking protection from domestic abuse, dating violence, stalking, or sexual assault; to provide for the signature of the petitioner; to provide for the affirmation of the petitioner; to provide for a witness; to provide for the crime of perjury; to provide for the penalty of perjury; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Freeman, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Freeman gave notice of her intention to call House Bill No. 55 from the calendar on Thursday, May 6, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 370—

BY REPRESENTATIVE IVEY

A JOINT RESOLUTION

Proposing to enact Article VII, Section 21(O) of the Constitution of Louisiana, relative to ad valorem property tax exemptions; to establish exemptions for certain property; to establish exemptions for certain capital investment projects; to provide for the terms of the exemptions; to provide for the amount of the exemptions; to provide authorizations for approval of the exemptions; to provide for the administration of the exemptions; to provide for review by the Board of Commerce and Industry; to provide for approval from political subdivisions; to provide for gubernatorial approval; to provide for certain limitations and

requirements; to provide for submission of the proposed amendment to the electors; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Ivey, the bill was returned to the calendar.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Ivey gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 370 from the calendar on Tuesday, May 11, 2021.

HOUSE BILL NO. 437— BY REPRESENTATIVE GADBERRY AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:1730.23(J), relative to enforcement of the state uniform construction code; to provide for inspections of commercial and residential structures; to prohibit remote virtual inspections of such structures; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Gadberry sent up floor amendments on behalf of Representative Ivey:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Ivey to Engrossed House Bill No. 437 by Representative Gadberry

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 9 through 11 in their entirety and insert the following:

"J. A properly registered certified building inspector shall conduct all inspections of any commercial or residential structure and shall be present on site for such inspections.

On motion of Rep. Gadberry, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Gadberry moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns of names: Mr. Speaker, Amedee, Bagley, Brass, Butler, Carpenter, Carrier, Davis, DuBuisson, Duplessis, Echols, Edmonds, Edmonston, Farnum, Firment, Green, Hilferty, Hollis, Horton, Hughes, Huval, Ivey, James, Jefferson, Jenkins, Johnson, M., Johnson, T., Jones, Jordan, Kerner, Miller, G., Mincey, Moore, Nelson, Newell, Owen, C., Owen, R., Phelps, Riser, Schamerhorn, Seabaugh, Selders, St. Blanc, Stagni, Tarver.

Table with 3 columns of names: Fontenot, Freeman, Freiberg, Frieman, Gadberry, Garofalo, Glover, Landry, Marino, McCormick, McFarland, McKnight, McMahan, Miguez, Thomas, Thompson, Turner, Villio, Wheat, White, Wright. Total - 66

NAYS

Table with 3 columns of names: Beauillieu, Bourriaque, Carter, G., Carter, R., Coussan, Crews, DeVillier, Emerson, Geymann, Goudeau, Illg, Larvadain, Magee, Miller, D., Muscarello, Orgeron, Pierre, Romero, Stefanski, Willard, Zeringue. Total - 21

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns of names: Adams, Bacala, Bishop, Brown, Bryant, Carter, W., Cormier, Cox, Deshotel, Gaines, Harris, Hodges, LaCombe, Lyons, Mack, Marcelle, Pressly. Total - 17

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Gadberry moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 573— BY REPRESENTATIVE STEFANSKI AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:1402(D)(2), (3)(introductory paragraph), and (5), 1403(B)(6)(c), 1407(3) and (7), 1418(4)(b) and (c), 1431(B), 1436(B), 1437(A), 1856(D)(2) and (3) and (G), 1857(B)(1), 1989(C), 1998(A)(1)(a) and (b)(i) and (D), 2132(D), 2134(B)(3), (D), and (E)(1), and 2327 and to enact R.S. 47:1402(D)(3)(h) and (i), 1418(4)(d), 1431(F), 1856(H), 1857(B)(3), 1992(B)(3), and 1998(H) and (I), relative to ad valorem taxes; to provide for the qualifications of members of the Board of Tax Appeals; to provide for the membership and qualifications of the Local Tax Division Nominating Committee; to provide for administrative matters for the Board of Tax Appeals; to provide for the jurisdiction of the Board of Tax Appeals; to provide for definitions; to provide for the administration, review, and appeal of ad valorem tax assessments; to provide for actions related to the legality or correctness of certain assessments; to provide for actions related to payment of taxes under protest; to provide for actions for the recovery of taxes paid under protest; to provide for actions related to the assessment of public service properties by the commission; to provide for review of certain cases by the Louisiana Tax Commission; to provide for the refund of certain taxes; to provide for actions related to the payment of an assessment under protest; to provide for limitations and requirements in actions related to ad valorem tax assessments; to provide for a public records exception; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. Horton, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Horton on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 573 by Representative Stefanski

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 7, line 7, following "or the" and before "shall", change "constitution of the state" to "Constitution of Louisiana"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 10, line 20, following "is" and before the colon ":" insert "any of the following"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 10, line 21, at the end of the line, change ":" to ";

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 10, line 22, at the end of the line, change ":" to ";

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 10, line 23, at the end of the line, change ":" to ";

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 10, line 24, at the end of the line, change ":" to ";

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 10, line 26, at the end of the line, change "; or" to ";

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 13, line 18, following "1992" and before "or" insert ";

On motion of Rep. Horton, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Stefanski sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Stefanski to Engrossed House Bill No. 573 by Representative Stefanski

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 3, after "1431(B)," delete the remainder of the line and insert "1432(A), 1436(B), 1437(A), 1439(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 5, after "2327" and before "to enact" delete "and" and insert a comma ","

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 6, after "1431(F)" and before "1856(H)," insert "1432(B),"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, at the beginning of line 7, insert "and to repeal R.S. 47:1432(D),"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, at the beginning of line 20, insert the following:

"require that notice be afforded to certain parties for certain proceedings; to require annual reporting under certain circumstances; to authorize the promulgation of rules; to"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, line 3, after "1431(B)," and before "1856(D)(2)" delete "1436(B), 1437(A)," and insert "1432(A), 1436(B), 1437(A), 1439(C),"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, line 6, after "1431(F)" and before "1856(H)," insert "1432(B),"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 24, after "selected" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and insert "by the"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, line 25, after "Policy" delete the comma "," and delete "and" and insert "after consultation with"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 4, at the beginning of line 4, delete "matter relating to" and insert "related matter or concerning"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 5, delete lines 9 through 11 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(2) Intervention by and joinder of the relevant assessor shall be permitted or required as provided by law."

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 5, delete line 17 in its entirety and insert the following:

"§1432. Notice; hearing; decision

A. The taxpayer, ~~and~~ the collector, ~~and~~ other parties to proceedings pursuant to this Chapter shall be afforded notice and opportunity to be heard in each proceeding for the trial of any redetermination of an assessment, the consideration of a payment under protest petition, ~~or~~ for the determination of an overpayment, ~~or~~ other matter to be tried pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter. A decision or judgment in ~~such~~ these matters shall be made as quickly as practicable.

B. An action filed pursuant to this Chapter shall be deemed in any court of Louisiana to be a suit pending in a court of this state for the purposes of Code of Civil Procedure Article 531.

* * *

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 6, between lines 15 and 16, insert the following:

"§1439. Escrow account

* * *

C. The account, and any related funds included therein, shall be subject to audit by the legislative auditor. An annual report of account transactions concerning state cases shall also be submitted to the ~~Cash Management Review Board~~ secretary of the Department of Revenue. An annual report of the account's transactions concerning local sales tax cases shall be submitted to the Louisiana Uniform Local Sales Tax Board. An annual report of the account's transactions concerning local ad valorem tax cases shall be submitted to the written designee for the Louisiana Sheriff's Association and the written designee for the Louisiana Assessor's Association.

* * *

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 7, line 20, after "the" and before "reviewing" insert "court reviewing the matter or the"

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 8, line 27, after "matters" and before "may" delete the comma "," and delete "the tax commission" and insert "regarding the conduct of its hearings, the Louisiana Tax Commission"

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 8, line 28, after "rules" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and insert "not inconsistent with the provisions of this Section or other law."

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 9, delete lines 22 through 26 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(iii) Nothing in this Subparagraph shall be construed to limit the ability of the Louisiana Tax Commission to find good reason to admit otherwise admissible documents or evidence pursuant to this Subsection. For purposes of this Subparagraph, good reason for failure to timely present documents or evidence shall always be presumed to exist when the otherwise admissible document or evidence is either of the following:

(aa) Not available to the taxpayer at the time of the deadline for submission to the assessor but is provided to the assessor within fifteen days of availability including but not limited to financial or accounting documents, financial statements, information regarding the useful life of property, depreciation schedules, other records of income data, or environmental assessments or reports relating to the property.

(bb) Consists of documents or records of income or expenses concerning the valuation of oil and gas property when the taxpayer has timely provided all information required by rule and the documents or records are supplemental to the submission. The presumption provided for in this Subparagraph shall not apply to documents or records specifically required to be provided by rule or expressly requested by the assessor pursuant to R.S. 47:1957(C) if the documents were available to the taxpayer but not timely provided in response to the assessor's request.

(iv) Witnesses may be utilized to authenticate or explain evidence which is otherwise admissible pursuant to the provisions of this Subsection. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall be construed to limit otherwise admissible witness testimony evidence.

(v) For purposes of this Subparagraph, the phrase "otherwise admissible" shall mean evidence admissible pursuant to any provision of this Subsection and evidence admissible pursuant to relevant provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act and Code of Evidence.

(vi) Nothing in this Subparagraph shall be construed to limit any of the following otherwise admissible data, guides, and resources that are publicly accessible:

(aa) Aerial or other photography."

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 9, line 28, after "assessment," and before "building" delete "such as" and insert "including but not limited to"

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 10, line 1, after "Resources" delete the comma "," and delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and insert "including but not limited to data"

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 10, line 3, after "data" and before "multiple" delete "such as" and insert "including but not limited to"

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 10, line 10, after "1998" and before "or" insert the following:

"to be decided by preference and priority within twenty-one days and thereafter be subject to review by priority in the same manner as a non-appealable interlocutory judgment."

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 10, at the end of line 12, insert the following:

"Except as ordered by a court of appeal, no stay of the proceedings before the Louisiana Tax Commission may be issued pursuant to an action pursuant to this Subparagraph. This Subparagraph shall not apply to an application to present additional evidence not timely filed pursuant to the rules of the Louisiana Tax Commission."

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 10, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"(d) The Louisiana Tax Commission may promulgate rules related to the disclosure of evidence to the opposing party and the consideration of evidentiary disputes; however, no provision of this Paragraph shall extend any deadline beyond the date that would be applicable pursuant to Louisiana Tax Commission rules."

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 11, line 3, after "entirety" delete the comma "," and delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and delete line 4 in its entirety and insert "including otherwise admissible first-hand witness testimony."

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 12, line 5, after "shall be" and before "pursuant" delete "tried" and insert "heard"

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 12, line 7, after "court" and before the period "." insert "or the Board of Tax Appeals"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 12, line 9, after "hear" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 12, line 16, after "court" and before "or the" delete "of proper venue" and insert "for East Baton Rouge Parish"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 12, line 23, after "receive" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and insert "a copy of every filing in a"

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 12, at the end of line 24, delete the period "." and insert a comma "," and insert "and may intervene in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure."

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 13, line 10, after "located" delete the comma "," and delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and delete line 11 in its entirety and insert "and the Louisiana"

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 14, line 23, after "Part" delete the remainder of the line in its entirety and at the beginning of line 24, delete "to an assessor pursuant to R.S. 47:1989"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 15, at the end of line 4, insert the following:

"For purposes of this Section, forms shall include all information provided by a taxpayer to an assessor pursuant to this Part."

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 15, delete line 5 in its entirety and insert the following:

"Section 2. R.S. 47:1432(D) is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Section 3. The provisions of this Act amending R.S. 47:1989 shall have prospective effect and shall not be applicable to any case actually pending before the Louisiana Tax Commission or in any court on August 1, 2021. The provisions of this Act amending R.S. 47:1998 shall not be applicable to any case actually pending in any court on August 1, 2021. The remaining provisions of this Act are procedural and shall become operative on January 1, 2022."

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Stefanski moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gadberry	Miguez
Amedee	Gaines	Miller, D.
Bacala	Garofalo	Miller, G.
Bagley	Geymann	Mincey
Beaullieu	Glover	Moore
Bourriaque	Goudeau	Muscarello
Brass	Green	Nelson
Brown	Hodges	Newell
Bryant	Hollis	Orgeron
Butler	Horton	Owen, C.
Carpenter	Hughes	Owen, R.
Carrier	Huval	Pierre
Carter, G.	Illg	Pressly
Carter, R.	Ivey	Riser

Cornier	James	Romero
Coussan	Jefferson	Schamerhorn
Cox	Jenkins	Seabaugh
Crews	Johnson, M.	Selders
Davis	Johnson, T.	St. Blanc
Deshotel	Jones	Stagni
DeVillier	Jordan	Stefanski
DuBuisson	Kerner	Tarver
Duplessis	LaCombe	Thomas
Echols	Landry	Thompson
Edmonds	Larvadain	Turner
Edmonston	Lyons	Villio
Emerson	Mack	Wheat
Farnum	Magee	White
Firment	Marino	Willard
Fontenot	McCormick	Wright
Freeman	McFarland	Zeringue
Freiberg	McKnight	
Frieman	McMahan	

Total - 97

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Adams	Harris	Phelps
Bishop	Hilferty	
Carter, W.	Marcelle	

Total - 7

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Stefanski moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.20(A), Rep. Bacala gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 200 from the calendar on Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Magee, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications at this time.

Petitions, Memorials, and Communications

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

Message from the Senate

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

May 4, 2021

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has concurred in the following House Concurrent Resolutions:

House Concurrent Resolution No. 54
Returned without amendments

Respectfully submitted,
YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

Message from the Senate

**ASKING CONCURRENCE IN
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

May 4, 2021

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has adopted and asks your concurrence in the following Senate Concurrent Resolutions:

Senate Concurrent Resolution Nos. 9, 10, 18, 35, 36 and 37

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Concurrent Resolutions
Lying Over**

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions contained in the message were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 9—
BY SENATOR LAMBERT AND REPRESENTATIVE COUSSAN
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To approve the annual state integrated coastal protection plan for Fiscal Year 2022, as adopted by the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority Board.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 10—
BY SENATOR CATHEY
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To recognize The North Face as an "Extraordinary Customer" of the Louisiana oil and gas and petrochemical industries.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 18—
BY SENATOR FIELDS
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To urge and request the state Department of Education to study the feasibility of banning the use of corporal punishment in public schools.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 35—
BY SENATOR JOHNS
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To express the sincere condolences of the Legislature of Louisiana upon the death of Ann Theresa "Nancy" Mellody Valluzzo.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Farnum, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 36—
BY SENATOR JOHNS
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To express the sincere condolences of the Legislature of Louisiana upon the death of Colonel Bernard H. McLaughlin Jr.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Farnum, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 37—
BY SENATORS JOHNS, ABRAHAM AND REESE
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To commend former district attorney of the Fourteenth Judicial District, John F. DeRosier, for his many years of outstanding public service to the city of Lake Charles, the parish of Calcasieu, and the state of Louisiana.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Farnum, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Magee, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications at this time.

**Petitions, Memorials, and
Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

Message from the Senate

SENATE BILLS

May 4, 2021

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 70, 127, 179 and 245

Respectfully submitted,

YOLANDA J. DIXON
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions
on First Reading**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**SENATE BILL NO. 70—
BY SENATOR ABRAHAM
AN ACT**

To enact R.S. 22:1267.1, relative to commercial insurance; to provide with respect to commercial property insurance

deductibles applied to named storm, hurricane, and wind and hail deductibles; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 127—
BY SENATOR MCMATH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:2162(D)(2), relative to behavioral health rehabilitation services in the Louisiana medical assistance program; to require a minimum level of education and training for certain providers; to make technical changes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 179—
BY SENATOR CONNICK

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 22:1266(A)(1)(a), relative to automobile insurance policies; to define an automobile insurance policy; to provide for coverage when an insured is logged on to a transportation network company; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

SENATE BILL NO. 245 (Substitute of Senate Bill No. 71 by Senator Bernard)—
BY SENATOR BERNARD

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Civil Procedure Arts. 1734(A) and 1734.1, relative to civil jury trials; to provide for the costs and expenses related to jury trials; to provide for the payment of jurors; to provide for certain deposits and amounts; to provide for certain actions by the court and clerk; to provide certain terms, conditions, and procedures; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Carpenter, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 60—
BY REPRESENTATIVE CARPENTER
A RESOLUTION

To commend Doveal Austin Essex on the occasion of her one hundredth birthday.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Carpenter, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 61—

BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS

A RESOLUTION

To designate Wednesday, May 5, 2021, as Tourism Day at the state capitol.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Davis, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 62—

BY REPRESENTATIVE SEABAUGH

A RESOLUTION

To commend Louisiana Tech University for its encouragement of campus-wide healthy tech use on Digital Wellness Day, May 7, 2021.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Seabaugh, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 63—

BY REPRESENTATIVE ROMERO

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To memorialize the United States Congress to take such actions as are necessary to modify the H-2B nonimmigrant program to assist with the labor workforce shortage in the state of Louisiana.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

Reports of Committees

The following reports of committees were received and read:

Report of the Committee on

Administration of Criminal Justice

May 4, 2021

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 33, by Stagni
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 70, by Thomas
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

House Bill No. 106, by Carpenter
Reported with amendments. (13-0)

House Bill No. 497, by DuBuisson
Reported by substitute. (8-2-1)

House Bill No. 652, by Glover
Reported with amendments. (12-0)

EDWARD C. "TED" JAMES, II
Chairman

Report of the Committee on

Education

May 4, 2021

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Education to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 130, by Carter, Robby
Reported with amendments. (8-0)

House Bill No. 280, by Edmonds
Reported with amendments. (10-0)

House Bill No. 304, by Lyons
Reported favorably. (9-0)

House Bill No. 312, by Freiberg
Reported with amendments. (9-0)

RAYMOND E. GAROFALO, JR.
Chairman

Report of the Committee on

Health and Welfare

May 4, 2021

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Health and Welfare to submit the following report:

House Concurrent Resolution No. 42, by Stagni
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Concurrent Resolution No. 45, by Bagley
Reported favorably. (11-0)

House Bill No. 181, by Miller, D.
Reported with amendments. (10-3)

House Bill No. 193, by Marcelle
Reported with amendments. (12-0)

House Bill No. 197, by Owen, Charles
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

House Bill No. 269, by Kerner
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 317, by Kerner
Reported favorably. (10-0)

House Bill No. 477, by Stagni
Reported favorably. (10-0)

LAWRENCE A. "LARRY" BAGLEY
Chairman

Report of the Committee on

House and Governmental Affairs

May 4, 2021

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 72, by Coussan
Reported with amendments. (8-6)

House Bill No. 120, by Newell
Reported with amendments. (13-0)

House Bill No. 128, by Zeringue
Reported with amendments. (14-0)

House Bill No. 438, by Miguez
Reported with amendments. (12-0)

House Bill No. 456, by Edmonds
Reported favorably. (12-0)

House Bill No. 648, by Deshotel
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

JOHN M. STEFANSKI
Chairman

Report of the Committee on

Insurance

May 4, 2021

To the Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Insurance to submit the following report:

House Bill No. 457, by Firmont
Reported with amendments. (10-0)

House Bill No. 458, by Firmont
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

House Bill No. 469, by Larvadain
Reported with amendments. (8-0)

House Bill No. 585, by Geymann
Reported with amendments. (11-0)

House Bill No. 591, by Firmont
Reported with amendments. (10-0)

CHAD BROWN
Chairman

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Bishop, the rules were suspended to cancel the Committee on Ways and Means meeting scheduled upon adjournment of the House on today, Tuesday, May 4, 2021.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Stefanski, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to meet on Wednesday, May 5, 2021, and consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

House Bill No. 470

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Brown, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Insurance to meet on Wednesday, May 4, 2021, and consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

Senate Bill No. 191

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Coussan, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment to meet on Wednesday, May 5, 2021, and consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

House Concurrent Resolution No.55

Adjournment

On motion of Rep. Thompson, at 7:24 P.M., the House agreed to adjourn until Wednesday, May 5, 2021, at 2:00 P.M.

The Speaker of the House declared the House adjourned until 2:00 P.M., Wednesday, May 5, 2021.

MICHELLE D. FONTENOT
Clerk of the House

